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Selected key consolidated financial data

Preliminary comments

In comphance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom and
Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reported in Vivendi’s Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actiision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and
October 11, 2013, respectively, 1 e, the date of their effective sale by Vivend:

The adustments to previously published data are reported in Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 These adjustments were made to all periods as set gut i the table of selected key
consohdated financial data below i respect of data from the Consohdated Statements of Farmings and Cash Flows

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 012 2011 2010

Consohidat t
Revenues 10089 10252 8697 9054 9152
EBIT 736 837 {1131} 1269 777
Earmings attrbutable to Vivends SA shareownars 4744 1967 179 2681 2198

of which eamings fram continuing operations attnibutable to Vivendi SA shareowners (290} 43 {1 565) 571 647
EBITA (a) 999 955 1074 1086 1002
Adjusted net Income (a} 626 454 318 210 514
Financiat Net Debt / {Net Cash Position) (a) {4637} 11097 13419 12027 8073
Total equity 22958 19030 2129 22070 28173

of which Vivendi SA shareowners equity 22 60B 17457 18 325 19447 24058
Cash flow fram operations before capital expenditures net (CFFO before capex net) 1086 1139 1139 1205 1251
Capital expenditures net {capex net) (b) {243) (245) {293) (308) 2n)
Cash flow from operatians (CFFO) (a) 843 B34 BAG 897 980
Cash flow from operatiens after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) a0 503 72 826 370
Financial nvestments {1 244) {107) {1689 {2891 {655)
Financial divestments 17 807 34N 20 4205 1494
Dwvidends paid with respect to previous fiscal year 1348 [c) 1325 1245 1731 1721
Par shara data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 13458 13306 172989 12814 12738
Adjusted net income per share 046 034 024 0.1 040
Number of shares outsianding at the end of the penod {excluding treasury shares} 13516 13396 13225 12874 12787
Equrty per share attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareownars 1673 1303 1386 LR 1881
Duvidends per share pard with respect to pravigus fiscal year 1.00 [c) 100 100 140 140

In millions of euros, number of shares in milhions, data per share in euros

a  The non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), and Cash flow from operations
(CFFO} should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as
presented 1n the Consolidated Financiaf Statements and the related notes, or as described i this Financial Repont, and Vivend
considers that they are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance Each of these indicators 15 defined m the
apprapriate section of this Financial Report or in its Appendix in addition, it should be noted that other companies may define and
calculate these indicators differently from Vivend, thereby affecting comparabihity

b Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

¢ On June 30, 2014, Vivend) SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders from the additienal paid-in capital, considered as a
return of capital distribution to sharehotders
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Nota

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) 809/2004 {Artcle 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of securities
Iisted on a regulated market within the European Union {implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the "Prospectus Regulation™), the following items are
incorporated by reference into this report

« 2013 Financial Report and the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented n pages 172 to 324 of the “"Document de Référence” No D 14-0355, filed with the French Autonté des
Marchés Financiers {AMF) an Apnl 14, 2014, and on pages 172 to 324 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”, and

e 2012 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, prepared under iFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 168 to 319 of the “Document de Référence” No D 13-0170, filed with the AMF on March 18,
2013, and on pages 168 to 319 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”
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I — 2014 Financial Report

Preliminary comments

«  On February 11, 2015, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Having considered the Audit Committee’s
recommendation from 1ts meeting held on February 20, 2015, the Supervisory Board, at its mesting held on February 27, 2015, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014, as previously
approved by the Management Board on February 11, 2015

+ The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
with no qualified opimon  The Statutory Auditors” Repert on the Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

¢ In compliance with IFRS 5 - Noncurent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinved Operations, GV, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reported in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations in accordance with the
following terms

- Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2814, Vivendi and Telefonica entered nto an agreement for the
sale of GVT As a resuit, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings and Statement of Cash Flows as a
discontinued operation as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contribution to each line of Vivendr's Consokdated Statement of
Financiat Position as of December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liablities
associated with assets of discontinued businesses”

Completed sales as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: deconsohdated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the
Consohdated Statement of Earmings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinsed operations

The adjustments to previously published data are reported in Appendix Z to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

1 Significant events

11 Sigmificant events in 2014

111  Group's Governance

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Shareholders” Meeting notably appointed three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virg:me Morgon and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Viventh's Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders” Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, who had
chaired the group since 2002, as Honorary Chairman The Board appointed Mr Damiel Camus as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Mr
Philippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration Committee

The Supervisory Board also appointed the members to the Management Board, which 1s currently comprised of Messrs Amaud de
Puyfontaine, who serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe and Stephane Roussel

The Supervisory Board 15 currently comprised of 14 members, ncluding an employee shareholder representatve and an employee
representative
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112 Sale of SFR

On November 27, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the French Competition Authority
on October 27, 2014 subject to conditions {see below), Vivend: announced the closing of the combination between SFR and Numernicable The
main terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash proceeds €13 5 bilion, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivend) received
€13 366 billion in cash and, on December 3, 2014, Vivendi made a contnbution of
€200 millon to the financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mobile by Numericable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated s based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes 1n the nat working capital, SFR’s net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and s subject to a
contradictory accounting analysis m accordance with the contract

Vivendi's interest in the combined entty | 20% of Numenicable - SFR {publicly-listed)

Altice’s interest in the combined entity Approximately 60% of Numericable - SFA {approximately 20% free float)

Earn-out Earn-out of €750 mullion if the EBITDA-Capex aggregate of the combined entity 1s equal to
or higher than €2 billion during any fiscal year, ending not later than December 31, 2024

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Governance - Minority representation for Vivendi on the Beard of Directors, or 2 out of 10 directors,

subject to Vivend: retaiming a 20% interest in Numericable - SFR (1 directar if Vivend:

holds an interest between 10% and 20%])

Veto rnghts on certain exceptional matters subject to Vivend: retaining a 20% interest in

Numericable - SFR

Numericable - SFR has notably given the French Competition Authority an undertaking

not to disclose any strategic information on the pay-TV market, the distribution of pay-TV

services, or uitramanne telecommunications markets to Vivendi

Standard 180-day lock-up period, including restrictions on any disposal or transfer of

shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of settlement-delivery of the rights

issue of Numericable Group {on November 20, 2014}, at the request of the underwnting

banks

Lock-up pened until the end of November 2015, after which Vivendi may sell or distribute

sts Numenicable - SFA shares, without restrictions, with a right of prionty granted to

Altice {pre-emption nght or night of first offer)

Vivend: has agreed not to acquire any Numenicable - SFR shares, diractly or indirectly,

until June 30, 2018

- Subject to Vivend: retaining its shares, Altice will have a call opticn at market value
(subect to a floor'} on Vivendr's interest, exercrsable in three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%) over
one-month window periods starting on June 1, 2016, June 1, 2017 and June 1, 2018

- Tag-along nights for Vivend: if Altice sells its shares

Liquidity - Lock-up period

As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented 1n the Consolidated Statement of Famings, the Statement of Cash Flows and tn the
Statement of Financial Position of Vivend: as a discontinued operation The capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €2,378 mitlion (after
taxes), recognized n the Consolidated Statement of Eamings under the line “Earnings from discontinued operations” Excluding the
discontinuation® of amortization since Aprl 1, 2014, in accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gan on the sale of SFR amounted to
€3,459 million {please refer to Note 3 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2014}

Recognition of 20% interest in Numericable - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivendi sold 100% of «s interest in SFR to Numericable and recewed €13 166 billion 1n cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numenicable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting nghts Since that date,
Vivendi deconsalidated SFR Given the significant restrictive nature of the commitments given by Vivend: and Numericable - SFR to the
French Competition Authority with respect to afll Numencable - SFR's operations, Vivendi's minonty representation on Numericable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nghts granted to Vivend by Numericable - SFR's governance (see above) helps Vivend

! Volume Weighted Average Frice (VWAF) of Numericable Group s share price over the 20 busmess days before the closing date (which occurred on November 27 2014)
€29 46 grossed-up at an annual rate of 3% during the pertad ranging fram the closing date until the date of exercise of the call option

7 When an operation 1s discontmnued IFRS § requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation’s tangible and intangible assets Therefore for SFR, reported as a
discontinued cperation since March 31 2014 Vivend discontinued the emortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resulting in a positive
impact, attributable to Vivendt SA shareholders of €1 081 million on earmings from discontinued operations fram Apnl 1 tp November 27 2014
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adequately protect its proprietary interests as a minarity shareholder Vivendi considers that it does not have the right to participate in
Numericable - SFR's financial and operational policy-making processes, according to JAS 28 Without having a significant influence, the 20%
interest in Numericable - SFR was recognized as an “available-for-sale secunitigs” in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
and, in accordante with 1AS 39, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (£3,987 million as of December 31, 2014) as
the unrealized gains or losses were directly recognized in equity From November 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vvend!'s interest in Numericable - SFR resulted in an unrealized gain of €743 million {before taxes)

1.13 Plan to sell GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivend's Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Teleforuca to sell GVT After receving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, on September 18, 2014 1t authcnized the execution of an agreement with Telefonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are described below, represents a total enterpnise value of €7 45 billion (based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotrattons were entered into with Telefonica), corresponding to a
2014 estimated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction 15 subyect to cartain conditions, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory autharities, and 15 expected to occur during the second quarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completion date €4 66 bilhion subject to the sale price adjustment, based, among other things, on exceptional
changes n net working capital, GVT's bank debt (approximately €480 mition), as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actual numbers as of the completion date, the
amount of cash consideration paid, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 million The net sale price 1s estimated at
approximately €3 75 hillion

Consideration shares 74% interest in Telefonica Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and 57% interest {8 3% wvoting rights) in
Telecom ltalia

financing Capital increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Telefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction 15 subject to chtaming approvals from ANATEL {Agéncia

Nacional de Telecomunicagdes) and CADE {Conselho Administrativo de Defesa Econfmica) in

Brazil, and other conditions customary in this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and waranties

Liquichty With respect to Vivendi's interest in the combined VIVO/GVT entity

- maxmum 180 day lock-up period starting as from the completion date of the
transaction, and

- tag-along rights

Governance No specific governance nghts in VIVO/GVT and Telecom Italia

As from the third quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of this transaction, GVT was presented in the Consolidated Statement of
Earmings, the Statement of Cash Flows and i Statement of Financial Position of Vivend) as a discontinued operation

114 Sale of Maroc Telecom group

On May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered into on Navember 4, 2013, Vivend sold its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom to Eusalat
and received €4,138 milhon in cash proceeds from the sale after a contractual price adjustment (-€43 million) On the same date, Vivendi
deconsolidated Maroc Telecom and recorded a capital gain of €786 million (before taxes and net of costs related to the sale), which 1s
presented under “Earnings from discontinued operations™ in 2014 The agreements, which are descrnibed in Note 3 3 to the Consclidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, contained representations and warranties customary tg this type of transaction
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1.1.5 Canal+ Group
Broadcasting rights for sport events

In 2014, Canal+ Group was awarded broadcasting nghts to the following sport events
= the French Professional Soccer League 1, for four seasons (2016/2017 to 2019/2020} the two premium fots for an aggregate amaunt
of €2,160 million {or €540 muliion per season), and
o the Champions League for thres seasons {2015/2018 tg 2017/2018)

On January 14, 2014, Canal+ Groep was awarded broadcasting nghts for the National French Rugby Championship “TOP 14" for five seasans
{2014/2015 to 2018/2019) These exclusive nghts related to all of the "TOP 14" matches across all media and all temitories in which the
Canal+ Group operates On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority suspended the agreement between Canal+ Group and the
National Rugby League as from the 2015/2016 season and ruled that a new call for tenders should be organized for the four seasons
{2015/2016 to 2018/2019) Following to this call for tenders camed out in December 2014 and January 2015, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights related to all of the “TOP 14" matches These rights, which include all seven games on each match day, play-off games, as
well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover seasans 2015/2016 to 2018/2019

Acquisitions by Canal+ Overseas

On February 13, 2014, foflowing approval from the French Competition Authority, Canal+ Overseas completed its acquisttion of a 51%
interest in Mediaserv, an overseas telecom cperator

On October 28, 2014, Canal+ Overseas acquired a majonty interest in Thema, a company specializing in the distribution of general, thematic
and ethnic television channels in France and abroad Among other channels, Thema broadcasts the African fiction TV channe! Nollywood

Launch of the A+ channel

On Octaber 24, the A+ channetl officially launched in Afnica and will be broadcast in more than 20 countries in West and Central Africa
through Canalsat A+ 1s positioning itself as “the great African channel”, seeking to bring together a wide audience and offering nich, vaned
and high quality programming

TNT license tn Congo

On December 12, 2014, Canal+ signed an operating agreement in relation to cable television services on digital terrestrial television in the
Republic of Congo, where the company already offers television services via satellite

TVN interest in Poland

On October 16, 2014, Canal+ Graup and ITI Group announced that they were jointly considening strategic options In relation to their 51% mterest
in TVN (FTA broadcaster in Poland)

Success at the box office for Non-Stop and Paddington

In March 2014, Non-Stop, directed by Jaume Collet-Serra and starnng Liam Neeson and Julianne Moore, amved in first place at the US
weekend box office with $56 miltion 1n revenue after its first operating weekend This success was largely confirmed wherever the film was
subsequently released, including in France, Germany and China where 1t also dominated 1ts competitors duning its release To date, the film
has generated $236 million in worldwide revenue

Since the end of November 2014, Paddington, produced by David Heyman {the Harry Potter saga, Gravity ) and featuring Hugh Benneville
and Nicole Kidman has captivated audiences around the world Paddington 1s the biggest success for a Studiocanal fitm i the Urited
Kingdom, where it earned £34 million in revenue in eight weeks In France, it seld 2 8 million tickets and it 15 off to a great start i the United
States where 1t 15 distnbuted by the Weinstein Company As of February 4, 2015, Paddington had exceeded $200 million in worlgwide
revenues, a record for a family film produced by an independent studio

TV Series Devalopment

In 2014, Studiocanal produced 57 hours of series television through its subsidianes Red Production Company and Tandem Red produced
season 4 of Scott and Bailey, and the new senies Happy Valley, Prey and The Drver all of which broke audience and satisfaction records in
the United Kingdom when broadcast Tandem produced Season 2 of Crossing Lines, the ¢rime senes with an intermational cast and the
Spotfess sertes, an onginal Lanal+ creation
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New partnerships entered into by Studioceanal

In May 2014, Canal+ and Studiocanal joined forces with writers and creators Seren Sveistrup and Adam Price and producer and CEQ Meta
Lowse Foldager to create the production company SAM Productions ApS SAM will work with the strongest Scandinavian creative talents to
producs TV-series far the international market Studiocanal joined SAM as a partner and will serve as the company’s distributor

In September 2014, Studiocanal and The Picture Company - Andrew Rona and Alex Heineman's new production company - announced they
had entered intc a development and production agreement The first coliaboration 1s the development of the adaptation of Tom Wood's
Victor the Assassin book franchise to be directed by Pierre Morel In the past, the two producers, while at Silver Pictures, produced several
hit action films for Studiocanal including Without identity and Non-Stop, as well as the soon-to-be released The Gunman, also directed by
Pierre More

In September 2014, Grand Electric, the new production company created by Enc Newman, and Studiocanal entered into an agreement for
the acquisition, development and production of feature films for the European and American markets Under this agreement, Studiocanal
will be both a creative and financial partner, will handle international sales and will distribute the new Grand Electric films i its terntories

On September 4, 2014, Studiocanal and Svensk Filmindustn entered into a strategic partnership to distnbute all Studiocanal films across the
Nordic market {Sweden, Norway, Denmark and Finfand) and co-produce films and TV-senes This strategic partnership capitalizes upon Nordic
titles and talents and targets the intemational market Svensk Filmindustn will be responsible for the Nordic market and Studiocanal will be
responsible for international distribution

On QOctober 8, 2014, Studiocanal extended its multi-year SVOD agreement with Amazen in the United Kingdom and Germany Amazon will have
the exclusive first pay-TV nights to ali Studiocanal theatncal titles in both temntonies, as well as hundreds of library titles added to nts service

1.16 Universal Musie Group (UMG)

Acquisition of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limited

On Apnl 8, 2014, UMG acquired the entire issued share capital of Eagle Rock Entertainment Group Limited, an independent producer and
distributor of music films and programming for DVD, telewision and digital media

Sale of interest in Beats

On August 1, 2014, UMG sold s interest in Beats to Apple for a net amount of €250 million {of which €221 million was received dunng the
perod) The net gain on sale, recorded as other tncome in the Statement of Earnings, amounted to €179 miliion

Sale of Parlophone Label Group

On July 1, 2013, Vivend: sold Pardophone Label Group to Warner Music Group for a consideration of €591 million The arbitration pracess in
respect of contractual restatements to Parlophane Label Group's sale price completed at the end of November 2014 and UMG was awarded
a further €30 milllon As a result, this restatement took the total amount recewved from Warner Music Group in respect of this sale to
€621 mullion

New egreements enterad into with Havas

Havas and Universal Music Greup {UMG) announced the following agreements
on September 29, 2014 digital brand integrations n select UMG music videos by using Mirniad's Academy Award-winning video
technology, and
- onJanuary b, 2015 formation of Global Music Data Alhance (GMDA) refated to consumer’s data

1.1.7 Vivend: Village

Vivendi Viilage consists of the following companies as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: Ticketing {with See Tickets and Digstick), Watchever
and Wengo
Watchever

In Gemmany, since the start of the second half of 2014, Vivendi 15 carrying out a transformation plan at Watchever to reduce costs while at
the same time exploring new content and platform monetization models An exceptional provision of £44 million was recorded as of June
30, 2014, reduced by £18 million
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118 Sale of Activision Blizzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered into on October 11, 2013, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares retained by Vivend: were
subject ta a two-tiered lock-up provision

+ from October 11, 2013 until April 9, 2014, Vivend) cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Activision Blizard
shares directly or indirectly, from Apnil 10, untit July 9, 2014, Vivend can sell Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the lesser of (1) 50% of Vivendi’s B3 mullion remaming shares and (1) 9% of the outstanding shares of Activision
Blizzard, and

o from July 10, 2014 untd January 7, 2015, Vivend was subject to another lock-up provision, as from January 7, 2015, Vivendi may
sell its remaining Activision Blizzard sharas without restriction

Considenng the imtial intention of Vivend: Management to sell these shares at the end of the lock-up periods f market conditions were
favorable, the B3 million Activision Blizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vivend: sold a first tranche of 41 5 million Actwision Blizzard shares for $852 miflion {€623 mullion) The €84 million capital
gam s presented 1n "Eamings from discontinued operatrons” Taking into account the capital gain of €123 million recorded i 2013, the
capital gan realized by Vivendi with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 rmillion

As of December 31, 2014, the remaiming interest of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 million (€683 million) was
reclassified In “available-for-sale securities” as Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this interest i the immed:ate future As of
December 31, 2014, the unrealized capital gain with respect to this interest amounted to £273 million {before taxes), directly recogn:zed n
equity

1.1.9 Other

Early redemption of bonds

Following receipt of the cash proceeds from the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014, in order to enhance the structure of its financial position
statement, Vivend: allocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its euro and U'S dollar
denominated bonds that contained a make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of €4 25 illion and $0 6 billion In
addition, Vivend: cancelled all of its existing bank credit facilities for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 hillion bank credit facility, maturtng in
five years (2019), with two one-year renewal options Please refer to Section 5

Distribution to sharsholders

On June 30, 2014, Vivend: SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to its shareholders, from additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of
€1,348 million, considered as a return of capital distribution to shareholders

1 2 Subsequent events

The s:gnificant events that occurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 {the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivend!'s Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014) were as follows

« OnJanuary 19, 2015, following a call for tenders camed out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured exclusive nghts
related to all of the National French Hugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches These rights, which include all seven games on
each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015-2016 to 2018-2019 please refer to
Section 115, and

« n February 2015, Vivendi announced the creation of Vivendi Contents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Belmer, Chief Executive Officer
of Canal+ Group Vivendi Contents will be in charge of the design, leadershtp and development of new content support for music
and visual image, and will manage related investments
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2 Earnings analysis

Prefiminary comments

friday, February 27 2015

In comphiance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014}, SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Marac Telecom group and
Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013) have been reparted in Vivendi's Consohdated Financial Statements as discontinued
operations Vivend: deconsolidated SER, Maroc Telecom group and Actwiston Bhizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and

October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businasses have been reported as follows

- their contribution until the effective divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivendr's Conselidated Statement of Earmings (before non-
controffing interests) has been reported on the line “Earnngs from discontmued operations”,

- accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to alf periods presented ta ensure consistency of nformation, and

- thewr share of net income has been excluded from Vivend:'s adjusted net income

The adiustments to previously publshed data are presented in Appendix 2 to the Financial Report and in Note 31 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

21 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNIRGS
Revenues
Cast of ravenues

Margin from cperations
Sellng general and admxustrativae expanses excluding
amartization of intangible assets acquired through business
COMDINGLons
Restructuning charges and other operating charges and
ncoms
Amartization of intangible assets acquired through busingss
combinations
Impairment losses en intangible assets acquired through
business combinations
Other income
Qthar charges
EBIT
Incoms from equity affibates
Intarast
Income from investments
Other financial Income:
Other financial charges
Earmngs from continumg operations before provision
for income taxes
Prowision for incoms taxes
Earmings from continu:ng operations
Earmings from discontinued opsrations
Earmings
Of which
Earmings attnbutable to Vivends SA shareowners
continuing operations
discontinued operations

Non contralfing intgrests

Eamings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners par
share - basic {in euros)

Earmings attnibutable to Vivend) SA shareowners per
share - diluted (i1n eurcs)

In millions of euros, except per share amounts

Year ended December 31 Yaar anded Decamber 31
2014 2013 {a) 2014 2013 {a)
10,089 10252 10089 10252
{6.321) {6 097} 16121} 16.097)
3,968 4155 3968 4,155
(2811) {3 008) {281n {3008}
{158) 11g2) {i58) {192
{344) (350)
92) 6
03 88
(30) (50}
736 637 939 955
(18) 21} (18} (21}
{96) (266} (96} (266}
3 B8 3 66
19 13
{751) 1300}
o7 129 883 34
) 17 {200} {170}
(230 6
5262 2633
5025 27719 564
4,19 1,967 626 54
(290) Q
5034 1924
281 812 62 110
as2 148 046 034
ast 147 045 034

Revenues

Cost of revenuss

Margen from operations

Selling general and admnistratve expenses excluding
amoruzatian of intangrble assets acquired through business
combinatigns

Restructuring charges and other operaung charges and
Income

EBITA

Income from equity affiliates
Inzerast

Income from investments

Adjusted earnings from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes
Prowision far income taxas

Ad d net before non. thng ests

Of which
Adjusted net income

Non controhing interasts

Adjusted net income per share - basic {in euras}

Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in euros)

a  Data published with respect to the year 2013 has baen adjusted following the application of IFRS 5 {please refer to the prehminary

comment abave)
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2 2 Earnings review

Earmngs attributable to Vivend1 SA shareowners analysis

In 2014, sarnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to €4,744 millien (or €3 52 per share), compared to €1,967 million
{or €1 48 per share) in 2013, a €2,777 milkion increase (x2 4) This ¢change notably included the capital gains on the divestitures of SFR
(€2,378 nmullion), Maroc Telecom (€786 million), Beats [€179 million) and half of the rematning interest in Activision Bhzzard {€84 mulhion), as
well as conversely, premium paid (€642 million} on the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR

Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners for continuing operations, after non-controlling interasts {Canal+ Group,
Universal Music Group and Vivend Village, as well as Corporate) was negative at €230 million in 2014, compared to a €43 million gam in
2013, an unfavorable change of €333 mitlion The €98 million increase in EBIT, notably included the capital gain on the divestiture of Beats
(€179 million}, as weil as the decrease in interest expense (+£170 milion} more than offset by the increase in premium paid on the early
redemption of bonds (€642 million 0 2014 folfowing the sale of SFR, compared to €182 millian 1n 2013 following the sale of 88% of the
interest in Activision Blizzard) and by the income tax expense {-€147 mull:on)

Eamings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners for discontinued operations, after non-controlling interest (SFR, Maroc
Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT), amounted to £5,034 milhion 1n 2014, compared to £1,924 million in 2013, a €3,110 million ncrease In
2014, the amount notably :ncluded the capital gains on the divestitures of SFR (€2,378 million} and Maroc Telecom (€786 mitlion) as well as
the capital gain on the divestiture of half of the remaining nterest in Activision Blizzard (€84 million) In 2013, the amount notably included
the capital gain on the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard (€2,915 mullion), as well as, conversely, the impairment of SFR's
goodwill (-€2,431 milhon)

Adjusted net income analysis

(n 2014, adjusted net income was €626 million {or €0 46 per share®) compared to €454 million in 2013 (€0 34 per share), a €172 million
increase (+37 9%) As a remunder, according to the applicatian of IFRS 5 to SFR, Maroc Telecom, Activision Blizzard, and GVT, the Adjusted
Statement of Earnings presents the results of Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group {UMG) and Vivendi Village's activities, as well as
Corporate costs The increase in adjusted net income notably resulted from

a decrease in interest expense {+£170 millon),

an increase in EBITA (+€44 million),

a decrease in the share of adjusted net income attnbutable to non-controliing interests (+€48 mullion), and

a decrease in income from equity affiliates (+€3 milhion),

partially offset by
+  adecrease in income from investments (-€63 million), and
*  anincrease 1n income tax expense {-€30 million)

Detailed analysis of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were €10,083 million, compared to €10,252 million in 2013 (-1 6%, or -14% at constant currency and penmeter'} For a
breakdown of revenues by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Cost of revenues amounted to €6,121 million, compared to €6,097 rmullion in 2013
Margin from operatrons decreased by €187 million to £€3,968 million, compared to £4,155 million in 2013 (-4 5%

Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding the amortization of mtangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €2,811 mllion, compared to €3,008 miliion in 2013, a £197 million decrease {-6 5%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either i the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortizat:on of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, were
stable at €307 million {compared to €310 million in 2013}, and were notably related to Canal+ Group’s set-top boxes, as well as Studiocanal's
catalogs, films, and television programs

I For the details of adjusted net income per share pleasa refer tg Appendix 1 to this Financial Report

* Constant penmeter reffects the following changes mada in tha consolidation scope
at Canal+ Group 1t excludes the wmpact m 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company (November 22 2013} of Mediaserv {February 13 2014} and of Thema
{Qctaber 28, 2014), and

- atUMG 1t excludes the impacts m 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repertoire

Financial Report and Audited Consokdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Vivend /14




Fnday February 27, 2015

EBITA was €339 million, compared to €855 milhon in 2013, a €44 million increase {+4 6%) At constant currency, EBITA mcereased by
€46 millon (+4 8%) At constant currency and permater, EBITA increased by €74 million (+8 1%) This change pnmanly reflected the
increase In Universal Music Group's EBITA (+€58 miltion at constant currency), notably dee to the decrease in restructuning and integration
costs (-€78 mithon) For a breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Restructuning charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of €158 mullion (compared to a net charge of
€192 miilion in 2013) They notably included restructuring charges for €104 million, a €12 million decrease compared to 2013, the decrease
in UMG’s restructuring charges for €64 miliion was offset by the €44 million provision recorded as of June 30, 2014 with respect to
Watchever's transformation plan in Germany, reduced by €18 million

EBIT was €736 million, compared to €637 million in 2013, a €99 million increase (+1%5 6%) This amount included

«  amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €344 million, compared to €350 mullion in 2013, a
€6 million decrease,

= mpairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations for €92 mullion, compared to €6 million in 2013 In
2014, they related to goodwll attributable to Digitick (€43 million) and Wengo (€48 mullion), and

»  other charges and income for €173 million of net income and primanily included the capitat gan on the sale of UMG's interest in
Beats (€179 mulion} In 2013, other charges and income were a net income of €38 million and neluded the gain related to the
dilution of Universal Music Group's interest dilution in Veve (€18 million)

Income from equity affiliates amounted to €18 m:llion, compared to €21 million in 2013

Interast was an expense of €96 million, compared to €266 millron 1n 2013, a €170 million decrease {-64 1%)

in 2014, interest expense on borrowings amounted to €283 milion, compared to €434 mithon in 2013 This €211 mithion decrease was
attributable for (1) €167 milion, to the decrease in the average outstanding borrowings to €3 7 billion 1n 2014 {compared to €15 3 billion 1n
2013} and (1) €44 mithon, to the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 2 94% in 2014 (compared to 3 22% in 2013) The
early redemption of bonds for an aggregate amount of €3 btflion carned out in October and November 2013 following the sale of 88% of the
interest in Activision Blizzard, as well as the redemption, at maturity, of other bonds for €700 million in October 2013 and €894 mullion n
January 2014, resulted in a €191 million reduction i nterest compared o 2013 The bond redemptions for €4 7 balhon in December 2014
following to the sale of SFR will only have an impact in 2015, interest expense on remaining bonds {€1,950 million as of December 31, 2014}
amounted to €61 miliron in 2014, similar to 2013

Moreover, as a result of the application of IFRS 5 to GVT and SFR, interest expense was reported net of interests received by Vivendi SA on
the financings granted to SFR and GV, at market conditions, for €172 million in 2014 {compared to €222 million in 2013}

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €15 million in 2014, compared to €6 mithion i 2013 This change was
related to the increase in average cash and cash equivalents to €2 1 billion in 2014 (compared to €0 6 bilbon in 2013), which reflected the
impact of the sales of businesses

For a breakdown of the impact of the sales carried out in 2014 on Vivendi's treasury, please refer to Section 5 of this Financial Report

Income from investments amounted to €3 million, compared to €66 million in 2013 1t included interest income and dividends received
fram unconsohdated companies In 2013, it included interest mcome paid by PLG for €10 mllion and the dividend paid by Beats to UMG for
€54 mithon

Other financial charges and income were a net charge of €732 mullion, compared to a net charge of €287 mithon in 2013, a €445 mitlion
increase |n 2014, they mainly included the premium paid (€642 millien} with respect to the early redemption of the bonds following the sale
of SFR In 2013, they mainly included the premium paid (€182 milhion) with respect to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of
88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard Please refer to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
204

Eamings from continuing operations before provision for meome taxes amounted to a €107 million loss, compared to a €129 million
gain n 2013, an unfavorable change of €236 million

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €200 million, compared to €170 mullion wn 2013, a €30 million
increase (+17 7%) In 2013, income tax expense included certain non-recurring items (+£149 million}, which reflected the change, dunng
2013, to the assessment of nisks refated to previous years' income taxes The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income was at
22 0% in 2014 (compared to 22 5% in 2013}

In addition, provision for income taxes was a net charge of €130 million, compared to a net gam of €17 milhon 1 2013 In addition to the
non-recurnng items, which explain the increase in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this €147 million unfavorable impact
reflected the change in tax savings related to Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System, which was a £110 million income in 2014, compared to a
€254 million income :n 2013 This change was notably attributable to the entry of Canal+ France in Vivendi SA's Tax Group System in 2013
{an income of €258 million, of which €123 million related to current tax savings realized in 2013 and €129 million related to deferred tax
savings expected in 2014} The exit of SFR from Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System was anticipated at the end of 2013, hence had no impact on
tax savings for 2014
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Earmings from discontinued operations {before non-controlling interests) amounted te €5,262 million, compared to £2,633 milion in
2013 They primanty included

+ with respect to SFR, the capital gain on its sale on November 27, 2014 (€2,378 million, after taxes) as well as net earmings unti}
the effective divestiture date {€1,299 million, before non-controlling interests), which compnsed the discontinuation® of the
amortization of tangible and intangible assets since Apnl 1, 2014 (impact of +£1.088 milion for the perad from Apnt 1 to
November 27, 2014} In 2013, SFR's net eamings were -€2,004 million, after a -€2,431 million loss related to the goodwill
Impairment,

s with respect to GVT, net earmings of €304 rmllion in 2014, compared to €89 muthon in 2013 GVT's net eamings comprised the
discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets since September 1, 2014, in compliance with IFRS § {(impact
of +£116 milhion for the penod),

» with respect to Maroc Telecom group, the capital gain on its sale on May 14, 2014 (€786 million) as well as net earnings until the
effective divestiture date (€407 million, before non-controlling intarests), which comprised the discontinuation of amortization of
tangible and intangible assets since July 1, 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5 {impact of +£181 million for 2014, compared to
+€245 mullien for 2013) In 2013, Maroc Telecom group’s net earnings were €782 million, before non-controlling interests and
before deferred taxes related to its expected sale (-€86 million), and

« with respect to Activision Bhizzard, the capital gain on the divestiture of 41 S million Activision Blizzard shares on May 22, 2014
(€84 mullion) In 2013, 1t notably included the capital gain on the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard on October 11,
2013 (€295 millign) and Activision Blizzard's net eamings until the effective date of divestiture (€692 million, before non-
controlling interests)

Please refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Eamings attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €281 mill:on, compared to €812 milhen i 2013, 2 €531 mill:ion dacrease
{-654%) This change was pnmarily attributabile to the sale of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013 {-€269 million) and the sale of Maroc
Telecom group on May 14, 2014 (-€222 mullion) This change also included a favorable impact for Canal+ Group related to the acquisition of
non-controlling interests on November 5, 2013 (-€75 millton} partially offset by the increase in eamings of nc+ in Poland {(+€27 mullton)

Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €62 mullion, compared to €110 million n 2013, a
€48 million decrease resulting from the changes in Canal+ Group’s non-contralling interest

The reconciliation of eamings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners to adjusted net income 1s further described in Appendx
to this Financial Report In 2014, this reconciliztion primarily included earmings from discontinued operations {+£5,034 million, after non-
controlling interests] The reconciliation also included the premum paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of the honds
{-€698 million), the capital gain on the sale of Beats {+£179 million} as well as the amortization and impairment of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations (-€327 miflion, after taxes) in 2013, this reconciliaton primarly included eamings from discontinued
operations {(+£1,924 million, after non-controlling interests) offset by the amortization and impaiment of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations (-E246 rmilhon, after taxes), as well as the premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds
{-€202 mullion)

5\When an aperation 1s discontinued IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortizetion of the operation’s tangible and intangibie assets Therefore for SFR, reported a5 @
adiscontinued operation since March 31 2014 Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets as from the second quarter of 2014
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2.3 QOutlook for 2015

Prelimnary comments. The outiook presented below regarding revenues, income from operations, income from operations margin rates,
adjusted net income as well as distributions and share repurchases 1s based on data, assumptions, and estimates considered as reasonable
by Vivendr Management They are subject to change or modification due to uncertainties related m particular to the economic, financial,
competitive ano/or regulatory environment as well as the impact of certan transactions, if any In addition, the matenaiization of certain
risks described in Section 6 of this report could have an impact on the group’s operations and its ability to achieve its outlook Finafly,
Vivend considers that the non-GAAP measures, income from operations, income from operations margin rates, and adyusted net income are
relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performarnce

Vivendi expects & slight increase in revenues thanks to the growth of UMG's streaming and subscription activities and Canal+ Group's
intematignal operations 2015 income from operations margin should be close to 2014 level Vivend also expects an increase in its adjusted
net income of approximately 10%, mainly thanks to lower restructuning charges and decrease In Interest expenses

In addition, it will be proposed to the Annual Sharehalders” Meeting to be held on Apnl 17, 2015 that an ordinary dividend of €1 be paid with
respect to 2014%, comprising €0 20 relative to the Group's business performance and a €0 80 retum to shareholders as a result of the
disposals of assets

The objective 15 to maintain this distribution level for the fiscal years 2015 and 2016, representing an additional return to shargholders of
€2 billion

In addition to this distnbution, a share repurchase program 1s planned to be launched, within the legat Imit of 10% of the share capital, for
approximately €2 7 bilhion in accordance with the market regulations on share repurchases The program will run over a period of 18 months

In total, the return to shareholders could reach approximately €5 7 billion by mud-2017 in addition to the €1 3 billon paid in 2014

& With an sx-distribution date of Apni 21 2015 and a payrment date of April 23 2015
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3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comments

»  The non-GAAP measuras cash flow from operations (CFFO), cash flow from operations before capital expenditures (CFFO before capex,
net), and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes (CFAIT} should be considered i addition to, and not as substitutes for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidsted Financial Statements and the related
notes or as described in the Financial Report, and Vivend: considers that they are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and
financial performance

e [n comphance with IFRS 5. GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR [as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom
group and Actvision Bhizzard {as from the second guarter of 2013) have been reported as discontinued operations Vivend:
deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013,
respectively

In practice, income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

their contribution until the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the line “Cash flows from discontinued operatians”,

in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been appited to all perads presented to ensure consistency of information, and

- their cash flow from operations {CFFO), cash flow from oparations before capital expenditures (CFFQ before capex, netf and cash
flow from eparations after interest and income taxes (CFAIT) have been excluded from Vivendi's CFFO. CFFO bafare capex, net and
CFAIT

In 2014, cash flow from operations [CFFQ} generated by business segments was €843 million (compared to E894 mullion in 2013}, a
€51 mullion decrease {-5 8%) Camital expenditures remained stable at €243 million (compared to €245 million 1n 2013) and included the
acquisition of set-top boxes by Canal+ Group for €415 million {compared to €133 million n 2013) Moreover, in 2013, CFFO wmcluded
dividends {€54 million} paid by Beats, sold in August 2014 Excluding dwidends received and caprtal expenditures, net cash prowided by
operating activities before income tax paid amounted to €1,079 miilion {(compared to €1,082 million in 2013)

In 2014, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) was €421 million (compared to €503 milkion 1n 2013), a
€82 million decrease

Cash payments related to financial activities amounted to £702 mitlion {compared to €536 milion in 2013), a €106 mifhion increase In 2014,
they pnmanly included the premium paid (€642 million) related to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of SFR In 2013, they
mainly included the premwm paid (€182 million) refated to the early redemption of bonds following the sale of 88% of the nterest in
Activision Blizzard Moreover, cash payments refated to financial activities included interest paid, net for €96 million {compared to
€266 million 1n 2013}, a decrease of €170 million, and the results on foreign exchange risk hedging {2 €47 midlion gain in 2014, compared to
a €142 mvlhlon loss 1n 2013)

Cash flows related to income taxes were made up of a £280 million inflow 1 2014, compared with €205 m:llion (0 2013 These amounts
notatly inciuded refunds receved by Vivend: SA related to previous years (€366 million in 2014 with respect to 2011 Consohdated Global
Profit Tax System and €201 mullion recesved in 2013 with respect to 2012 Vivend SA's Tax Group System) In 2013, the amount of taxes paid
included the additional contribution of 3% on the dividend paid by Vivendi SA (€40 mifhon)

Financtal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 Vivends /18




{in miliions of euros}

Revenues

Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amartizatton

EBITDA

Restructuring charges paid

Content investments net

of which film and telewsion rights, net at Canat+ Group

Acquisition of film and telavision nghts
Consumption of film and television rights

of which sports nghts, net et Canak Group
Acquisition of sports rights
Consumption of sports nghts

of which payments to artists and repertowre owners, net at UMG
Fayments to artists and repertoire owners
Recoupment of advances and other movements

Neutrahzation of change in prowvisions included in operating expenses
Qther cash oparating items
Other changes in net working capital
Nat cash provided by operating activities before mcome tax pard
Dividends recesved from equity affiliates
Dmvdends receved from unconsolidated companies
Cash flow from operations, before capital expenditures, net (CFFQ befare capex, net)
Capital expenditures net {capex net)

flow from operations (CFFO
Interest paid, net
Other cash items related to financial activities
of which premium pard on early bonds redemption

gains/flosses) on currency transactions

Financial activities cash payments
Payment receved from the French State Treasury as part of the Vivend) SA's French Tax Group
and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems
Other taxes paid
Incoma tax (paidi/recaived, net

Cash flow from operstions after nterest and income tax paid (CFAIT])

na not appheable

Friday February 27, 2015

Year ended December 33,

2014 20131a) % Change
10,069 10262 -16%
(8,646) 18,797) +17%
(b} 1,443 1,455 8%
(84) (105} +20 2%
19 (148) na
{604} {738) +18 1%
713 743 471%
169 5 xi87
{818 (714) -144%
801 759 +55%
{17} 45 na
{554) {539} +75%
613 561 +32%
59 {38) na
{154) (78 -97 9%
[22) {78) +72 3%
123) 36 na
i) 1,079 1,082 2%
(o) 4 3 +323%
Id} 3 54 96 1%
1.085 1,139 -3 7%
(e [243) {245} +09%
843 894 -5 8%
(f (96) {266) 64 1%
if (606} {330 841%
1642} {182) x33
47 {142) na
702) {596) §7 8%
366 201 +#821%
(86) 4 na
fc) 280 205 +36 6%
421 503 -16 4%

a Data published with respect to fiscal year 2013 has been adjusted followsing the application of IFRS 5 [please refer to the preliminary

comments above)

b EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, is descnbed in Section 4 of this Financial Report

¢ As presented in net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer

to Section 5 3}

d As presented in net cash prowided byAused for) investing activities of continuing operaticns in the Financial Net Debt changes tabie

|please refer to Section 5 3)

e Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as
presented In the investing activities of continuing operations n the Financial Net Debt changes table {please refer to Section 5 3}

f As presented In net cash provided by/{used for) financial activities of continuing operations In the Financial Net Debt changes table

(please refer to Section 5 3}
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4 Business segment performance analysis

Prefiminary comments

Vivend) Management evaluates the performance of Vivendr's business segments and allocates the nacessary resources to them based
on certawn operating performance indicators, notably the non-GAAP measures EBITA (Adjusted Earmngs Bsfore Interest and Income
Taxes), and income from operations

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acqiired through business combinations, the
impatrment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combmations, and EBIT's “other charges” and “other income”
as defined in Note 1 2 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yvear ended December 31, 2014

As defined by Vivend:, income from operations 1s calculated as EBITA as presented i the Adjusted Statement of Earnings, before
share-based compsnsatien costs related to equity-settfed plans, and special items due to thew unusual nature or particular
significance (please refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report)

Meareover, 1t should be noted that other compames may define and calculate EBITA, and income from operations differently from
Vivend:, thereby affecting comparabiiity

in complrance with IFRS 5, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014}, SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom
group and Actision Blizzard {as from the secand quarter of 2013) have been reported as discontinued operations In practice, income
and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

- therr contribution untif the effective divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivendr's Consoiidated Statement of Earmings (bafore non-
controlling interests) has been reported on the hine “Farmings from discontinued operations”,

- in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all psrnods presented to ensure consistency of information,
and

- their share of net income has been excluded fram Vivendr's adjustad net income

Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actrvision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11,
2013, respectively
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41 Revenues, EBITA and cash flow from operations by business segment

Year ended December 31

% Change at
% Change at constant rate and

(i rulhions of euros} 2014 2013 % Change constant rate perimeter {a}
Ravenues
Canah Group 5456 531 +27% +2 6% 4%
Unwersal Music Greup 4567 4,886 -67% 55% -38%
Vivendi Vitlage 9% 7
Elimination of intersegment transactions 20} {16)
Total Vivendi 10,089 10,252 -16% -1 1% -1 4%
EBITA
Canal+ Group 583 611 47% -4 8% 3%
Universal Music Group 565 5 +107% +113% +20 2%
Vivendi Village {79 (80)
Corparate 7o) {87)
Total Vivend 939 955 +1 6% +4 8% +8 1%
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
{in millions of euros) 2014 2013 % Change constant rate
Cash flow from operations, before capital expenditures, net (CFFQ before capex, net}
Canal+ Group 722 689 +4 6%
Universal Music Group 471 611 -22 8%
Vivend Village {38 {72}
Carporate {59) (89)
Total Vivend: 1,086 1,139 ] 7%
Cash flow from operations {CFFO)
Canak+ Group 531 478 +111% +109%
Universal Music Group 425 585 7 3% -218%
Yivend Village (a4 {80}
Corporate 69) (89)
Total Vivends 843 894 -5 8% -64%

a Constant penmeter reflects the following changes made n the consolidation scope

- at Canal+ Group 1t excludes the wmpacts 1 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company (on November 22, 2013) of

Mediaserv {on February 13, 2014) and of Thema {on October 28, 2014}, and

- atUMG it excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repertoire
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4 72 Comments on the operating performance of business segments

421 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
% Change at constant rate and

{in mullions of euros} 04 2013 % Change constant rate penmeter (a}
Pay-TV in Mainland France 3454 3544 26% -26% 26%
Free-to-ar TV 1n Mamland France 196 172 +14B% +14 8% +14 8%
Internatignal Pay-TV 1,273 1122 +135% +134% +66%
Studtocanal 533 473 +12 5% +11 6% +2 8%
Total Revenues 5,456 5311 +2 1% +2 6% +0.4%
Income from operations 618 660 -64% -6 6% -8 6%
Income from pperations’ margin 113% 124%
Charges related to
equity settled share based compensation plans {3) (12)
Other special items excluded from income from operations
{including transition and restructuring costs) (32) (37)
EBITA 533 611 -4 7% -4.8% -6.3%
EBITA margin 107% 115%
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ) 531 478 +111% +10.9%
Canal+ Group's Pay-TV
Individual subscribers (1n thousands)
Maintand France 6,062 6,091 -29
International 4,986 4,352 634

Poland 2 146 2197 51

Overseas 494 485 +9

Africa 1,552 1.063 +463

Vigtnam 734 587 +207
Total Canal+ Group 11,M=B' 1% +605
Subscriptions (in thousands)
Mainland France (b) 9463 9534 ol
International 5,886 5137 +749
Total Canal+ Group 1@ 14,61 +678
Mainland France Pay-TV
Chuen, per individual subscriber with commitment 14 5% 14 9% Dapt
Net ARPU, in euros per individual subscriber with commutrnent 440 442 05%
Muiniand Fr; Frog-to-air T's rating ghar,
08 33% 32% +1pt
017 12% 13% 0tpt
>Tel 09% 0 8% )1 pt
Total 5.4% 53% +01pt

———

a  Constant penmeter excludes the smpacts in 2014 of the acquisitions of Red Production Company {on Novemnber 22, 2013), of Mediaserv

{on February 13, 2014) and of Thema {on October 28, 2014)

& Includes indwidual and collective subscriptions with commitment and without commitment (Canal+, Canalsat and Canalplay}

¢ Source Médiamétrie Population four years and older
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Revenues and EBITA
Canal+ Group's revenues amounted to £5,456 million, a 2 7% increase compared to 2013 {+0 4% at constant penimeter and currency)

At the end of December 2014, Canal+ Group had a total of 15 3 milhon subscriptions, an increase of 678,000 year-on-year, notably thanks to
strong performance in Afnica and Vietnam, as well as the growth in mainland France of Canalplay, its subscription video on demand offer
For the first time, the total number of individual subscribers exceeds 11 mitlion, compared to 10 4 mitlion at the end of 2013

Revenues from pay-TV operations in mamnland France were impacted by the higher VAT rate, which increased from 7% to 10% on January 1,
2014 Pay-TV revenues outside of mamland France showed significant growth thanks to a portfolio increase, notably in Africa

Advertising revenues were up due to higher audience ratings especially at 1>Télé and D8, which was ranked as the fifth most watched
French national channel in 2014

Studiocanal’s revenues grew significantly, thanks to strong theatncal releases and nghts sales (tetevision and subscription wideo-on-
demand}, including Paddington, Imitation Game, Non-Stop and RoboCop, as well as the ramping up of the TV senes production business
with Red m Great Britain and Tandem in Germany

Canal+ Group’s EBITA was €583 million, compared to €611 million at the end of 2013 This change mainly reflected the VAT increase in
France, partially offset by strong results in other countries
Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Canal+ Group’s cash flow from operations amounted to €531 mullion in 2014, compared to €478 million n 2013, a €53 milhon increase This
change mainly resulted from a decrease in net content investments and net capital expenditures, partially offset by an unfavorable change in
EBITDA after changes in net working capital and transition costs paid
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422 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Fnday February 27 2015

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
% Change at constant rate and

{in milhons of euras) 2014 2013 % Change constant rate penmeter (a)

Prysical sales 1417 1665 149% -13 5% -12 2%

Digital sales 163 1705 41% 28% 04%

License and other 635 522 +2 1% +2 6% 15 0%
Recorded music 3688 3992 -16% -6 4% 44%
Music pubhishing 673 655 +2 8% +4 2% +4 2%
Merchandising and other 232 m -149% i50% -15 0%
Elwmination of intersegment transactions {36) {34}
Total Revenues 4,557 4 886 -6 1% -5 6% -3.8%
Income from oparations 606 636 -4 6% -3.8% +2.3%
Income from operations” margmn 133% 170%
Charges retated to
equity-settled share-based compensation plans 12} {6}
Special tems excluded from income from operations
(including integraton and restructunng costs) (39) {119}
EBITA 565 1 +107% +11.3% +20 2%
EBITA margin 124% 105%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 425 585 -27 3% -218%
Recorded music rovenues by geographical area
Europe % 39%
North America 9% 0%
Asia 1% 12%
Rest of the world 9% 9%

100% 100%

a  Constant penmeter excludes the impacts in 2013 of operating the Parlophone Label Group repertoire

Recorded music sales of physical and digital supports (albums, tracks, DVDs and streaming}, th miflions of equivalent albumn

unmits

Artist 2014 Artist 2013
Frozen 100 Eminem 83
Taylor Swift B8 KatyPerry 60
Sam Smith 46 Rihanna 19
Katy Perry 42 Imagine Dragons 44
Maroon § 37 LukeBryan 4
Anana Grande 36 LadyGaGa 40
Eminem 35 Drake 39
Lana Del Rey 30 Justin Bieher 38
Helene fischer 29 Taylor Swift 36
Lorde 2% The Beatles 34
Total 472  Total 464
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Revenues and EBITA

Universal Music Group's (UMG) revenues were £4,557 million, down 5 6% at constant currency (-6 7% at actual currency) compared to 2013
Excluding the impact of Parlophane Label Group (divested in 2013 as part of the EMI Recorded Music acquisition remedies) and at constant
currency, UMG's revenues were down 3 8% compared to 2013 due to the rapid transformation of the recorded music industry

Recorded music digital sales were flat compared to 2013 at constant currency and perimeter, as significant growth i subscription and
streaming revenues offset the decline in digital download sales However, total recorded music revenues declined due to the continued
industry decline in physical sales

In the United States, UMG had the top three albums of the year Disney's "Frozen” soundtrack, Taylor Swift’s "1989" and Sam Smuth's “In
The Lonely Hour” Including track and stream equivalent albums, UMG had the top six, adding Anana Grande "My Everything”, Katy Perry
“Prism” and Lorde “Pure Herane” In France, UMG had the top three albums of the year from Stromae, Indila and Kendy Girac Globally,
recorded music best sellers for 2014 included sales from the Disney "Frozen” soundtrack, the new release from Taylor Swift, the
breakthrough releases from Sam Smith, Anana Grande and 5 Seconds Of Summer and carryover sales from Katy Perry and Lorde

Reflecting this success, UMG won 33 awards and swept all four major categories at the 57th Annual Grammy Awards in February 2015 Sam
Smith receved three of the four major awards for Record of the Year, Song of the Year and Best New Artist and Beck won for Album of the
Year

UMG's EBITA was €565 million, up 11 3% at constant currency {+10 7% at actual currency) compared to 2013 and up 20 2% excluding last
year's contribution from divested Farlophone Label Group The favorable performance reflected the benefit of cost management and lower
restructuring and integratton costs that more than offset the dechine in revenues

Cash flow from operations (CFFO}

UMG's cash flow from operations amaunted to €425 milhien {compared to €585 mithon in 2013) In 2013, cash flow from operations
benefited from exceptional proceeds in relation to an insurance settlement, property disposats and dividends (€54 million} from its interest in
Beats, divested in August 2014 UMG's cash flow from operatrons was also impacted by the unfavorable changes in working capital related
to the phasing of d:gital income receipts and royalty payments
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4,23 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of eurcs) 2014 2013

Dugrtick 15 13
See Tickets 36 K]l
Watchever 26 12
Wengo 19 15
Total Revenues 9% 71
Income from operations {34) {78)
EBITA {79) {80)
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) {44) {80)

Revenues and EBITA

Vivend: Village's revenues amounted to €96 million, an increase of €25 millien t included revenues from Digitick (€15 million, compared to
€13 milion in 2013}, See Tickets (€36 mullion, compared to €31 million n 2013}, Watchever (€26 million, compared to €12 million n 2013),
and Wengo {€19 milion, compared to €15 millign 1n 2013)

Vivend: Village's EBITA amounted to -€79 million, compared to -€80 mullion in 2013 In 2014, it was notably impacted by Watchever's
restructuning charges in Germany {-€44 mullion)

Cash flow from operations (CFFO}

Vivend Village's cash flow from operations amounted to -€44 million, compared to -€80 milion in 2013 This change was mainly related to
the change in EBITDA

424 Corporate

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2014 2013

Income from operations {82) (87}

EBITA {70 {87)

Cash flow from operatians {CFFQ) {69) (89)
EBITA

Corporate EBITA was -€70 million (compared to -€87 million in 2013), an increase of €17 million This increase was pnmanly due to the
decrease in operating expenses and 10 non-recurnng items related to pensions
Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -€69 million, compared to -€89 million in 2013 This change was mainly attributable to
the change n EBITA

425 GVT (discontinued operation)

GVT's revenues were €1,765 million, a 12 8% ncrease at constant currency compared to 2013 This performance was driven by continuous
growth of the core segment (retail and SME), which increased 14 1% at constant currency, including a 56 8% year-on-year increase in pay-
TV This service, which now represents 14 2% of GVT's total revenues, had 858,860 pay-TV subscribers, reflecting a 33 6% increase
compared to 2013

GVT pursued #s expansion in Brazil in a controlled and targeted manner and launched its services in Six additional cities durning 2014 It now
aperates in 156 cities in the South, Southeast, Midwest and Northeast regions in Brazl

GVT's EBITDA was €702 million, & 8 4% increase at constant currency compared to 2013 Its EBITDA margin reached 39 8% {41 4% for its
telecom activities alone), which 1s the highest margin 1n the Brazilian telecom operator market

Financial Report and Audited Consalidated Financal Statements for the year ended December 31 2014 Vivend /26




Friday February 27 2015

5 Treasury and capital resources

Preliminary comments.

. Vivend: considers Financial Net Debt and Net Cash Fosition, non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators in measuring Vivendi's
treasury and capital resources position

- Financial Net Debt 1s calculated as the sum of long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial iabilities as reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Posttion, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
FPosttion as well as derrvatve financial mstruments i assets and cash deposits backing borrowngs {included i the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Positron under “financial assets”)

- Net Cash Position is calculated as the sum of cash and cash equivalents as reparted on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posttion, dervative financial instruments in assets, and cash deposits backing borrowings (included m the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position under “financial assets™} less long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial iabitties

s Financial Net Debt and Net Cash Position should be considered in addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures as
presented m the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posttion, as well as ather measures of indebtedness reported in accordance with
GAAP. and Vivendr considers that they are relevant indicators of treasury and capital resources position of the group Vivend:
Management uses these indicators for reporting, managernent, and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants
of Vwvend

*  inadditton, cash and cash equivalents are not fully available for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes, mcluding but
not hmited to business acquistiions, capital expenditures, dhvidend payments, share repurchases, payments of contractual obligations and
working capital

51 Summary of Vivendi's exposure to credit and liquidity risks

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend has a Net Cash Posrtion of €4,637 milhon {including cash and cash equivalents for €6,845 million and
bonds for £1,950 mithon), compared to a Financial Net Debt of £11,097 millien as of Gecember 31, 2013 (including bonds for £7,827 million,
bank credit facilities for €2,075 million and commercial papers for €1,906 million), a €15,734 milhion favorable impact

In May 2014, Vivendi completed the sale of its 53% interest in Maro¢ Telecom group for £€4,338 million and sold 41 5 million Activiston
Blizzard shares for €623 million Vivend: notably used this cash to redeem its drawn bank credit faciities and to pay an ordnary distribution
of €1 per share to its shargholders from additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of €1,348 million

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of SFR to Numericable Group {please refer to Section 1 1 2) Cash proceeds received from
the sale amounted to €13,166 million, or €13,500 milhien, net of the price adjustments {-€134 mitlion} and of Vivendi's contribution to the
financing of the acquisttion of Virgin Mobile by Numericable Group {-€200 millson)

At that datg, to further enhance its balance sheet, Vivend: allocated a portion of the sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight
tranches of its euro and US dollar denominated bonds that had a make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of
€4 25 biltion and $0 6 tilhon This transaction, completed i December 2014, resulted in a net cash payment of a €642 million 1n addition to
the principal amount of €4 7 billion

In addition, on Naovember 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivendi cancelled all of its existing bank
credit facilities for €7 1 billion and set up a rew €2 ilhon bank credit faciity, matuning m five years (2019), with two one-year renewal
options As of December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

As a reminder, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €375 million, maturing in March 2016, was 1ssued in connection with Vivend:'s appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment [please refer to Section B} This letter of credit 1s guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 intemational banks with
which Vivendi signed a Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivend: to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credit On July 16, 2014, Vivend: strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement
Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €975 mullion in an escrow account This cash deposit could be used in priority against a claim made
against Vivend:, if any, and if the banks were called with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which significantly reduced the letter of
credit’s financing cost, resulted in a €975 million decrease (n the group’s Net Cash Position Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-bafance sheet financial commitment, with no impact on Vivendi's Financtal Net Debt

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend! had €6,845 million in cash and cash eguivalents, prnmanily comprised of menetary UCITS, term deposits
and interest-bearing current accounts
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In addition, on September 18, 2014, Vivendi and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of GVT The agreement represents a total
enterprise value of €7 45 bnllion {an the basis of stock market prices and exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiation agreements
were entered into with Telefonica) The transaction 1s expected to close during the second quarter of 2015 After taking into account the
estimated tax impact, GYT's extemal debt and the price adjustments at closing of the transaction, the expected net proceeds upon the sale
15 expected to amount to approximately €3 8 billion (please refer to Section 11 3)

Cash and cash Borowings and other
equivalents financial tems (a] Financial Net Debt

{in midions of euros) 9 ncial flems ia
Financial Neot Debt as of December 31, 2013 (1.041) 12,138 11,087
Outflows/Ainftows) related to continuing operations

Operating actnaties {1,358) . {1359}

Investing activities {16 326) 28 {16 300

Financing activities 11128 9212) 1916
Fereign cumency translation adjustments of continng operations (10) (_I_)_ {11}
Outflows/Linflows} related to continuing operations (6.557) {9.187} {15,754}
Outflows/{inftows) related to discontinued operations 560 {450} 110
Rectassification of discontinued operations' Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2014 203 {293} @}_
Change related to discontinued operations 763 (783} 20
Financial Net Debt / (Net Cash Position) as of December 31, 2014 (6,845) 2208 (4,637}

a  "Other financial tems” include commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, denvatve financial instruments (assets and
liabilities) and cash deposits backed to borrowings
Financial Net Debt change duning fiscal year 2014

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend! had a Net Cash Position of €4,637 million, compared to a Financial Net Debt of €11,097 million as of
December 31, 2013), a €15,734 million favorable impact

This change notably reflected

» proceeds from the sales completed during fiscal year 2014 for €179 billon They prnmanly included net proceeds of
€13,166 million from the sale of SFR, €4,138 million from the sale of Vivendi's 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group, €623 million
from the sale of 41 5 mitlion Activision Blizzard shares, and €221 million from the sale of UMG's interest in Beats,

= cash provided by operating activities of continuing aperations’ {€1,359 rllion),
+  cash receved from the exercise of stock options by the executive management and smployess (€197 million), and
»  restatement of GVT's Financial Net Debt as a discontinued operation (€217 million),
partially offset by
= the cash outflow related to the €1 per share distribution made to Vivends SA shareowners {€1,348 million),

o  the placing of cash deposits tn relation to the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment (€975 million) and to the securities’ class
action 1n the United States (€45 million),

«  cash payments related to financial activities (E702 million), of which €542 million related to the early redemption of bonds and
€96 milhon related to net interest paid,

«  acquisitions (€303 millron) made by Canal+ Group for an aggregate amount of €244 million (pnmarily compnised of acquisitions of
Mediaserv, Thema, and of an additional 9% interest in N-Vision) and by UMG for an aggregate amount of €59 midl:on {notahly
included the acquisition of Eagle Rock and the cantribution to Vevo's share capital increase), and

¢ cash outflows related to capital expenditures from continuing operations’ (€243 million)

? Continuing operations melude Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group Vivend: Viflage and Corporate
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As of December 31, 2014, Vivendi's Net Cash Position, in IFRS, amounted to €4,637 million

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to an aggregate of €6,845 mllion, placed pnmanly in manetary

UCITS (€4,754 million} and in term deposits and mterest-bearing current accounts (€1,851 million)

Moreaver, borrowings and other financial liabiities amounted to €2,208 mullion {compared to €12,138 million as of December 31, 2013}, a
£9,930 mithon decrease following the redemptions of borrowings carned out durning fiscal year 2014 €5,564 million in bonds, €1,655 mitiion

1n bank credit fac:lities and €1,906 million in commercial papers

As of December 31, 2014, the group’s bonds amounted to €1,950 million, compared to €7,827 milhon as of December 31, 2013 In 2014,
Vivendi redeemed at matunty a €894 million bond, SFR’s £300 mill:on bond, and early redeemed bonds with make-whole options, of which

£€4,250 mllion 1 euro denominated bonds, and $595 million (€420 million) related to US dollar denominated bonds

Refer to Notes to the December 31 7014

Consohidated (@) December 31 2013

(in mllions of exros] Financial Statements
Borrowings and other financial l:abilities 2 2347 12 266
of which long-term () 2074 8737
short-term (b) 273 3,529
Denvatve financial nstruments in assets (c) (139} {126)
Cash deposits backing borrowings (c} - {2}
2,208 12,138
Cash and cash equivalents (b} {6,845) {1,041)
Financial Net Dabt / {Net cash position) {4,637} 11,097

a  As of Dacember 31, 2014, in comphiance with IFRS 5, Vivend:'s Net Cash Position does not include the external Financial Net Debt of

GVT (€217 mullion)

b Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
¢ Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financral Position
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Vear ended December 31 2014

Zi::: impact on cash and Impact on borrowings I mpact on Financial
cash equivalents and cther financial items Net Debt
fsn enitfions of euros)
EBIT Z ) - 1738)
Adjustments (447) (447]
Content investments net 3 19} {19)
Gross cash provided by operating activities befors income tax paid f1.202) - (1.202)
Other changes in net working capital 123 123
Not cash provided by operating actrvibes hefare income tax pard 3 f1,079) - (1o78)
Income tax pard net 3 1280 (280)
Net cash provided by opersting actvities of continuing operations 11,359} {1,359)
Net cash provided by operating actmities of discontinued operations [2234) 12234)
tin (3,593} - {3.583)
Financial investments
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash 100 116 216
of which imestments realized by Canals Group 1 - £ 81
investments realized by UMG 1 4 2t 15
Investments in equity afhliates 87 87
of which investments reakzed by Canals Group 683 53
investments realized by UMG 24 24
Incresse in financial assets 1057 1057
of which cash depos:it refated to Vivend: s appeal against the Liberty Media judgment [ a5 §75
cash deposit refatet 1o Securitias Class Action n the United States ] 45 45
Total financial investments 1244 e 1350
Financiat divestmerts
Proceeds from sales of consoldated companies after divested cash (16 529) {90 (17019
of which cash proceeds from the sale of SFR ' 13356} {13 356)
financing of Virgmn Mobdle acquisition 1 200 200
SR s net cash deconsoiidated 133 89) 4
proceeds from the sale of the 53% mterest in Maroe Telecom group 1 {4 138) {4 138)
Decrease in financial assets (878) {878)
of wiich proceeds from tha sale of 41 5 muthon Actrasion Bluracd shares 1 {623) {623)
proceads from tha sale of UMG s interest in Beats 1 221) 221
Totsl financial divestments {17.807) (90} (17.897)
Financial investment activities {16,553} % (15,537}
Dividends recewved from equity affiliates 14 4
Diidensds recesved from unconsohdated compames {21 12)
Net investing activities excluding capital expenditures, net {16 569} 2% {16,543}
Capital expenditures 249 219
Proceeds from sales ¢f property plant equipment and intangible assets {6} &
Capital axpenditures net 3 243 - 243
Mot cash provided by/fused for} mvestmng actrvities of continuing eperations {16,326} % {16,300}
Net cash provided tyAused for) g actvities of dist d opx 2034 55 2
Invosting pehiviting {14,282} 81 {14211}
T with sh
Net proceeds from issuance of commen sharas n cannection with Vivendi SA s share-based compensatian plans (180 (197
of which exercise of stock optrons by executive managerment and emplovees (197 1187}
{Sateslpurchases of Vivenh SA s reasury shares krd 2
Distribution to Vivendi SA 8 shargowners (€1 per share} 1 1348 1348
Other transactions with shareowners z 2
Diwidends pa:d by consohdated companies to ther non-controlling intarests k1 k! |
Total tr with sh 1215 - 129
Transactions an borrowings and other financial habilites
Setting up of long term barrowings and increase 1n pther long term financial liabilities {3) 3
Principal payments on long-term bomowings and decrease in gther long-tern financial hailities 1570 {1670)
of wiich bank credit facilities 1655 {1 855 -
Principal payments on shert term borrowings 7689 {7 680}
of which bonds 5564 {5 564) -
cammercial paper 1 508 {1 906} -
Other changes in short term borrowings and other financial iiabilities {140} 140
Non-cash ransactions 47} 15
Interest pait net 1 96 95
Dther cash items related to financral actmties 3 B8 606
Total tr 1008 on b gs and othar f I habilt 4509 9212 537
Net cash ded byAused for) f of eentinuing oparations LEET:] {9.212) 1916
Net cash provided by/Tused for) financing actrties of discontinued operations 755 {508) 248
Binancing potrvitieg 11,884 {9,720} 2,154
Foreign currency translation adiustments of continuing operations {10} [} Y
Forengn currency translation adustments of discontinued operations 4 k] 7
Reclassification of Financiat Net Debt from discontinued operations 3 {293} (90)
Change tn Financial Not Babt 15804} 19,930 N5.734)
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54 Changes to financings

»  InJanuary 2014, Viventi redeemed the 7 75% bond 1ssued in January 2009, for €894 rullion, upon 1ts contractual matunty

= On November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivendi cancelled all of its existing bank credit
facilities for €7 1 billion and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, maturing in five years {2019} and with two one-year renewal
options As of December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

+  On December 15, 2014, Vivend: redeemed all its evro-dencminated bonds with a make-whole option representing a total principal amount of
€4,250 million and paid a net cash premium of €572 million

e (On December 29, 2014, Vivend: redeemed all its US dollar-denominated bands with a make-whole option representing a tota! pnncipal
amount of $595 million (€420 million} and paid a net premium of £70 million

For a detarled analysts of the borrowings as of December 31, 2014, please refer to Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

6 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi 1s subject to various lawsuits, arbitrations and govemmental, administrative ar other
proceedings (collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings™}

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
nsk, provided that Vivend may, at any time, reassess such risk If events occur duning such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivend for all ctaims and litigations amounted to €1,206 million, compared to €1,379 mill:ion as of December 31, 2013

To the company’s knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company’s knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had n the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company’s and on 1ts group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those descnibed heremn

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder ts descrnbed as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivendr's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivends Itigation

Secunties Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivend:, Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of Califorria On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to consolidate these claims under its junsdiction into a single action entitled /nt re Vivendi Universal S A Securities
Litigation

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securities
Act of 1933 and US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financiat communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consolidated class action swit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class {“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amencan Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivend: {formerly Vivend: Universal SA} between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be inctuded in the class

Following the class certification dacision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivend: on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge issued an order consolidating the individual actions with the secunities class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsohdating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury retumned its verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenially false or misleading and were made in violation of Section 10{b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1834 Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they falled to disclose the existence of an alleged “liquidity nsk” which
reached its peak in Becember 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Mane Messier nor Mr Guiltaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendr's shares was artificially inflated on each
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day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and 80 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the ptaintiffs in the class action
The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the thres weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange hohdays on the Pans or New York markets (12 days) during the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Morrison v National Australia Bank case, that American
securities law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a security listed on an American stock exchange ', and to “the purchase or sale of any
other secunty in the United States "

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and issued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Morvison” decision, confirmed Vivendi's
position by dismissig the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ardinary shares on the Paris stock exchange and imited the case to claims of
French, American, Bntish and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi’s ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivend:'s post-trial
motions challenging the jury's verdict The Court also declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2041, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers wha
acquired their shares on the Paris stack exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and issued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Morrison decision, also dismissed the claims
of the indimdual plaintiffs who purchased crdinary shares of the company on the Pans stock exchangs

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file a cla:m form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These
claims are currently being processed and verified by an independent claims administrator and by the parties Vivendr wili then have the right
to challenge the merits of these claims On November 10, 2014, at Vivendt's initiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upon proposed
order requesting the Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covering a substantial portion of the claims

Certain large claims were exciuded from this proposed judgment order as Yivend continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
those clams On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial jJudgment

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed its Notice of Appea! with the Second Circuit Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivend!'s appeal in the Liberty Media case

Vivend: believes that 1t has solid grounds for an appeal Vivend: intends to challenge, among other issues, the plamtiffs’ theones of
causation and damages and, more generally, centain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the tnal Several aspects of the
verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered an January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies speciahizing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 1 3 1 (Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 {Provisions) Vivend) made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivendi might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Secunties class action hitigation in the United States, given the decision of the Distngt Court for the Southem District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court's decision on June 24, 2010 i the Mornson case Using the same methadology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivend re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at £100 mullion as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, if any, that Vivend: might have to pay sclely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivendi recognized a £450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend: considers that this provision and the assumptions on which 1t 15 based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estimate As 1s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend

Complaint of Likerty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivend) and Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivend Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certamn contractual representations and warranties The case had besn
consclidated with the securities class action for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action jury with
respect to Vivend!'s lrability (theory of “collateral estoppel”}
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The Liberty Media jury returned its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend liable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivend: fited certain post-tnial motions challenging the jury’s verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new trial

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded Ltberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bilis On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment (nterest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on Febreary 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal agamst the judgment awarded, for which it believes it has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed a motion n the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultanegusly On April 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals 1ssued an Order granting Vivendi's motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivend) filed its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these twe cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivendi maintained as of December
31, 2014, the prowision m the amount of €945 milhon recorded as of December 31, 2012

Trial of Vivend)'s Former Officers in Panis

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor’s office {Parquet de Pans) launched an investigation mto the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situatton and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Add:tional charges were brought in this nvestigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 200t Vivend: joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The tnal took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Paris), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered 1ts judgment, in which it confirmed the previous recognition of Vivendr as a civil party Messrs Jean-Marie Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys received suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Marne Messier and
Guillaume Hanngzo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivendi
Officers as well as some cvil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Parnis Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of €150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier far misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of £850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for nsider trading, and a 10-manth suspended prison sentence and a fine of
€5 mulkon for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 18, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal rendered its judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissemination of false or musleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the critera for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he receved a 10-manth suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for insider trading and they received fines in the amount of £850,000 {of which €425,000 1s suspended) and €5 million (of whrch
€2 5 million 15 suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set aside the lower court's order for the payment of damages (€10 per share) to
certain sharehoiders and former shareholders of Vivend: {the *civil action®) With regard to Vivend), the Court upheld the vahidity of 1ts status
as a civil party to the proceedings, exonerated 1t from any respoensibility and voided the demand for damages brought against 1t by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed wath the French Supreme Court (Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
defendants and some civil parties

LBBW and al agamnst Vivend:

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austnia filed a
complaint agamnst Vivendi with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages far losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications 1ssued by Vivendi in Octeber and December 2600, September 2001 and Apnil 2002 Subsequently, on Apnl 5 and
Apnit 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first ene by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retrement Systemn
of Idaho, and the other by six German and British mstitutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the Bntish Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivendi on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans
appointed a "third party* responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their atleged holding of the securities
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Cahfornia State Teachers Retirement System and al against Vivendi and Jean-Marne Messier

On April 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivendi and Jean-Mane Messier before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financia! communications made by Vivendi and 1ts former CEQ,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined these proceedings In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plantiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commerctal Court of Panis appointed a “third party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence therr alleged holding
of the securities

Actions against Activision Bhizzard, Inc , its Board of Directors, and Vivend,

In August 2013, a derivative action was nitiated i the Los Angeles Superor Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Blizzard,
Inc {"Activision Blizzard” or the "Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and aganst Vivendi The plaintiff alleges that
Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivendr’s share ownership
in the Company The plaintiff, Todd Miiler, ¢laims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investars led by Robert Ketick and Brian Kelly, the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivend:

On September 11, 2013, a second denivative action based on essentially the same allegations was imbated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonty shareholder of Activision Blizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minority shareholder, Douglas Hayes, intiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard’s shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on Qctober 10, 2613, the Delaware Supreme Court
overturned this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case wll proceed on the merits

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled /n Ae
Activsion Blizzard Inc Securtties Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a similar new action was initiated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minonty shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated into the In Re Actvision Bhizzard Inc Securities Litigation proceeding currently underway

in November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced The Court 1s expected to approve the settlement agreement at an upcoming hearing

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patrimoine to Unibail

Uniball has catled its indemnification guarantee rssued by Anjou Patnmome (a former subsidiary of Vivendi) in cannection with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1999 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Anjou Patnmoine to indemnify Unibail fer a tax hiability ansing
from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims On October 31, 2008, the Versailles Court of Appeal reversed the High Court's
ruling, demed all of Unibail’s efaims and ordered 1t to reimburse Anjou Patrimoine for ali sums paid under the first ruling On November 27,
2008, Unibail appealed agarnst this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2008 ruling of the
Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Pans Court of Appeal The hearing will take place on Aprit 2, 2015

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi) agamnst FIG to obtan the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annuiment of the sale following a judgmant of the Berlin Cour of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend: delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On Apnl 23, 2009, the Regional Bertin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in Apnl 2009, which decided in
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invahidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the buillding and pay damages and interest This decision 1s now final In parallel, FIG filed a secand claim for additionzl damages in the
Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FG the sum of €3 9 milhion together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision
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Telefonica against Vivends in Brazl

On May 2, 2011, TELESP {now Telefonica Braal), filed 2 claim against Vivendi before the Ciwit Court of S&o Paulo (3° Vara Civel do Foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de Sdo Paulo) The company 1s seeking damages for having been blecked from acquiring control of
GVT and damages m the amount of 15 million Brazihan reals {currently approximately €4 9 mullion) corresponding to the expenses incurred
by Telefonica Brazil in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September 2011, Vivend filed an objection to junsdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of S3o Paulo 1o hear a case mvolving parties from Cuntsba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on April 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnl 30, 2613, the Court dismigsed Teleforca's claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendi's responsibility for
Telefonica's failing to acquire GVT The Court notably highlighted the snherently nsky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivendi's counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
resuit of the defamatary campaign carmed out agarnst it by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealad the Court's decision to the 5th
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sdo Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered (nto between Vivendi and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction [which 15 to be
signed on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT), the case has been suspended

Dynamo against Vivend:

On August 24, 2011, the Bynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivendi before the Bovespa Artitration Chamber
{Sao Paulo stock exchange} According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majonity of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 (the date on which Vivend: tock control of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold (s crossed (the "poison pill provision®} should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend:
Vivendi, nating that this poison pill provisian was waived by a GVT General Shargholders” Meeting 1n the event of an acquisition by Vivend)
or Telefonica, demes all of Dynamo’s allegations The arbitral tnbunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
Chamber should be scheduled shortly In parallel, cn February 6, 2013, Dyname filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janerro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide the arbitrat tnbunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivendi This was rejectad on Novembar 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tribunal could make such an
application On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro Court of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision and authonzed the prowision of
the above-mentioned mformation solely to the arbitral tnbunal, denying Dynamo access to the information

Hedging-Gniffo against Vivend

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Griffo funds filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {Sae Paulo
Stock Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendi completed the
acquisrron of GVT in 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tribunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs The
Hedging-Griffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivend: in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “poison pili” provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend believes that the decisian taken by the Hedging-Gniffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivend: against Telefonica was their own decision made in the context of therr management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivend! [t alse denies any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as it was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders” Mesting :n the event of an acquisition by Vivends or Telefonica

Litigation involving Vivend: subsidiaries

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the Group Parabole Réunon filed a legal action before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of 1is nghts
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Panis Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior ta the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its claims concerning the cantent of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the context of this dispute, vanous jurisdictions have taken the
opportunity to apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foct channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a
channe! of similar attractiveness Noncompliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a
claim agamst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre (Tnbunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enforcement having been previously
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rejected by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November 6, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Apnil 9, 2013, the enforcement
magistrate dismissed 1n part Parabole Réunion’s ¢ctaim and declared the rest inadrmissible  He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
legal obhigation with respect to the content or the mamtaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réumon Parabole
Réunion filed an appeal against this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared the appeal filed by Parabole
Réunion inadmissible Parabele Réunion filed an appeat on points of law and filed a second appeal against the Apnil 9, 2013 decision

In parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribuna! order Canal+ Group to make available a channe! with a level of attractiveness simitar to that of TPS Foot i 2006
and to pay damages

On Apnil 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Pans Tribunal
of Fust Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledgs the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and thewr commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated into a single action On Apnil 29, 2014, the Pans Tribunal of First Instance recogmized the
contractuat liabihty of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quality of channels made avaitable to Parabote Réunion The Tribunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the dacision of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance

BelN Sports against the National Rugby League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Competition authonty against Canal+ Group and the National Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting nghts to the “TOP 14" for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authonty imposed interrm measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreemant with the National
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mendated that a new call for tenders process be organized Canal+ Group and the National
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Parnis Court of Appeal

On October 9, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal dismigsed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nights to the “TOP 14 for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision

Action brought by the French Competition Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authonty sent Vivend and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations it alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend: and Canal+ Group cofluded with TF1 and MB, on the one hand, and with Lagardare, on the other Vivendi and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 18, 2010, the French Compet:tion Authority rendered a decision 1 which 1t dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, i respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authonty requested further investigation
regarding fiber aptic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group’s exclusive distnibution nghts on channels broadeast by the Group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nights on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On October 30,
2013, the French Competitron Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group aganst TF1, M6, and France Telévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with tha French Competition Authonity against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Télévision groups In the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption rights into co-production
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competition  The French Campeuttton Authority 1s examining the case

Canal+ Group agamnst TF1, and TMC Regie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie i the telewision advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel during its launch The French Competition Autharity 1s examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a claim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre (Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) by Copie France
who 1s seeking compensation i respect of external hard drives used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
extemnal drive used by Canal+ 1s "dedicated” to the set-top boxes and therefore 1t should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France
believes that the applicable amount of the compensation 1s €45 per hard drive as opposed to €8 7
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Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authonty about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its satellite
subscription called “cards only" {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satelite decoders,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston} In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Pans, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to termmate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satelhte subscriptions calfed "cards only” On Qctober 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court 1ssued an order deny:ng Aston’s requests On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Paris
Court of Appeal, ruling In ¢chambers, granted 1ts request and suspended the decision of Canal + Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authority renders its decision on the mernits of the case

Complaints against Music Industry Magors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and Cahforma agamst Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Intemet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circurt Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on Janvary 10, 2011 The discovery
process Is underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on Iine sales of music downloads and master nngtones UMG contests the
ments of these actions

Capitol Records and EM! Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 8, 2007, Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing filed a joint complaimt against MP3Tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copyright infringement on the sideload com and mp3tunes com websites The trial was held in March 2014, and, on March
18, 2014, the jury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records It found the defendants liable for knowingly allowing the
unauthonzed content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages in the amount of $41 miflion On October 30, 2014 the
Court confirmed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of $12 2 million The defendants have appealed against the
judgment

Mureille Porte against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefani Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the art:st Mirellle Porte {AKA “Orlan”) filed a complant against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefani Germanotta (AKA “Lady
Gaga”“) and Universal Music France with the Pans Tribunal of First Instance (Tnbunal de Grande Instance de Paris) for the alleged copyright
infrngement of several of Orlan’s artistic works

James Clar agamst Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Umiversal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clar filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Panis Tribunal of First Instance {Tnbunal de Grande Instance de Pans) for the alleged infringement of his work

Litigation involving GVT {discontinued operation)

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

GVT, like all other telecommunications operatars, 15 party In several Brazilian States to various proceedings concerning the application of the
"ICMS" tax {/mposto Sober Circulagdo de Mercadonas e Prestagdo de Servigos), which 1s a tax on operations relating to the circulation of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electricity services

GVT 1s notably a party to hitigation 1n vanous Brazilian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the [CMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings nitiated by GVT, all have resulted n
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes in Brazil

The Braziian tax authorties argue that the assessment of the taxes known as "FUST" {fundo da Umversalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagdes), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughaut the whole Brazihan territory, including in
areas that are not economically viable, and “FUNTTEL" {Fundo para Desenvolvimento Tecnoldgioco das Telecomunicagdes), a federal tax to
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finance technological investments in Brazitlan telecommunications services, should be based on the company's gross fevenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT 15 chatlenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authority from the
federal judge

Proceedings Brought against Telecommunications Qperators in Brazil Regarding the Application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were mitiated against all the telecommumications operators in Brazl, icluding GVT, seeking to prevent wnwvoices from
besng increased by taxes known as “PIS” Programa de (ntegragdo Social) and “COFINS™ (Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Segundade
Social), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT betieves that the arguments in
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the histonc operators as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible heense that allows 1t to
set its own tariffs

1 Forward looking statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report, notably in Section 2 3, contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendr's financial condition, results of
operations, business, strategy, plans and outlook of Vivend:, including the impact of certain transactions and the payment of dwvidends and
distnbutions as well as share repurchases Although Vivend: befieves that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ matenally from the forward-looking
statements as a result of a number of nsks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivendi's control, including, but not limited to, the nisks
related to antitrust and other regulatory approvals as well as any other approvals which may ba required in connection with certain transactions
and the nsks described in the documents of the group filed with the Autorité des Marchés Financiers {the "AMF") (the French securities
regulator), which are also availabte in English on Vivendi’s website {(www vivendi com) Accordingly, we caution you against relying on forward
looking statements These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivendi disclaims any intention or
obligation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new mfoermation, future events or otherwise

8 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendi does not sponsor an Amenican Depositary Receipt {ADR) facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 1s
"unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivend: Vivendi disclaims any liability in respect of any such faciirty

Translation

This Financial Report is an English translation of the French version of the report and 1s provided for informational purposes only This translation
1s quabfied in its entirety by the French version, which is available on the company's website pwww vivendi com) In the event of any
Inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the French version will prevail
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report: Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1 Non-GAAP measures in Statement of Eamings

Income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income, non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute
for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance, as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes or as described n the Financial Report, and Vivend: considers that they are relevant indicators to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance Vivendi Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income far reporting, management, and
planning purposes because they better illustrate the underlying performance of continuing operations by excluding most non-recurring and
non-operating items Each of these indicators are defined in Section 4 of this report or (0 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2014

Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

Year ended December 31,

{in milhons of euros) 2014 2013
EBIT {a) 736 637
Adustments

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 344 350
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a} 92 6
Qther income {a} (203) {88}
Other charges {a) ki1 50
EBITA 999 955
Adjustrments

Charges related to

equity settled share-based compensation plans 9 23
Special items excluded from income from operations 100 153
[ircluching transition/integration costs, and restructunng costs)

tncome from operations 1,108 1131

Recongihation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 3t

{in millons of euros) 2014 2013
Earmings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners (a) 4,744 1,967
Adustments
Amortizaton of intangible assets acqurred through business combinazans 344 350
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a} 92 &
Other income (a) (203 (88
Other charges {a) 30 50
Other financial income {a} (19) {13
Other financial charges {a) 751 300
Earnings from discontinued operations {a) (5,262) (2,633)
of wiich capital gan on the divestiture of SFR {2,378} -
impairment of SFA's goodwiil - 2431
caprial gain on the divestiture of Maroc Telecom group {786} -
capital gain on Activision Blizzard shares {84} {2 815}
Change m deferred tax asset refated to Vivend SA's French Tax Group and to the Consoldated
Globat Profit Tax Systems 37 {109}
Non-recurring rtems related to provision for income taxes 5 28
Proviston for income taxes on adjustments (112} {1086)
Non-controlling interests on adjustments 218 702
Adjusted net incomse 626 454

a  Asreporied in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings
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Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31,

Zn4 203
Basit Diluted Bagic Diluted

Adjusted net income {in millions of euros) 626 626 454 454
Number of shares (in miflions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding {a) 13458 13458 13306 +.3306
Potentia! dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 55 - 47
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 1,345 13513 1,3306 13353
Adjusted net income per share {in euros) 045 046 034 034

a  Net of treasury shares (50,033 shares as of December 31, 2014}

2. Adjustment of comparative information

In compliance with IFRS 5, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014}, SFR (as from the first quarter of 2014) as well as Maroc Telecom group
and Activision Blizzard {as from the second quarter of 2013} have been reported in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statemenis as
discontinued operations Vivendi deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Tetecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14,

2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively

In practice, Income and charges from these four businesses have been reported as follows

thesr contribution until the effective divestiture, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consohidated Statement of Earnings {before non-

controlling (nterests) has been grouped under the line "Earmings from discontinued operations”,
their share of net income has been excluded from Vivend's adjusted net income, and

- n accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure consistency of information

The adjustments to published data for the first quarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relate to GVT

2014
Three months Threemonths  Six months ended
{in mulhions of euros, except per share amounts) ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30,
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (as
previously published) 268 358 626
Reclassifications related 1o the apphication of IFRS 5 for GVT -83 -88 7
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (restated) 185 270 455
Adjusted net incoma (as previousgly publishad} 161 194 355
Reclassifications related ta the application of [FRS 5 for GVT -52 -50 102
Adjusted net income (restated) 109 14 253
Adjusted net income per share (as previously published} 012 014 026
Adjusted net income per share {restated) 008 on 019
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The adjustments to data published in the 2013 Annua! Report are reported below and relate 1o GVT and SFR

{in mulhons of eurns except per share amounts)

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (as
pubbished (a})
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS & for GVT
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA) {restatad)

Adjusted net income {as published (a}}
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR

Adjusted net income {restated)

Adjusted net income per share {as pubhished (a))
Adjusted net income per share {restated)

{in mitlaons of euros except per share amounts}

Adjusted earnsngs before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (as
published {a}}
Reclasstfications related to the appheation of IFRS 5 for GVT
Reclass:fications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (restated)

Adjusted net income {as published (a))
Rectassifications related to the apphication of IFRS 5 for GVT
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR

Ad)justed net income (restated)

Adjusted net income per share {as published {a)}
Adjusted net income per share {restated}

& Aspublished m the 2013 Annual Repert
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2013
Three months Three months Six months ended
ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30
762 1391
-9¢ -98 -197
-328 -377 -705
202 287 489
366 479 845
-70 - 67 -137
-232 - 254 - 486
2] 158 222
0.28 036 064
005 012 017
2013
Three months Nine months Three months Year ended
ended September  ended September  ended December
December 31
30 3,
130 211 2 2433
-101 298 -107 -405
-334 -1039 -34 -1073
295 784 7 955
03 1,248 292 1540
-75 -212 -62 -274
-249 -735 =77 -812
79 301 153 454
030 094 022 116
006 0.23 on 034
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3 Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2014 and 2013 quarterly data

{in millrons of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Umiversal Music Group

Vivend) Village

Ehmination of intersegment transactions

Total Vivends

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend: Village
Corporate

Total Vivendi

{in mithions of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

Elimination of intersegment transactions

Total Vivendi

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend: Village
Corporate

Total Vivends

Financial Report and Audited Consohidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 3t 2014

2014
1stQuarterended  Znd Quarter ended  Jrd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Det 3
1.317 1,350 1,300 1,489
984 1019 1,064 14860
21 25 23 27
{5} {5 {5) {5)
317 2389 2412 291
175 245 206 {43)
56 97 121 2N
{20} (67} - 8
{26} (5 (17) {22)
185 70 310 B4
2013
1st Quarterended  2nd Quarter ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
12686 1314 1,257 1454
1,091 1145 1,162 1488
16 17 18 20
(5) {3) {5} (3
2388 2413 2432 2!959
183 247 217 {36}
55 88 12 256
(14} {23) (200 {23)
(22 {25) (14) {26}
202 w7 295 171

Vivend: /42



Intentionally left biank.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2014

Friday February 27, 2015

Vivendi /43




Frday, February 27, 2015

lll - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2014

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Shareholders’ Meetings we hereby report 1o you for the year
ended December 31, 2014 on

« the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vivendi, herenafter referred to as “the Company”,

« the justificat:on of our assessments,

« the specific venfications required by law
These consclidated financial statements have been approved by your management board Our role 15 to express an opinion on the financial
statements, based on our audit

| Opinion on the Consohdated Financial Statements

We conducted cur audst 1n accordance with professtonal standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our apimion, the consolidated financial statements gwve a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the results of its operations
for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

Il Justification of our Assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French commerctal code {Code de commerce) relating to the justification of our
assessments, we draw your attention to the following matters

« Note 1358 to the financial statements descnbes the accounting principles applicable te financial assets, including non-consolidated
investments We examined the accounting treatment applied to the group's investment in Numenicable — SFR We ensured that Note
3 1 to the consohdated financial statements gives appropnate disclosures thereon

« Note 1 36 to the consoldated financial statements describes the applicable cntena for classification and accounting for discontinued
operations or assets held for sale in accordance with IFAS 5 We verified the correct application of this accounting principle and we
ensured that Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements provides appropriate disclosures with respect to management’s pasition
as of December 31, 2014

« At each financ:al year end, your Cempany systematically performs impairment tests on goodwill and assets with indefimite useful lives,
and also assesses whether there 1s any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the methods
described in Note 13 57 to the consolidated financial statements We examined the methods used to perform these impairment tests
as well as the matn assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1 3 5 7 and 9 ta the consolidated financial statements provide
appropriate disclosures thereon

« Note 139 to the consolidated financial statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and Note 138
describes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We verified the correct application of these accounting principles and
also examined the assumptions underlying the the positions as of December 31, 2014 We ensured that Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropriate information on tax assets and liabilities and on your company’s tax positions

« Notes 138 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for
Iitigaton We exammed the methods used within the group to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such litigation We
also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated in Note 13 1 to the consohdated
financial statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in estimates and assumptions which could have an impact upon the
reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audst of the consolidated financia! statements taken as a whole, and therefore contnbuted to the
opinion we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report
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Il Specific venfications
We have also venified, in accordance with professional standard apphicable in France, the information provided in the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters to report as sts far presentation and 1ts consistency with the consolidated financial statements

Parnis-La Défense, February 27, 2015

The statutory auditars
French onginal signed by

KPMG AUDIT ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
Département de KPMG S A
Baudowin Griton Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through busmess combinations
Other income
Other charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
!ncome from equity affiliates
Interest
income from investments
Other financial iIncome
Other financial charges
Earnings from continuing operations hefore provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Earnings from continuing operations
Earmngs from discontinued operations
Earmings
Of which
Earmings attnibutable to Vivend) SA shareowners
of which earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendr SA shareowners
earnings from discortinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

Non-controlhing interests
of which earnings from continuing operations
earnings from discontinued operations

Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - dituted
Earmings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivent SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend SA shareowners per share - diluted

Earnings atiributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per shara - basic
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - difuted

in millions of euros, except per share amounts, in euros

Note

[ S

o

62

s~

|
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Year ended December 31,

2014 2013{a)
10,089 10,252
(6,121} (6,097}
{3,155) {3,358)
{158) {192)
{92) 6]
203 88
{30} {50}
735 637
{18) (21)
{96) {266)
3 66
19 13
{751) {300)
{107) 129
{130) 17
{237) 146
5,262 2,533
5,025 2,718
4,744 1.967
{290) 43
5,034 1,924
281 812
53 103
228 709
{022) 003
{022) 003
374 145
373 184
152 148
351 147

a Incomphance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT (as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR
{as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom and Actwision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013) have been
reported In the Consolidated Statement of Eamings as drscontinued operations {please refer to Note 3) Vivend: deconsolidated SFR,
Maroc Telecom group and Activision Bhizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively The

adjustments to previously published data are presented in Note 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consclidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

{in muflions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Earnings 5,025 2779
Actuanal gains/(losses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net (68) {23)
Items not reclassified to profit or loss (68) (23}
Foreign curcency transiation adjustments 778 {1.429)
Unrealized gains/{losses), net 936 58
Other impacts, net (94} 15
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss 1,620 {1,356}
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 1,552 {1.379)
Total comprehensive income 6,577 1,400
of which
Total comprehensive income attributable 1o Vivendi SA shareowners 6312 789
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controtling interests 265 611
The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of the Consolidated Finangial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros) Note December 31,2014  December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Goodwill 9 9.329 17,147
Non-current content assets 10 2,550 2,623
Other intangible assets i1 229 4,306
Property, plant and equipment 12 717 7,541
Investments n equity affiliates 13 306 446
Non-current financial assets 4 6,144 654
Deferred tax assets 6 710 733
Non-current assets 19,985 33450
Inventories 15 114 330
Current tax recevables 3] 234 627
Current content assets 10 1,135 1,149
Trade accounts receivable and other 15 1,983 4,898
Current financial assets 14 48 45
Cash and cash equivalents 16 6,845 1,041
10,360 8,090
Assets held for sale - 1,078
Assets of discontinued businesses 3 5,393 6,562
Current assets 15,753 15,730
TOTAL ASSETS 35,738 49,180
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 7434 1,368
Addrtional paid-in capital 5,160 8,381
Treasury shares (1) {1
Retained earnings and other 10,013 1,709
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity 22,506 17457
Non-controlling interests 382 1,573
Total equity i7 22,988 19,030
Non-current provisions 18 2,888 2,904
Long-term borrowings and other financial habilities 21 2,074 8,737
Deferred tax liabtlities ] 657 680
Other non-current habilites 15 121 757
Non-current habitities 5,740 13,078
Current provisions 18 290 819
Short-term borrowings and other financial habilities 21 273 3,529
Trade accounts payable and other 15 5,306 10,416
Current tax payables 6 47 79
5916 14,643
Liabilities assocrated with assets held for sale - -
Liabilities assocrated with assets of discentinued businesses 3 1,094 2,429
Current liahilities 7010 17,072
Total habilities 12,750 30,150
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 35,738 49,180

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of the Consolidated Finangial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31

{in millans of euros) Note 2014 2013{a)

Operating activities
EBIT 4 736 637
Adjustments 23 a47 557
Content invesiments, net 19 {148)
Gross cash provided by operating actsvities before income tax paid 1202 1.045
Other changes in net working capitat 15 1123) 36
Net cash provided by oparating activities before income tax patd 1,073 1,082
Income tax paid net 63 280 205
Net cosh provided by operating sctivities of continuing operations 1,359 1287
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 3 2,234 3953
Net cash prowided by operating activities 3593 5.240

Investing activihes

Capital expenditures 2 {249) [278)
Purchases of consohidated companies after acquired cash {100) (42)
Investments In equity affilsates 13 187) -
Increase n finangiat assets 14 {1057) {65}
investments {1,493) {385)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant equipment and intangible assets 2 8 33
Proceeds from sales of consohdated companies after divested cash 3 18929 2739
Disposal of equity atfilates 13 - 8
Decrease n financal assets 14 878 724
Divestitures 17.813 3,504
Dividends recewved from equity affiliates 4 3
Drvidends recerved from unconsolidated cornpanies 2 54
Net cash provided byfiussd for) investing activities of continuing operations 16,326 3175
Net cash provided by/{used for} investing activities of discontinued aperations 3 {2034) {4 363)
Not cash provided by/lused for) investing activities 14,292 (1,187)
Finencing activities
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of comman shases in connection wath Vivends SA's share based
compensation plans 20 197 195
Sales/{purchases} of Vivendi SA's treasury shares (32} -
Distribution to Vivende SA's shareowners 17 {1348} {1325)
Other transactions with shareowners {2 {1.046)
Dividends paid by consohidated companies to their non-contzolling interests {34} (33}
Transactions with shereowners 1.219) 2.209)
Setting up of long term borowings and ncrease i other long-term financial iabiities 21 3 2405
Principal payment on long term borrowings and decrease in other long term fingncial habiities 21 (1 670} 1910
Pringipal payment on short term borrowings 21 {7 680} {9161}
Other changes tn short-term borrowings and other financial labiimes 21 149 3B
Interest paid net 5 |96} (266)
QOther cash iems related to financial activities {606} {330}
Transactions on borrowings and other financial lrabilities 19,909) (5,225)
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities of continuing eperations {11,128} (7,435)
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing actwities of discontinued operations 3 {756} 107
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities {11,834} {6.418)
Foreign currency translatian adjustments of continuing operations 10 (20)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations 3 (4} (72}
Chenge 1 cash and cash equivalents 6.007 12.457)
Reclassification of discontinued operations” cash and cash equivalents 3 {203) {396)

Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the penod 16 1041 3894
At end of the perod 16 6,845 1,00

a Incomphance with IFRS 5 - Non<current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT {as from the third quarter of 2014), SFR
(as from the first quarter of 2014} as well as Maroc Telecom and Activision Blizzard (as from the second quarter of 2013} have been
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations (please refer to Note 3) Vivendi deconsolidated SFR,
Maroc Telecom group, and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively These
adjustments are presented in Note 31 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /49




Fiday 27 February 2015

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
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The accompanyeng notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Finanoial Siatements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend: is a limited liability company {société anonyme) incorporated under French law and subject to French commercial company law
including the French Commercial Code (Code ds commerce) Vivends was incorperated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except 1n the event of an early dissolution or unless its term is extended Its registered office 1s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Pans (France) Vivend is listed on Euronext Pans (Compartment A)

Vivend: operates a number of companies that are leaders in content and media Canal+ Group s the French leader in pay-TV and s also
present in African countries, Poland, and Vietnam, its subsidiary Studiocanal, 1s a leading Eurcpean player in the production, acquisition,
distnbution and sale of films and TV seres Umiversal Music Group 1s the world's leader in music Vivendi Viltage brings together Vivend
Ticketing, Wengo {expert counseling), Watchever (subscription video-on-demand) In addition, Vivend controls GVT, the leading Brazihian
altermative operator

Vivend deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014 and October 11, 2013,
respectively, each date being the date of their effective sale by Vivendi Moreover, as a result of the plan to sell GVT, this business has been
reported in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earmings as a discantinued operation, in accordance with IFRS 5

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivend and its subsidiaries (the “group”} together
with Interests in equity affil:ates Amounts are reported 1n euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 11, 2015, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 They were examined by the Audit Commuttee at its meeting he'd on
February 20, 2015 and the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015

Cn April 17, 2015, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 33, 2014 will be submitted for approval at Vivend)'s
Annual General Shareholders” meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

11 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2614 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivend) SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reparting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB} with mandatory application as of December 31, 2014

Vivend applied from the first quarter of 2014 IFRIC 21 interpretation — Lewes, 1ssued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee {IFRS IC) on May
20, 2013, endorsed by the £U on June 13, 2014 and published in the EU Official Journal on June 14, 2014 IFRIC 21 clanfies the treatment of
certain levies, in accordance with IAS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabulities and Contingent Assets

IFRIC 21 specifically addresses the accounting of a habulity to pay a levwy imposed by public authorities on entities in accordance with
legislation {1 e, laws or regulations}, except for income tax and value-added taxes Applying this interpretation has led to the modification,
where necessary, of the analysis of the obligating event triggering recognition of the hability This interpretation, which mandatoridy applies to
accounting periods beginning an or after January 1, 2014 (and retrospectively as from January 1, 2013), had no materral impact on Vivendi's
Firancial Statements

In addition and as a remtnder, as from the Condensed Financial Statements for the first quarter of 2013, Vivendi voluntarily opted for the early
application, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, of the standards relating to the principles of consolidation IFRS 10 —
Consoldated Financial Statements, tFRS 11 ~ Joint Arrangements, \FRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests i Other Entities, \AS 27 — Separate
financial Statements, and 1AS 28 ~ Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013 — pages 220 to 235 of the Annual Report} The application of these standards had no matenal impact
on Vivendi's Financial Statements
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12 Presentation of the Consohidated Financial Statements
121 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main line items presented in Vivend:'s Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest, provision
for incomes taxes, eam:ngs from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings The Consolidated Statement of Earnings presents a
subtotal for Earmings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those financing activities,
equity affil:ates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
incorme as defined i paragraph 1 2 3 and presented in Note 5

122 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activihes

Net cash provided by operating activities is calculated using the indirect methed based on EBIT EBIT 15 adjusted for non-cash tems and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided by operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for iInvesting actiities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends receved from equity affiliates) It also includes any cash flows ansing from the gain
or loss of control of subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for fimancing activities includes net interest paid on barrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
dervative instruments It also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases in pwnership interests)

123 Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivend: considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax {EBITA), Adjusted net sncome (AN}, and Cash Flow From Operations (CFFO), non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivendi considers EBITA, a non-GAAFP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reportad in
the segment data The method used in calculating EBITA excludes the accounting impact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business cominnations, impairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivend to measure and
compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their perfermance 1s dnven by the operating segment’s
organic growth or by acquisstions

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business cominations, impasrment
losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as well as other financial ncome and charges related to
financial investing transactions and transactions with shareowners that are included i EBIT The charges and income related to financial
Investing transactions include gans and losses recognized in business combinations, capital gains or losses related to divestitures or the
depreciation of equity affliates and other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gam or loss of control in a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
periormance Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because 1t better illustrates the underly:ng performance of continuing operations
by excluding most non-recurting and non-operating items Adjusted net ncome includes the following items

o EBITA(*™)

» Income from equity affil:ates {*}{**),

* interest{*}{**) equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,
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+ income from investments [*){**}, including dividends and interest received frem unconselidated companies, and
+ taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items

It does not include the following items

+ amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations {**) as well as impairment lossas on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combmations {*) (**),
other income and charges related to financial investing transactiens and to transactions with shareowners (*}, as defined above,

+ other financial charges and income (*) {**), equal to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change i value of financial liabilities, which pnmanly include changes in the fair value of derivative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the ¢ost of 1s5uing or cancelling
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions (other than those related to operating activities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and labifities, and the financial components of employee benefits (interest cost
and expected return on plan assets},
eamings from discontinued operations (*){**), and

e provisions for income taxes and adjustments attributable to non-contralling interests and non-recurnng tax items (notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivend: SA's tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax habilities relating to nsks extinguished over the penod)

(*} ltems as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings, (**) items as reported by each operating segment

Cash Flow From Qperations {CFF()

Vivendi considers cash flow fram operations {CFF0), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance The CFFD includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends recesved from equity affiliates and unconsohdated companies It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangble assets

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax, consists of dividends received from equity
atfilates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and liabilities that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or censumption, within the entity’s normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or hiabilities If their matunty exceeds this peniod, they are recorded as non-current
assets or iablittes Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements

13  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Pursuant to IFRS principles, notably IFRS 13 ~ Farr Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures, the Consolidated Financral

Statements have been prepared on a historical cost bas:s, with the exception of certain assets and liabilities detailed below

The Consolidated Financiat Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidianes after eliminating intragroup 1tems and
transactions Vivendi has a December 31 year-end Subsidiaries that do not have a December 3% year-end prepare interim financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidianes are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estumates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements n compliance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend)
Management based, in particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or eamings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

= revenue estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees {please refer to Note 1 3 4),
* provisions nisk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occusrence of events duning the course of procedures
may lead to a sk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 138 and 18),

Financial Report and Audited Consohdated Financral Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /54



Friday, February 27, 2015

« employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probabilty of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (pfease refer to Notes * 3 8 and 19),

« share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatihty and the estimated dividend
yield {please refer to Notes 1 3 10 and 20},

» certain financial instruments fair value estimates (please refer to Notes 1358, 137 and 22),

« deferred taxes estimates concerming the recagnition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group {please refer to Notes 13 8 and 6],

+ goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations {please refer to Notes 135 2),

« goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impairment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating units [CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates (please refer
to Notes 1357,9, 11, and 12}, and

+ UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of benefic:aries who were granted advances are recognized in the
Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Notes 1353 and 10}

132 Principles of consolidation
Alist of Vivendi's major subsidianes, joint ventures and associated entities 1s presented in Note 27

Consclidation

All compan:es in which Vivendi has a controlling interest, namely those in which it has the power to gover financial and operational pohcies
i order to obtan benefits from thesr operations, are fully consolidated

The new model of control, introduced by IFRS 10 which supersedes the revised 1AS 27 - Consofidated and Separate Financial Statements, and
interpretation SIC 12 - Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities, 1s based on the following three crtena to be fulfilled simultaneousty to
conclude that the parent company exercises control

«  aparent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing nghts that give 1t the current abiity to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, e, the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns Power may anse from
existing or potential vating rights, or contractual agreements Voting rights must be substantial, 1 ¢ , they shall be exercisable at any
time without limitation, particularly during decis:on making related to significant activities The assessment of the exercise of power
depends on the nature of the subsidiary’s relevant activities, the internal decisign-making process, and the allocation of nghts
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners,

« the parent company is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from ts involverment with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary’s performance The concept of returns 1s broadly defined and includes, among other things, dividends and other
economic benefit distributions, changes n the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business
synergies, and

= the parent company has the alulity to use 1ts power to affect the returns Exercising power without having any impact on returns
does not qualify as contral

Consolidated Financial Statements of & group are presented as if the group was a single economic entity with two categones of owners {1
the owners of the parent company (Vivend SA shareowners} and {u) the owners of non-controlling interests A non-controlling interest 15
defined as the mterest in a subsidiary that 1s not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent As a result, changes to a parent company's
ownership mnterest in a subsidiary that do not result 1n a loss of controf only impact equity, as control does not change within the economic
entity Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivend: recognizes the
difference between the acqussition price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to
Vivendi SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved in stages or a loss of control gives nse to profit or loss In the
statement of eamings

Accounting for joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which supersedes IAS 31 — Financial Reporting of Interests in Jomnt Ventures, and interpretation SIC 13 - Jomntly Controlfed Entities -

Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers, establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arangement

In a Joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties jont control of the arrangement An entity that 1s
a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once 1t has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, joint
control exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement
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Joint arrangements are classified into two categories

+ joint operations these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts ta the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, refating to the arrangement Those parties are called joint operators A joint oparator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jomntly, and

e jont ventures these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each joint venturer shall recagnize its intergst in a joint venture
as an investrment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with 1AS 28 (please refer below)

The shmination of proportionate consohidation for joint ventures has ne :mpact on Vivend), which already accounted for companies that were,
directly or indirectly, jointly controlled by Vivendi under the equity method, and a limited number of other shareholders under the terms of a
contractual arrangement

Eqinty accounting
Entities over which Vivend: exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method

Significant influence 1s presumed 1o exist when Vivendi holds, directly or indirectly, at teast 20% of the voting rights in an entity unless it can
be clearly demonstrated that Vivend does not exercise a significant influence Significant influence can be evidenced through other criteria,
such as representation on the board of directors or the entity’s equivalent governing body, participation in policy-making of financial and
operational processes, material transactions with the entity or the mterchange of managenal personnel

133 Foreign currency transtation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivend: SA and the presentation currency
of the group 1s the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity’s functional cusrency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net tnvestment n a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated in & fore:gn currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidianies, |oint ventures or ather associated entities for
which the functional currency is not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 1s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the pertod, and the Consclidated Statement of Eamings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the period The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as foreign
currency translation differences in charges and mcome directly recognized In equity In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earmings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency transfation
differences resulted from the translation wto euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries that use foreign currencies as therr funct:onal
currencies Conseguently, these adjustments are not applhed to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidianes, jomt ventures or
associates whose functional currency is not the euro

134 Revenues from operations and associated costs
Revenues from operations are recorded when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits will be obtamed by the group and when they can be
rellably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestnal, sateliite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service period,
net of gratuities granted Revenues from advertising are recogrized over the period dunng the advertising commercials are broadcast
Revenues from anciliary services {such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service s rendered Subscriber
management and acquisition costs, as well as television distribution costs, are included n selling, general and admunistrative expenses
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Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a nght of use 1s granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distnbution and from video and television or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 1 3 4 3) and rebates, are recognized upon
shipment and availabity of the product for retail sale Amortization of film and television capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical print
costs, home video inventory costs and television and horme video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues

1342 Universal Music Group (UMG}

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns {please refer 1o Note 13 4 3) and rebates, are
recognized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products sold free on board (FOB) and on delivery for products sold free on
destination

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recognized based on therr estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distribution platform {on-line or mobile music distributor) to UMG of a saie to the final
customer

Music publishing
Revenues from the third-party use of copynghts on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when reyalty
statements are received and collectability 1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distnbution costs, rovalty and copynght expenses, artists™ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and administrative expenses primaniy include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful recevables and indirect overheads

1343 OQther

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distnbutors The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers

Selling, general and administrative expenses primarly include salanes and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
nsurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction n revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
I1s treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s individualized and can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitalized financial interest

Until Degember 31, 2008, Vivend! did not capitalize financial interest incurred duning the construction and acquisibon perod of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended |AS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest 1s included in
the cost of qualifying assets Vivendi applies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs 18 January 1, 2009 onwards

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivendi /57




Friday Febrary 27 2015
1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combnations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upon the initial consohdation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control

+ the identifiable assets acquired and the hiabilities assumed are recogmzed at their fair value on the acquisition date, and
« non-controlling interests are measured erther at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identfiable assets This option 1s available on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisition date, goodwill 1s imitially measured as the difference between
(1] the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-contralling interests n the acquires and, in a business
combination achieved 1n stages, the acquisition date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and
(1} the net fair value of the 1dentfiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at far value results in an increase in goodwill up to the extent attnbutable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recagnition of a "full goodwill” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the acquisition
date If goodwill ts negative, 1t 15 recognized in the Statement of Eamings Subsegquent to the acquisition date, goodwill 1s measured at its
initial amount fess recorded accumulated impairment losses {please refer to Note 1 35 7 below)

In additran, the foltowing principles are apphed to business combmations

« on the acqusition date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit Iikely to benefit from the business
combenation,

« contingent consideration in a business combination (s recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurring after the purchase price allocation period 1s recogmized in the Statements of Earings,

« acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,

¢ 1n the event of the acquisition of an additional mmterest in a subsidiary, Vivend recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and

«  goodwll is not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 IFRS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retamned the acquisition method However, its provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respect of the
mam following items
«  minonty interests were measured at therr proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair value,
* contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition only if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
s transactign costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs, and
« Inthe event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference hetween the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of mnority interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Film, telewision or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts, the nghts acguired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows
« film and telewision broadcasting nights are recognized at their acquisition cost when the program is avatlable for screenmng and are
expensed aver their broadcasting period,
«  sports broadcasting nghts are recognized at their acquisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting penod of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
«  gxpensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights is included in cost of revenues

Theatrical film and television nights produced or acquired to be sold

Theatrical film and television nghts produced or acquired before their (nittal exhibition to be sold, are recorded as a content asset at
capitalized cost {mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at thetr acquisition cost Theatrical film and television nghts are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method (1, based on the ratio of the current penod’s gross
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revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an indwidual production basis) Vivendi considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future econom:c benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate 1s, for this activity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtaned under the straight-
line amortization methed If, however, the accumulated amortization would be fower than this charge, a mimmum straight-ling amortization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year period, which corresponds to the typical screening period of each film

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against eamings for the period 1n which the Iosses are estimated, on an
individual product basis

Film and telewision nghts catalogs

Catalogs compnse film rights acquered for a second television exhibition, or produced or acquired film and television nights that are sold after
their first television screening {1 e , after their first broadcast on a free terrestnial channel) They are recognized as an asset at their acquisition
or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method

UMG

Music publishing nghts and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and publishing nights, acquired through business combinations,
amortized in selling, general and administrative expenses over a pertod not exceeding 15 years

Royalty advances to artists, sangwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current popularnity and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against eamings otherwise payable to
them 1§ reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are eamed by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties 1s expensed dunng the period
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded In cost of revenues

Royalties eamed by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the penod during which the sale of the product
ocewss, fess a provision for estimated returns

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibifity and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of internal use software

Direct intemal and external costs ncurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage Applicatien development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, installation and testing Costs of sigmificant upgrades and enhancements resulting n additional functionality are also capitahzed
These capitalized costs are amortrzed over 5 to 10 years Maintenance, minor upgrade, and enhancement ¢osts are expensed as incurred

1355 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets separatety acquired are recorded at cost, and (ntangible assets acquired in connection with a business cormbination are
recorded at therr fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost model s apphed to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are subject to an annuval impatrrment test Amortization is accrued for assets with a
finite useful fife Useful life 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses Music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets
1356 Property, plant and aquipment

Property, plant and equipment are carned at hustorical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Historical cost ncludes
the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attrbutable to transporting an asset to its physical location and prepanng 1t for its
operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of
the physical location resulting from the incurred obligation
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When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useiul lives, they are recorded and amortized separatsly
Amortization s calculated using the straight-ine method based on the estimated useful life of the assets Useful lives of the main
cornponents are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are as follows

buildings 5 to 40 years,

equipment and machinery 3 to B years,

= set-top boxes 5to 7 years, and

e other 2 to 10 years

-

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future minimum lease payments and of the market
value and the related debt 1s recorded as "Borrowings and other financial liabrlires™ In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful Iife, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After initial recognition, the cost model I1s applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend: has elected not to apply the option available under {FRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, in accordance wath IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains a |ease, which currently mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group {and GVT) satellite capacity, which
are commercial service agreements that do not convey a right to use a specific asset, contract costs under these agreements are consequently
expensed as operational costs for the period

1357 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes 1n the ecanomic environment indicate a current nsk of impairment of goodwil!, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets :n progress, Vivendi re-examines the value of these assets In addition, goodw:ll, other intangible assets with
an indefinite useful Ife, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual iImpairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year This test s performed tc compare the recaverable amount of each Cash Generating Umit {CGU) or, if necessary, groups of CGU to
the carrying value of the corresponding assets (including goodwill) A Cash Generating Unit 1s the smallest tdentfiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets The Vivend! group operates
through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are marketed through different
channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments Vivendi CGUs and groups
of CGUs are presented in Note 9

The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of {1} the value in use, or {(n) the fair value {less costs to sell} as described hereafter, for
each ndividual asset If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount 15 determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwill 15 performed by Vivend: for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations

The value in use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the di:scounted value of future cash flows {discounted cash flow method
{DCF) by using cash flow projections tonsistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivend of the tme value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value (less costs to sell} 1s the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measuremant date, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basts of market data (stock
market prices or comparison with similar histed companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions} or
on discontinued future cash flows in the absence of reliable data

If the recoverable amount (s fower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference 1s
recognized in EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment |oss 15 first recorded against goodwill

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {other than goodwill) may be reversed in
a later penod if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of impairment losses previously recognized
Impatrment losses recogrized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date
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1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
initially recognized at fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, which 1s best evidenced by the acquisition cost (including
associated acquisition costs, If any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at far vatue include avalable-for-sale secunties, derivative financial instruments with a positive value (please refer to
Note 137} and other financial assets measured at far value through profit or foss Most of these financial assets are actively traded n
organized public markets, their far value being calculated by reference to the published market price at penod end Fair value 1s estimated for
financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market As a last resort, when a reliable estimate of fair value
cannot be made using valuation techniques in the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at historical cost, less any
imparment losses

Available-for-sale securties consist of unconsolidated mterests and other securities that cannot be classified in the other financial asset
categores described below Unrealized gains and fosses on available-for-sale secunties are recognized in charges and income directly
recognized 1n equity until the financial asset is sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or untii
there 15 objective evidence that the investment 15 impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported :n charges and
income directly recogmized in equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and income

QOther financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading whtch Vivend: intends to sel! in
the near future (primarily marketabfe securities) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized m other financial charges and
INcome

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost censist of loans and receivables (primanily loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, secunitized loans and receivables, and other loans and recevables, and debtors)
and held-to-maturity investments {financial assets with fixed or determnable payments and fixed maturity) At the end of each penod, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methed If there 15 objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount {equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's initial effective interest rate}, 1s recognized in profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizabte value Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price i
the normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs

13510 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are mitially recognized at fair value, which (s generally equal to their nominal value Provisions for the impairment
of recewvables are specifically valued in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference peniod For the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription {Canal+ Group), the depreciation rate of trade
account recevables 15 assessed on the basis of historical account recewvables from former customers, pnimanly on a statistical basis In
addition, account receivables from customers subject to insolvency proceedsngs or customers with whom Vivend 15 mvolved in liigation or a
dispute are generally impaired in full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF position No 2011-13, and other
highly liquid investments with inttial matunities of generally three months or less Investments in securities, investments with initial matunities
of more than three months without the possitility of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrictions {blocked accounts), other than
restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector (e g, exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
financial assets Moreover, the histencal performance of the investments 1s monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification
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136 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and l:abilities 1s held for sale when s carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture must
be highly probabte These assets and liabilities are recognized as assets held for sale and Liabilities associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sala are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of divestiture
fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and are no ionger depreciated

An operation 1s quahified as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major line of business and the critena for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivend has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the perods reported, comprising the eamings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gam or loss after tax
on safe or far value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and habilities of the discontinued operations In additon, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Cansolidated Cash Flows for the relevant periods

Accounting principles and valuation methods specific to telecommunications activities, divested in 2014 (SFR, Marac Telecom
Group) or currently in the process of being divested (GVT)

Revenues from operations and associated costs
Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiple-component sales in accordance with 1AS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment {mob:le phones and other equipment}, net of discounts granted to customers through the distnbution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the iine Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recogrized on a straight-line basis over the subscnption
contract period Revenues from incaming and outgoing traffic are recognized when the service 15 rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distnbutors, are recognized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and loyalty costs censisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and commmissions paid to distnibutors are recognized as selling and general expenses

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed on behalf of cantent prowiders (mainly premium rate numbers) are either accounted for
gross, or net of the content providers” fees when the provider 13 responsible for the content and for setting the price payable by subscribers

Custom contracts

Service access and installation costs invoiced pnmarlly to the operator's clients on the installation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP connection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructure 1s provided to clients pursuant to vamous types of contracls lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements IRU agreements, which are specific to the telecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irrevocable nght to use an asset {cables, fiber optic or bandwidth} dunng a {generally lengthy} defined penod without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts i the Netcenters and IRU agreements 1s recognized over the
duration of the corresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment 1s considered as a sale on credit

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues comprise purchasing costs (including purchases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equipment costs Selling, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs refating to marketing and customer care
expenses

Other intangible assets

Licenses to operate telecom networks are recorded at historica! cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortized on
a straight-line basis from ther effective service start date over their estimated useful liffe untit matunty Licenses to operate in France are
recognized in the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The variable fee, which cannot be reliably determined
{equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the activity in the case of the telecommunication licenses i France), s recorded as an expense
when incurred
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Property, plant and equipment

Thesa mainly consist of the network equipment for telecommunications activities, each part of which 15 amartized generally over 1 ta 50 years
for fiber optic equipment
In respect of commercial supply agreements for telecommunications capacities
+ Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements confer an exclusive and irrevocable right to use an asset duning a defined period IRU
agreements are leases which convey a specific nght of use for a defined portion of the underlytng asset in the form of ded:cated
fibers or wavelengths IRU agreements are caprtalized f the agreement period covers the major part of the useful life of the
underlying asset IRU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and
= some IRU contracts are commerc:al service agreements that do not canvey a right to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operational costs for the penod

Accounting principles and valuation methods applicable specifically to Activision Blizzard (video games), a business divested
in2013

Revenue and related costs

The major portion of Activision Blizzard revenue 1s generated by the sale of boxes for video games, net of a provision for estimated returns and
price guarantees as well as rebates, if any Regarding video games with significant online functionality or Massively Multiplayer Online Role
Playing Games, revenues are recorded ratably over the estimated relationship period with the customer, usually and respectively beginning in
the month following the shipment or upan activation of the subscription The estimated relationship penod with the customer over which
revenues are recognized currently ranges from a mimmum of five months to a maximum of less than a year Costs of sales associated with
revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method as for
revenues

Content assets

Licensing activities and nternally developed franchises are recognized as contents assets at their acquisition cost or development cost and
are amortized over their estimated useful Iife on the basis of the rate at which the related economic benefits are consumed This generally
leads to an amortization period of 3 to 10 years for licenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

Cost of software for rental, sale or commercialization

Software development costs (video games) are capitalized when, notably, the technicat feasibility of the software 1s established and they are
deemed recoverable These costs are mamnly generated by Activision Blizzerd as part of the games development process and are amortized
using the estimated revenue method {1 e , based on the ratio of the current period’s gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues) for a
given product, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum pertod of 6 months commencing on a product’s release
date Non-capitalized software development costs are iimmediately recorded as research and development costs

137 Financial habilihes

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial habihities include
*  honds and credit facilities, as well as vanous other borrowings {Including commercral paper and debt related to finance leases) and
related accrued interest,
« obligations ansing out of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests,
«  bank overdrafts, and
» the negative value of other denvative financial instruments Dervatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Pasttion

Borrowings

All borrowings are imitiatly accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly atiributable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1s the internal yield rate
that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded denvative {e g, an
exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument (e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost 1s calculated for the debt companent only, after
separation of the embedded dernvative or equity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g, redemption 1s earlier
than inrtially expected), the amortized cost i1s adjusted against earnings to refiect the value of the new expected cash ftows, discounted at the
initial effective interest rate
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Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivend: has granted commitments to purchase nan-controlling interests to certain shareowners of 1ts fully consolidated subsidiaries These
purchase commitments may be optional (e g , put options) or mandatory (e g, forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted in respect of commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

« upon nttal recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests i1s recognized as a financial liabibity for the present
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset through the book value of non-
controlling interests and the remaining batance through equity attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners,

+ subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability by an adjustment to equity attributable to
Vivend: SA shareowners, and

«  upon maturity of the commitment, If the non-controliing interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed,
if the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized :n financial hiabilities 1s reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Denvative financial instruments

Vivend! uses dervative financial nstruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
mstruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these denvative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses ansing on these contracts are offset in samings against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged stem When the dernvatve financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair valve
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment which 1s not recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position, 1t 1s a far value hedge The mstrument 1s remeasured at fair value in earnings, with the gams or losses ansing on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or habihty, at the initial cost of the asset or hability When the denvative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, 1t 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument s remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or foss that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge ts recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective portion 1s
recognized In eamings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a nan-financial asset or hability, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset or habihity When the hedged tem 1s sealized, accumulated gains and fosses recagnized in equity are released to the Statement of
Eamings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the dervative finangial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign
operation, 1t 1s recognized it the same way as a cash flow hedge Dervative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly tn earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency mstruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editonial content nghts {including sports, audiovisual and film rights) are recognized In
EBIT in all other cases, gains and losses ansing on the fair value remeasurement of Instruments are recognized in other financial charges and
Income

138 Other habilibes

Provisions

Provisions are recogmzed when, at the end of the reporting penod, Vivendi has a legal obligation {legal, reguiatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated Where the effect of the ume value of money i1s matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of
money if the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estimated, no prowision 1s recorded and a disclosure 1s made in the Notes to the
Consotidated Financial Statements

Employee bensfit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendi participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of ther beneficiaries who meet the required conditions Retirement pensions are provided for substant:ally all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local soctzl security and multi-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group 15 consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations
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Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and mult-employer plans are expensed during the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments m various instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt mvestment
securities, excluding Vivend shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projecied unit credit method This method
is based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend) untid retirement, expected
changes in future compensation and an appropnate discount rate for each country 1n which Vivendi maintains a pension ptan The
assumptions adopted 0 2013 and 2014, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 19 A provision is recorded in
the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuarial value of the related benefits {actuanat hability} and the fair
value of any assoctated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuanal gains and losses

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows

+ the service tost 18 ncluded in selling, general and administrative expenses It compnses current $ervice cost, past Service cost
resulting from a plan amendment ar a curtailment, immed ately recognized in profit and loss, and gains and losses on settlement,

+ the financial component, recorded 1n other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the abligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation, and

« the remeasurements of the net defined benefit hiabikity (asset), recognized in 1tems of other comprehensive wcome not reclassified
to profit and loss, mainly consist of actuanal gains and losses, 1 e, changes in the present value of the defined benefit gbligation
and plan assets resulting from changes in actuanal assumptions and expenience adjustments (representing the differences between
the expected effect of some actuanal assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective effect)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset 18 recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions

Some other post-employment benefits, such as Iife insurance and medical coverage (mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuanal calculation comparable to the method used for pension provisions

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend decided to record unrecognized actuarial gains and losses against consolidated equity

139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabilities and their carrying value in the Consalidated Statement of
Fmancial Position give nse to temporary differences Pursuant to the habshity method, these temporary differences result i the accounting of

« deferred tax assets, when the tax base value 1s greater than the carrying value {expected future tax saving), and

» deferred tax liabilties, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value (expected fuiure tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and habilites are measured at the expected tax rates for the year durning which the asset will be realized or the Lability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in ing with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as 1t is
prabable that a taxable profit wiil be available, or when a current tax liability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 15
generated by initial recogmtion of an asset or hability in a transaction which 15 not a business combination and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earmings, nor tax income or loss

For deductible temporary differences resulting from nvestments (n subsidianes, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it 15 probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available aganst which the temporary difference can be utilized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to aliow the deferred tax asset to be utilized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being available, account 1$ taken, pnmarily, of prior years” results, forecasted future results, non-recurmng items unhikely to oceur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group's ability to utilize tax losses camed forward 1s to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group woutd be required to increase or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially matenal tmpact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Eamings
of the group
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Beferred tax liabilities are recogrized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability results from goodwill or
initial recogmtion of an asset or lability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact eamings, tax mncome or loss

For taxable temporary differences resuiting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
liabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, \nvestor or venturer is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t s probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, if the tax relates to ttems that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1310 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders’ interests by providing them with an
addit:onal incentive to iImprove the company’s performance and increase 1ts share price on a long-term basis, Vivendi maintains several share-
based compensatian plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans, and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the Vivend: share price {stock options), which are settled esther in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board [n addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares 1s
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted ptans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Universal Music Group maintains Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
units, which are settled in cash These equity umits are phantom stock units whose value 1s Intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Please refer to Note 20 for details of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation is recogmzed as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense rs spread over
the vesting period, | &, three years for stock aption plans and two years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivendi, other than
In specific cases

Vivend: use a binomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nisk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of their nghts

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the
expense will differ

Equity-settled instruments
= the expected term of the option granted 1s deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
o the value of the instruments granted 15 esttmated and fixed at grant date, and
« the expense 15 recognized wrth a corresponding increase in equity

Cash-settled instruments

« the expected term of the instruments granted (s deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual termn of the instrument
far vested nights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractuai term of
the instrument for unvested nghts,

« the value of instruments granted 18 inally estimated at grant date and s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense 1 adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date,
the expense I1s recognized as a provision, and
moreover, as plans settled in cash are pnmarnily denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost 15 alfocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivalent
nstruments granted to their managers and employses

The dilutive effect of stock aptions and performance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivend shares which are in the process
of vesting is reflected n the calculation of diluted eamings per share

In accerdance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
ptans for which rights remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2
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1.4 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group jont ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant nfluence over group
subsidianes, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exercise exclusive controt, joint control,
or significant influence

The transactions real:zed with subsicharies aver which the group exercises control are not included in the intersegment operations {a hst of
the principal consolidated subsidianes 1s presented in Note 27) Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidianies of the group,
aggregated in operating segments, are conducted on an arm’s length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered
by third parties The operating costs of Vivend) SA’s headquarters, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group's
businesses, are included 1n the Corporate operating segment {Please refer to Note 2 for 2 detailed description of the transactions between the
parent company and the subsidiaries of the group, aggregated by operating segments)

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivend: and its subsidiaries prepare detailed reports on all matenal contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent abhigations, for which they are jointly and severally hable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated (nternal control procedures are carned out, including {but not limited to) the review of

« mnutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Beard, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in
respect of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authenzation of asset acquisitions or divestitures,

* pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,

« pending litigation, claims (in dispute) and environmental matters as well as refated assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,

« tax examiner's reports and, If applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,

« insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the nisk management department and msurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,

« related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and more generally

*  major contracts and agreements

16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

The IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published by the IASB and endorsed in the Eurapean Union, which are not yet
effective but which have been applied n anticipation are detailed in Note 11

Among IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued by the IASB/IFRS IC at the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivend has not elected {or an earlier application, the main standard which may
have an impact on Vivend: 1s IFRS 15 ~ Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 1ssued by 1ASB on May 28, 2014, which applies mandatorily
from January 1, 2017, and sull being endorsed in the EU Vivendi 1s currently assessing the potential impact on the Statement of Earmings, the
aggregate comprehensive income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the
Consalidated Financial Statements tn applying this standard
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Note 2 Segment data

21 Operating segment data

The Vivend group comprises several businesses that are leaders in content and media Each business offers different products and services
that are marketed through different channels Given the unique customer base, technology, marketing and distnbution requirements of each of
these businesses, each business 1s managed separately and represents the base of the internal reporting of the group The Vivend: group has
the following main businesses

«  Canal+ Group publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-air channels in France,
Poland, Afnica and Vietnam as well as production and distribution of cinema film and TV series in Europe In 2014 and 2013, Canal+
Group notably acquired Red Production Company (November 22, 2013), Mediaserv {February 13, 2014} and Thema (October 28,
2014}, and

¢ Umwersal Music Group sale of recorded music {physical and digital media), exploitation of music publishing rights as well as
artist services and merchandising [n 2014, UMG notably acquired Eagle Reck Entertainment Limited {Apnl 8, 2014)

Vivend Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating indicators (segment earnings and cash flow from operations) Segment eamings relate to the EBITA of each business segment

Additionally, segment data 1s prepared in accordance with the following principles

« the operating segment "Vivendi Village” includes other operations, notahly Vivends Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick),
Wengo (expert advisory services), and Watchever (platform in broadcasting of audiovisual works),

e the operating segment “Corporate” includes the headquarter’s costs, net of the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the
businesses,

» .ntersegment commercial relat:ons are conducted on an arm's length basis on terms and condrtions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties, and

« the operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the information given to Vivend’s Management Board

In addrtion, Vivendi's interests 1 SFR and GVT, discontinued businesses as of December 31, 2014 {please refer to Note 3), are no longer
reported in segment data as a result of the application of IFRS 5 - Nen-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
- the 2013 Consolidated Statement of Eamings and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows were adjusted to ensure consistency
of information, and
- GVT's assets and liabilities were reclass/fied as unallocated assets as of December 31, 2014

For a detailed description of the adjustments made to the previously published Financial Statements, please refer to Note 31

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: also presented data categorized according to four geographic regions, inctuding France and the United
States
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Year ended December 31, 2014

{in millrens of guros)

External revenues
Intersegment ravenuas
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding amortization and depraciation
EBITDA
Restructuning charges
Bams/llosses) on sales of tangtble and intangible assets
Other non-recurnng items
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets exciuding thosa acquired through business
combinausns
Adjusted earnicgs before interest and incoms taxes (EBITA)
Amertization of intangible assets acquired through busmess combinauons
Imparment tosses onntangible assets acquired through business combinations
Dther income
Other charges
Earmings before snterest and income taxes (EBIT)
Income fram equity affiliates
Interest
Income fram investments
Other financial income
Other financaal charges
Prowision for income taxes
Earnings from discontinued operations
Earmings
Of which
Eamungs attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners
earntngs from continuing operatrons attributable to Vivend) SA
shareowners
aarmings from discontinued oparations attributatda to Vivendr SA sharecwners

Non controlling interests

Year ended December 31, 2013

{ir mions of euros)

External revenues
Intersegment ravenues
Revenues
Operating expansas excluding amertization and depreciaton
EBITDA
Restructunng charges
Gams/Alossas) on sales of tangible and intangible assets
COther non recumag ems
Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets excluding those acquired thraugh business
combinations
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA)
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment losses an intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Other 1ncome
Other charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Incoma from eguity affikates
Interest
Income from rvestments
Qther financial income
Other finantial charges
Provision for (ncome taxes
Earmngs from discontinued operations
Eamings
Of wiich
Earnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners
earmngs from continuing eperations attnbutable to Vivends SA
shareowners
eamings from discontnued cperations attnbutabla to Vivends SA sharegwners

Non-contralling interasts
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
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Canal+ Group Mﬁ!::eéfgl Vivendi Village Corporate GVT SFR Tatal Vivends
{in millions of euros) P
December 31, 2014
Seqment assets {a) 7829 8677 154 50896 - 22 556
Unallocated assets {b} 13182
Total Assets 35,738
Segment hiabilities (c) 2,608 3463 129 2,404 - - 8,605
Unallocated liabities {d) 4145
Total Liabilities 12,750
Increase in tangible and intangible assets 205 47 7 - - - 259
Capital expenditures net {capex, net) {e) 190 46 7 - - - 243
December 31, 213
Segment assets {a} 7500 8256 251 154 4,674 18,304 39139
Unallocated assets (b} 10041
Total Assets 49,180
Segment Liabifies {c) 2542 3402 78 2213 548 5913 14 696
Unaltocated liabibties {d) 15 454
Total Liabwhtres 30,150
Increase i tangible and intang:ble assets 213 54 8 1 776 3 665 217
Caprtal expenditures, net {capex, net) {e} 21% 26 8 - 769 1610 2624

Additional operating segment data 1s presented m Note 9 “Goodwill”, and Note 10 “Content assets and commitments”

a  Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, investments in equity
affiliates, financial assets, inventories and trade accounts recevable, and other

b Unallocated assets include deferred tax assets, current tax receivables and cash and cash equivalents As of December 31, 2014, they
also included GVT's assets of discontinued businesses for €5,393 million As of December 31, 2613, they also inciuded Marac Telecom
group’s assets of discontinued businesses for €6,562 million and the remaining 83 million Actwision Blizzard shares held by Vivendi,
vajued at €1,078 million {please refer to Note 3)

t  Segment Liabilites include provisions, other nan-current liabilities, and trade accounts payable

d  Unallocated habilities include borrowings and other financial habilities, deferred tax liabiities and current tax payables As of
December 31, 2014, they also included GVT's liabihties assocrated with assets of discontinued businesses for €1,094 miltion {excluding
financial liabilities to Vivendi SA) As of December 31, 2013, they also included Maroc Telecom group's labilities associated with
assets of discontinued businesses for £2,429 million {please refer to Note 3)

e Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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22 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by customer location

Year ended December 31,
(in millions of euros) 2014 2013
Revenues
France 4,482 44% 4 491 44%
Rest of Europe 2505 25% 2,462 24%
Unnted States 1,748 17% 1,883 18%
Rest of the World 1,354 14% 1416 14%
10089 0% 10252 160%
{in milhions of euras) December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
Segment assets
france 11,774 52% 24,950 64%
Rest of Europe 2519 1% 2,483 6%
United States 7660 3% 6,549 17%
Brazl K] 0% 4725 12%
Rest of the World 572 3% 432 1%
22,556 100% 39,139 100%

In 2014 and 2013, acquisitions of tangible and mtangible assets were mainly realized in France by Canal+ Group

Note 3 Discontinued operations

In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operatrons, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision

Blizzard have been reported 1n Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations In accordance with the follawing
terms

¢ Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014 On September 18, 2014, Vivend: and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of
GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
operation as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contnibution to each line of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2014 has been grouped under the lines “Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabilties associated with assets of
discontinued businesses”

+ Completed sales as of December 31, 2014 Viendi deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard as from
November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Earmings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

The adjustments to previously published data are presented in Note 31
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31 Saleof SFR

On November 27, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into on June 20, 2014 and following approval by the French Competition Authonity
on October 27, 2014 subject to conditions {see below), Vivendi anngunced the closing of the combination between SFR and Numernicable
The main terms of this transaction are as follows

Cash proceeds €13 5 bdlion, subject to the sale price adjustment on November 27, 2014, Vivend: received
€13366 billion in cash and, on December 3, 2014, Vivendi made a contribution of
€200 million to the financing of the acquisition of Virgin Mebile by Numencable Group
Under the terms of the agreement, the price adjustment to be calculated 1s based, among
other things, on any exceptional changes i the net working capital, SFR’s net debt, as well
as certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties and s subject to a
contradictory accounting analysis in accordance with the contract

Vivendi's interest in the combined entity | 20% of Numericable - SFR {publicly-listed)

Altice’s interest (n the combined entity Approximately 60% of Numencable - SFR {approximately 20% free float)

Eam-out Eam-out of €750 mullion if the EBITDA Capex aggregate of the combined entity 1s equal to
or hugher than €2 billion durmg any fiscal year, ending not later than Decemnber 31, 2024

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Governance - Minority representation for Vivend: on the Board of Directors, or 2 out of 10 directors,

subject to Vivend) retaming a 20% interest in Numenicable - SFR (1 director if Vivend
holds an interest between 10% and 20%)
Veto nights on certain exceptional matters subject to Vivendi retamning a 20% interest in
Numer:cable - SFR
Numericable - SFR has notably given the French Competition Authority an undertaking
not to disclose any strategic information on the pay-TV market, the distribution of pay-TV
services, or ultramarine telecommunications markets to Vivend:
Standard 180-day lock-up penod, including restnictions on any disposal of transfer of
shares or equivalent transactions, following the date of settlement-delivery of the nghts
1ssue of Numenicable Group {on November 20, 2014}, at the request of the underwnting
banks
Lock-up period until the end of November 2015, after which Vivendi may sell or distnibute
its Numenicable - SFR shares, withaut restrictions, with a nght of pronty granted to
Aluce (pre-emption nght or nght of first offer}
- Vivendi has agreed not to acquire any Numercable - SFR shares, directly or indirectly,
until June 30, 2018
- Subject to Vivend: retaming 1ts shares, Altice will have a call option at market value
(subject to a floor') on Vivend!'s interest, exercisable 1n three tranches (7%, 7%, 6%) over
one-month window periods starting on June 1, 2016, June 1, 2017 and June 1, 2018
- Tag-along nghts for Vivend: if Altice sells its shares
As from the first quarter of 2014, SFR was presented in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in the
Statement of Financial Position of Vivend as a discontinued operation The data presented below relates to the contribution of the operating
segment “SFR” unti! the effective divestiture date, which mcludes SFR S A and its subsidiaries as well as the interest held by Vivend),
through its subsidiary, SIG 50, in the telecommunication products and services distribution operations

Liguidity - Lock-up period

Recognition of 20% interest in Numericable - SFR

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of s interest in SFR to Numericable and received €13 166 billion in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represents a 20% nterest and voting nights Since that date,
Vivendi deconsolidated SFR Given the significant restrictive nature of the commitments given by Vivendi and Numericable - SFR to the
French Competition Authority with respect ta all Numericable - SFR's operations, Vivendi's minority representation on Numernicable - SFR's
Board of Directors together with the other specific nghts granted to Vivend) by Numenicable - SFR's governance (see above) helps Vivend
adequately protect its proprietary nterests as a minonity shareholder Vivend) considers that it does not have the right to participate in
Numenicable - SFR's financial and operational policy-making processes, according to [AS 28 Without having a sigmficant influence, the 20%
interest in Numericable - SFR was recognized as an “available-for-sale secunities” in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
and, 1n accordance with IAS 39, was revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date (€3,987 million as of December 31, 2014) as
the unrealized gains or losses were dwectly recognized 1n equity From November 27, 2014 to December 31, 2014, the reevaluation of
Vivendi's interest i Numernicable - SFR resulted in an unrealized gain of €743 million {before taxes}

! Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAP) of Numenicable Group's share pnce over the 20 business days before the closmg date fwhich occurred on November 27, 2014)
€29 46 grossed-up at an annual rate of 5% during the penod ranging from the closing date until the date of exercise of the call option
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Capital gain on the sale of SFR

In accordance with [FRS, the capital gain on the sale of SFR was calcutated as the difference between the sale price of 100% of SFR and the
value of SFR's net assets, as recorded in Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements on the date of the sale The components of the sale
price are {1} the €13 166 billion cash proceeds, and (1) the value of a 20% mnterest in the new combined entity Numericable-SFR, valued at
the stock market's price on Movember 27, 2014 (€33 315 per share), or £3 244 billion The earn-out (€750 million) was excluded from the
calculation at this stage, due to its contingent nature On this basis, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to €2,378 million (after
taxes), recognized n the Consolidated Statement of Earmings under the line “Eamings from discontinued operations” Excluding the
discontmuation” of amortization since Apnl 1, 2014, n accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain on the sale of SFR amounted to £3,459
million

Guarantees related to the sale of Maroc Telecom group

Vivend: has agreed fo counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that may be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in relation
with the sale of 1ts interast in Maroc Telecom
« with respect to the sale agreement entered into with Etisalat, this commitment will expire at the expiry of Etisalat’s nght to make
a clarm against Vivend: and SFR, 1 e , on May 14, 2018, and
+ this commiiment, which will also cover any amount that SFR may be required to pay to any third-party other than Etisalat, wilk
expire in the absence of any request from Numericable Group within the applicable statutes of imitations

3.2 Plantoselt GVT

On August 28, 2014, Vivend!'s Supervisory Board decided to enter into exclusive negotiations with Telefonica to sell GVT After receiving a
positive opinion from employee representatives, on September 18, 2014 1t authonzed the execution of an agreement with Telefonica for the
sale of GVT This agreement, the key terms of which are described below, represents a total enterprise value of €7 45 billion {based on the
stock market value and foreign exchange rates on the date the exclusive negotiations were entered into with Telefonica), corresponding to a
2014 estimated EBITDA multiple of 10x The closing of the transaction 15 subject to certain conchtions, including the approval by the relevant
regulatory authorties, and 1s expected to occur dunng the second guarter of 2015

Cash proceeds at the completion date €4 66 billion subject to the sale price adjustment, based, among other things, on exceptional
changes in net working capital, GVT's bank debt {approximately €480 million), as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties, at the completion date of the
sale Depending on these adjustments and the actual numbers as of the completion date, the
amgunt of cash considerat:on paid, may be increased or decreased Moreover, the cash
proceeds, net of adjustments, will also be decreased by any applicable taxes related to the
sale, currently estimated at approximately €500 million The net sale price s estimated at
approximately £3 75 bitlion

Consideration shares 74% mnterest in Telefonica Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and 57% mnterest (8 3% voting nghts) 1n
Telecom ltala

Financing Capital increase at Vivo to fund cash proceeds, guaranteed by Telefonica

Conditions precedent Completion of the transaction 15 subject to obtaming approvals from ANATEL {Agéncia

Nacronal de Telecomunicages) and CADE (Conselho Administrativa de Defesa Econbmica) in
Brazl, and other conditions customary m this type of transaction

Commitments given Limited representations and warranties

Liquidity With respect to Vivendi's interest in the combined VIVO/GVT entity

maximum 180 day lock-up period starting as from the completion date of the
transaction, and

tag-atong nights

Governance No specific governance nights in VIVO/GVT and Telecom Itaha

As from the third quarter of 2014, given the expected closing date of this transaction, GVT was presented in the Cansolidated Statement of
Eamings, the Statement of Cash Flows and in Statement of Financial Pesitron of Vivend: as a discontinued operatton

? When an actity 1s discontinued IFRS 5 requires the discontinuation of the amortization of the operation s tangible and intangible assets Therefore for SFR reported as a
discontinued aperation sice March 31 2014 Vivend: discontinued the amertization of tangible and intangrble assets as from the second quarter of 2014 resulting in a positive
impact attnbutable te Vivend: SA shareholders of €1 081 million en earnings from discontinued operations from April 1 to November 27 2014
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3.3 Sale of Maroc Telecom group

On May 14, 2014, pursuant to the agreements entered into on November 4, 2013, Vivendi sold its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom to Etisalat
and received €4,138 million in total cash proceeds from sale, after a contractual price adjustment {-€49 million) On the same date, Vivend
deconsohdated Marac Telecom and recorded a capital gain of €786 million (before taxes and net of costs related to the sale), which 1s
presented under "Eamings from discantinued cperations™ in 2014 The agreements cantained representations and warranties customary to
this type of transaction The main terms of the sale were the following

» Vwend provided certain customary representations and warranties to Eusalat refating to SPT {the holding company of Maroc
Telecom group), Maroc Telecom and its subsidianies Vivendi also granted a number of specific guarantees,

« the amount of compensation to be paid by Vivend in respect of indemnifiable losses incurred by Maroc Telecom or ene of 1ts
substdiarnies was determined In proportion to the percentage of ownership held indirectly by Vivends in the relevant company on
the closing date {1 e, 53% for Maroc Telecom),

o Vivend's overall obligation to indemnify was capped at 50% of the instial sale price, and this threshold was increased to 100% in
respect of claims related to SPT,

» the commitments to :ndemnify provided by Vivend:, other than those In respect of taxes and SPT, will remain in effect for a
24 month penod following completion of the transaction (May 2016) Claims for tax-related indemnities must be made by January
15, 2018 The indemnity related to SPT remains in effect until the end of a four-year penod following the clesing (May 14, 2018),
and

+ to guarantee the payment of any specific indemnity amounts referenced above, Vivend delivered a bank guarantee to Etisalat in
the amount of £247 million, expinng on February 15,2018 On July 8, 2014, Vivend received a discharge of this guarantee for the
amount of €229 million

34 Sale of Activision Blizzard shares

In accordance with the agreements entered into on October 11, 2013, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares retained by Vivend: were
subject to a two-tiered lack-up provision

«  from October 11, 2013 until Apnl 9, 2014, Vivend: cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise dispose of any Activision Blizzard
shares directly or indirectly, fraom Apnl 10, untel July 8, 2014, Vivend: can self Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no
more than the lesser of (1) 50% of Vivendr's 83 million remaining shares and (1) 9% of the outstanding shares of Activision
Blizzard, and

s from July 10, 2014 until January 7, 2015, Vivendi was subject to another lock-up provision, as from January 7, 2015, Vivendi may
sell its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Considenng the mitial intention of Vivend) Management to sell these shares at the end of the lock-up periods if market conditions were
favorable, the 83 million Activision Blizzard shares were classified as “Assets held for sale”

On May 22, 2014, Vivendi sold a first tranche of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares for $852 million (€623 milion) The €84 million capital
gain 1s presented in “Earnings from discontinued operations” Taking inte account the capital gain of €123 million recorded in 2013, the
capital gain reahized by Vivend) with respect to this first tranche of Activision Blizzard shares amounted to €207 miflion

As of December 31, 2014, the remaning interest of 415 million Activision Blizzard shares, valued at $836 million {€689 millign} was
reclassified in “available-for-sale secunties” as Vivend: Management has decided not to sell this interest i the immediate future As of
December 31, 2014, the unrealized capital gain with respect to this :nterest amounted to €273 million (before taxes), directly recognized In
equity

Financial Report and Audited Cansolidated Financtat Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivendi /74




Friday, February 27 2015

35 Earnings from discontinued operations

in compliance with IFRS 5, the ine “Eamings from discontinued operations” presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Eamings
includes the operations of GVT {for the years 2014 and 2013), SFR {for the year 2013 and until the date of the sale an November 27, 2014),
Marac Telecom group {for the year 2013 and until the date of the sale on May 14, 2014), and Activision Blizzard {until the date of the sale on
October 11, 2013) as well as the capital gain on completed divestiture with respect to discontinued operations

2014 contnbutions
oV SER Ma“’é:e'ec"m Other Total
{inmillion of euros) oup
Revenues 1765 8,981 969 - 11715
EBITDA 702 2129 530 - 3361
Adjusted earmings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 367 669 360 - 1,416
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization {a) 478 1732 53 - 274
Earmings before tnterest and income taxes (EBIT) 457 1676 531 . 2664
Earmings before provision for income taxes 393 1487 527 - 2,407
Prowision for income taxes {89) {188) (120 - (397)
Earnings 304 1,29 407 - 2,010
Capital gain an completed divestiture na 2378 786 84 b 3,248
Other 12) - - B 4
Earnings from discontinued operations 302 3,641 1,193 0 5262
— — —
Of which attnbutable to Vivend SA sharegwners 3062 3,663 979 90 5034
non-controlling interests - 14 214 - 228
2013 contnbutions
avT SFR Maroc Telecom Activiston Total
Group Blizzard
{in milhons of euras)
Revenues 1,709 10,199 2 558 2328 16795
EBITDA 707 2 766 1453 989 5915
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 405 1073 984 871 3333
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization {a) 405 1,073 1215 895 3588
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 355 (1427} {¢) 1202 891 19021
Earnings before provision for income taxes 12i {1,689} {c 1169 846 447
Provision for ingome taxes {32} {315 (473) {154) {374}
Earnings 89 {2,004} {c) 696 692 (527}
Capital gan on completed divestiture na na na 2,915 2915
Gain in value of the remaining interest na na na 245 245
Earnings from discontinued operations 89 {2,004} (c| 636 3.852 2,633
Of which attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners 89 {2010} {c) 261 3584 1,924
noa-controlling interests 6 435 268 709
na not applicable
a In compliance with IFRS 5, Vivendi discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets of
- GVT as from September 1, 2014,
- SFR as from Apnil 1, 2014,
- Maroc Telecom group as from July 1, 2013, and
- Activsion Bhzzard as from July 1, 2013
b Includes the capital ga:n on the divestiture of 41 5 mitlion Activision Blizzard shares, completed on May 22, 2014

€ Includes the impairment of SFR's goodwill for €2,431 million
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In compliance with IFRS 5, the lines "Assets of discontnued businesses” and “Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses”
presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position repert the contribution of discontinued operations at the closing date

- GVT as of December 31, 2014, and
- Maroc Telecom group as of December 31, 2013

{tn milhons of euras)

Goodwilt

Intangible assets

Property plant and equipment

Trade accounts recetvable and other
Cash and cash equivalents

Qther

Assets of discontinued businesses

Provisions
Borrowings and other financial iabilities
of winch Borrowings from Vivends {a)
Trade accounts payable and other
Other
Liabilities
Borrowings from Vivendi {a)
Liabihities associated with assets of discontinued businesses

December 31 2014
GVT

1676
1m
2694
657
179
16
5,393
67
1506
1,110
510
121
2204
{1,110)
1,094

4,239

a  This borrowing from Vivend will be redeemed on the date of GVT's sale completion

{m milions of euros)

Goodwilt

Intangible assets

Property plant and equipment

Trade accounts recervable and other
Cash and cash equivalents

Other

Assets of discontinued businesses

Provisions

Borrowsngs and other financial habilities

Trade accounts payable and other

Other

Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses

“December 31 2013
Maroc Tefecom
Group
2392

386

2 466
845
396
77
6,562

8
no
1,541
100
2,429

4133
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3.7 Statement of Cash Flows of discontinued operations
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In accordance with IFRS 5, the line "Cash Flows of discontinued operaticns” of Vivend:'s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows takes into
account GVT {for the years 2014 and 2013}, SFR {for the year 2013 and until its effective sale in 2014}, Maroc Telecom group (for the year
2013 and until its effective sale in 2014}, and Activision Blizzard {until its effective sale in 2013}

2014 contributions

GvT SFR M"””g Telocom  1otal
{in millions of eurgs) roup
Operating activities
Gross cash provided by operating activities before income tax pad 7o 1,846 345 2,901
Other changes n net working capital 140 {320) 27 1333)
Nat cash provided by operating activities 53 1339 302 2,234
Investing activities
Capital expenditures net 17 (1 238) (148) 2001)
Change in financiat assets net 2 (35) {33)
Net cash provided by/{used for} investing actvities {615) 1.273) {146} {2,034)
Financing activities
Dwidends pard to non controliing interests - {7 {20} (27
Other transactions with non contralling interests - - {t1} (n
tnterest paid net on financings {22} (B) {28)
Interest paid o0 borrowings from Yivendi {13 141} (154}
Other transactions on borrowings and othes financial labilities 125 410) {101} {536)
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities excluding intersegment transactions {60) (564) 132) {756}
Transactions with Vivends on borrowings and other financaal iabilibies 110 237 347
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities (-] {327) (132) (809)
Faresgn currency translation adjustments 12) - {2) (4]
Change in cash and cash equivalents % {261) 22 213)
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the period 15 39_4_ 396 944
Atend of the peniod 180 133 418 731
2013 contributions
GvT SFR Marog Telecom A[;:Itmsmn Total
{in mifhons of euros) roup I2zard
Operating activittes
Gross cash provided by operating actvities before income tax patd " 2565 1448 %07 5637
Other changes in net working captal 3% (306) 29 (524) (839)
Net cash provided by oparating activities 515 1961 1110 307 3,953
Investing activitios
Capital expenditures nes {769) {1610) 1434) [44) {2857)
Change in financial assets net 4 (2_8_!_ 5 ) i?ﬂ f1 m
Net cash provided by/flused for} investing activitios {113) (1,638) 429) {1523) (4.363)
Fll'lll'll:lllﬂ activities
Divigends paid 1o non contrelling interests - 3 (328} (66} (397)
Interest patd net on financings 123) {16) (29} ] 67)
Interest paid on borrowings from Vivendi {10 212 (222
Other transactions on borrowangs and ather fingncral habilties 43 [46) ﬂ 1719 1703
Not cash provided hy/{used for) financing activities excloding mtersegmant transactions 10 f2m {370} 1,654 1017
Dividends paid ta Vivendi - (3982} - 198} (1 080)
Transactions with Vivendi on borrewangs and other financial lizbihties 184 1063 1247
Net cash provided byflused for) financing activitias 194 {196} (370} 1,556 1,184
Foreign currency translation adjustments {2B) i {43} {72)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (32} 121 310 297 702
Cosh and cash equivalents — —
At beginning of the period 186 267 [ 2989 3528
At end of the penod 154 354 3% 3288 4230
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Note 4 EBIT

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31

x

{m mullions of euros) 2014 2013

Product sales, net 4701 5028

Services revenues 5322 5,196

Other B6 28

Revenues 10,089 10,252

Cost of products soid, net {2.365) {2514)

Cost of service revenues (3,748} {3,576}

Other {8} {7

Cost of revenues {6,121} {6,097)

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of evros except number of employees) Note 2014 2013
Annual average number of full-time equivalent amployees (in thousands) 150 146
Salaries 1,015 1,043
Social secunity and other employment charges 251 24
Camitahzed personnet costs 3 (3}
Wages and expenses 1263 1281
Share-based compensation plans 201 (=} 29
Employee benefit plans 191 10 17
Other 42 34
Psrsonnel costs 1,307 1,361

Additsonal information on operating expenses

Advertising costs amounted to £407 million in 2014 (compared to €442 milhon i 2013)

frnday February 27, 2015

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earmings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €115 mullion

in 2014 {compared to €108 million in 2013)

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Eamings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €104 million in 2014 {compared to

€97 million In 2013)

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

(n milbions of euros)

Amortization (excluding intangible assets acquired through business combinations)

of which property, plant and equipment
comtent assets
other intangible assets
Amorttzatien of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
of which content assets
other intangible assets
tmpairment losses on intangible assets acquired thraugh business combinations
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangilrle assets

Note

12
10
n

10
n
10-11

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
kY 310
232 228
4 22
&t 60
344 350
33 339
10 11
3z (a) 6
743 666

a  Pnmanly relates to full impairment losses of goodwill related to Digitick for €43 million and Wengo for €48 million (please refer to

Note 9)
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Qther income and other charges

Year endad December 31,

{in milhons of euros) 04 2013
Caprtal gain on financial investments 194 (a) ¥
Caputal gain on the divestiture of businesses . 3
Other 9 48
Other income 203 88
Downstde adjustment on financial investments (17} {28}
Other {13) (22}
Other charges {30) {50}
Net total 173 38

a Includes the capital gan of the sale of Universal Mustc Group’s interest in Beats (€179 milhion)

Note b Financial charges and income

Interest
Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros} Note 2014 2013
{Chargel/Income
Interast expense on borrowings 21 283} {494)
Interest income on SFA's loans 158 212
Interest income an GVT's loans 13 10
Interest expense net of borrowings {111) (272)
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 15 6
Interest from continuing operations {961 1265}
Premism paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds (a) {698} (202}

{794) {468}

Other financial income and charges

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
Expected return on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 192 12 13
Fareign exchange gain 7 -

Other financial ncome 19 13
Premium paid and other costs related ta the early redemptions of bands (a) (698) {202)
Effect of undiscounting liabelities (b) (B 112)
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 192 (31 (31
Foreign exchange loss (8) (45)
Change in value of denvative instruments {1}
QOther (6) (9}

Gther financial charges {751) {300}

Not total {732) {287)

a  Includes net premium paid related to the early redemption of bonds
a net amount of €642 miliion 10 2014, following the completion of the sale of SFR, and
- anet amount of £182 million 1n 2013, following the sale of 88% of Vivend!'s interest in Activision Blizzard

b Inaccordance with apphcable accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money :s material, assets and Labilities are
initially recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and liabilities 1s adjusted to account for the passage
of time As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, these adjustments only apptied to liabilities (mainly trade accounts payable and
provisions}
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Note 6 income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, until December 31, 2011 nclusive, from the
Consalidated Giobal Profit Tax System, as authonzed under Article 209 quinguies of the French Tax Code Since January 1, 2012, Vivend
only benefits from the French Tax Group System

Under the French Tax Group Systern, Vivends is entitled to consohdate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by 1t, and that are located in France for 2014, this mainly applied
to Universal Music m France and Canal+ Group In 2014, SFR s no longer part of Vivend:'s tax group following its sale to
Numericable Group at the end of November 2014

Untit December 31, 2011, the Consohdated Global Profit Tax Systern entitled Vivend to consolidate its own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owned directly or indwectly by it, and located in France or
abroad, 1 e, other than the French companies that were at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivend: Activision Blizard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidianes, as well as Société d'Edition de Canal Plus
(SECP) As a reminder, an May 19, 2008, Vivend! lodged an appeal with the French Ministry of Finance in relation to the renewal of
its authorization to use the Consolhdated Global Profit Tax System and an authanzation was granted by an order dated
March 13, 2009, for a three-year period beginning with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

In addstion, as a remender, on July 6, 2011, Vivend: lodged an appeal with the French Ministry of Finance in relation to the renewat
of its authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year peried, from January 1, 2012 to December 31,
2014

The changes in French Tax Law in 2011 temminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carned forward at 60% of taxable income Stnce 2012, the deduction for tax losses carned forward 1S
capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest ts limited to 85% of financial charges, net {75% as from January
1,2014)

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consclidated Globa! Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivendi's tax attnbutes {tax losses and
tax credits carred forward) are as follows

as Vivend considers that its entitlement to use the Consalidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Minrstry of Finance, including fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, an November 30, 2012,
Vivendi filed for a refund of €366 milhon with respect to the tax saving for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 As this
request was denied by the tax authorities, in ts Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivend accrued a
€366 million provision for the associated nisk, unchanged as of December 31, 2013 On October 6, 2014, the Administrative Court
of Montreull ruled in favor of Vivend) Pursuant to this ruling, on December 23, 2014, Vivend: received a €366 million refund and
maratorium interests of €43 million which were recewved on January 16, 2015 On December 2, 2014, the tax authorities appealed
this ruling As a result, inits Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivend maintained the prowision related
to the €366 millien principal refund increased by £43 million with respect to moratorium interests (please refer to Note 6 6),
mareover, considering that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be carned forward upon the snd of
the authornization on Becember 31, 2011, Vivend: requested a refund of taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the year
ended December 31, 2012, or €208 million, brought to €220 million, in 2013 when filing the tax return with respect to fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012 This position was challenged by the tax authorities as part of an n-process control procedure and
Vivendi accrued the associated risk for a principal amount of €208 million in prowision in its Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012, brought to €220 million as of December 31, 2013 In its Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014, Vivend: maintained the €220 million princ:pal refund, increased by an additional default :nterest of €11 million
(please refer to Note 6 B),

in the Financial Staternents for the year ended December 31, 2014, the 2014 tax results of the subsidianes within the scope of
Vivendi SA’s French Tax Group System were estimated, and as a result, the amount of tax attributes as of December 31, 2014
could not be reliably determined Taking into account the impact of the estimated 2014 tax results and before the effects of the
ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6) on the amount of tax attributes, Vivendi SA may ach:eve €1,400 million in tax savings
from tax attributes {(undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%), and

as of December 31, 2014, Vivend: SA valued its tax attributes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of one year's
forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivend) would achieve tax savings from the Franch Tax
Group System in an amount of €126 million (undiscounted value based on the current Income tax rate of 38 00%)
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6.2 Provision for income taxes

Year ended December 31,
{inmillions of euros) Note 2014 2013
{Chargel/lncome
Current
Use of tax losses and tax credits
Related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and to the Consolidated .
Glabal Profit Tax System 61 147 415
Related to the US tax group 66 25
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense 21} 22)
Consideration of nsks related to previous years' income taxes (3 133
Other income taxes items (283) (375}
(94) 176
Deferred
Impact of Vivend: SA's French Tax Group System and of the Consol:dated Global
Profit Tax System 61 (37) (16%)
Impact of the US tax group -
Other changes in deferred tax assets 21 2
Impact of the change(s} in tax rates - 3
Reversal of tax habilities - 12
QOther deferred tax Income/{expenses} (20) {46) \
{36) (159) ‘
Prowision for income taxes {130) 17
63 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area
Year ended December 31,
{in miligns of euros) 2014 2013
{Chargel/Income
Current
France (44) 199
United States 5 8
Other countnies {55 (31)
{94) 176 |
Deferred
France (61) (163)
United States (58} (48)
Other countries 83 50
{36) (159)
Provision for income taxes (130 17
Income tax (paidi/collected
France 320 77
United States {5) {8)
Other countries (35) (64)
Income tax {paid)/collected 280 205
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6.4 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31,
{in mullions of euros, except %) 2014 2013
Earmngs (before non-controlling tnterests) 5,025 2718
Elimmation
Income from equity affiliates 18 21
Earmings from discontinued operations 15,262) (2.633)
Pravision for income taxes 130 {17)
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for mcome taxes (89} 150
French statutory tax rate 38 00% 38 00%
Theoretical provision for income taxes hased on French statutory tax rate 3 {57)
Reconcibation of the thepretical and effective provision for income taxes
Permanent differences 1 {28)
of which  other differences from tax rates on eamings 12 4
impacts of the changes in tax rates - 34
Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivend: SA's French Tax Group System
and to the Consolidated Glohal Profit Tax System 37} {161)
Dther tax losses and tax credits (175) (205)
of which  use of unrecognized losses and tax credits 15 -
unrecogiized losses {221) {205}
Other temporary differences 42 3
of which  reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation hitigation n the United States - 41
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense (33) 130
of which  consideration of nsks related to previous years' meome taxes {3} 145
Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustnents on financial
Investments or busiesses (35) {2)
of which imparment of Digitick goodwill 17)
imparrment of Wengo goodwill {18)
Other - A
Provision for income taxes (130} 17
Effective tax rate -1461% -113%

65 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes n deferred tax assets/{Liabilities), net

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2014 2013

Opening balance of deferred tax assats/{hiabilibes) 53 454
Prowision far income taxes {a) {53) {437
Charges and income directly recorded in equity 54 - {b)
Business combinations 9 163
Divestitures in progress or completed {20) {208)
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 10 79

Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities} 53 53

a Includes income/{charges) related to taxes from discontinued operatians 1n accordance with IFRS 5, these amounts were reclassified
ta the line “Eamings from discontinued operations”™ in the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

b Includes -€43 million recogmized in other items of charges and :ncome directly recogmnized in equity for the year ended
December 31, 2013 {please refer to Note 8}
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Companents of deferred tax assets and habihities

{in milliens of euros} December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Deferred tax assets
Recognizable deferred taxes
Tax attributes (a) 2437 2,991
of which Vivendi SA {b) 1,400 1527
US tax group [c) 418 64
Temparary differences (d} 704 1,105
Netting (124) {501)
Recogmizable deferred taxes 3.017 3,195
Deferred taxes, unrecognized
Tax attributes {a) {2,155) (2,262)
of which Vivend: SA {b) {1,274) {1,364)
US tax group (c) {419 (364)
Temporary differences (d) (152) {200)
Deferred taxes, unrecognized (2.307) 12,962)
Recorded deferred tax assets 710 733
Deferred tax iabilities
Asset revaluations (e) 484 591
Other 297 590
Netting {124) (501}
Recorded deferred tax habilities 657 680
Deferred tax assets/(Liabilities), net 53 53

Friday February 27 2015

The amounts of tax attnbutes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junsdictions which
are significant for Vivendi, mainty France and the United States, tax returns are fited on May 1% and September 15" of the follawing
year at the latest, respectively The amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorties
may therefore differ, and (f necessary, may need to be adjusted at the end of the following year in the above table

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable i respect of tax attributes by Vivend: SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€1,400 million as of Decernber 31, 2014 {please refer to Note 6 1), of which €1,115 milhon related to tax losses and €285 million
related to tax credits, taking into account the estimated impact (-€310 million) of 2014 transactions {taxable income and use or
expiration of tax credits), but before taking mto account the effects of ongoing tax audits {please refer to Note 6 B}

In France, tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely and Vivend considers that tax credits can be cairied forward for @ minimum
period of five years upon exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System In 2014, €265 million tax credits matured as of

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attnibutes by Universal Music Group, Inc in the United States as head of
the US tax group, representing $509 million as of December 31, 2014, taking into account the estimated impact {-$68 million} of the
2014 transactions {taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, but before

As a reminder, with respect to the divestiture of B8% of the mterest in Activision Bhizzard and in accordance with U S tax rules,
Vivend: allocated to Activision Blizzard, the acquirer of the majonty of the Activision Blizzard shares transferred in the transaction, a
fraction of its tax losses estimated at more than $700 million In addition, Universal Music Group Ing replaced Vivend) Holding | LLC

In the United States, tax losses can be carned forward for a perod of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carned forward for a penod

Matnly relates to the deferred tax assets associated with non-deducted provisions tpen recognition, including provisions relating to

a
b
December 31, 2014
C
taking into account the final outcome of ongaing tax audits {please refer to Note 6 B}
(formerly, Vivend) Hoiding | Corp ) as head of the Tax Group System in the United States
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2021 and no tax credit had matured n 2014
d
employee benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans
e

These tax liabilities, generated by asset revaluations following purchase allacations are terminated upon the amortization or
divestiture of the underlying asset and generate no current tax charge
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6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended on December 31, 2014 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authorities 1n the junsdictions in
which Vivend: has or had operations Various tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior years Itis
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavarable outcome of these
audits Vivend: Management believes that these tax audits should not have a matenal unfavorable impact on the financial position or
liquidity of the group

Regarding Vivend| SA, tn respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the consohidated income reported for fiscal years 2006, 2007,
and 2008 1s under audit by the French tax authorities This tax audit began in January 2010 In addition, in January 2011, the French tax
authorities began a tax audit on the censohdated ncome reported for fiscal year 2009 and in February 2013, the French tax authorties
expanded the audit to include the consolidated income mperted for fiscal year 2010 Finally, the audit of Vivendi SA's tax group System for
the years 2011 and 2012 began m July 2013 As of December 31, 2014, all of these audits were ongoing Vivendi Management believes that
it has solid legal grounds to defend 1ts positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit In any event, a provision
for the impact of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System s 2011 has been accrued (€409 million), notwithstanding the decision of the
Admimistrative Court of Mantreui on Qctober B, 2014, subject to the appeal filed by the Tax Authorities (please refer to Note 6 1), as well as
a provsion for the impact in relation to the use of tax credits m 2012 (€231 million)

In respect of the US tax group, the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were under a tax audit The final outcome of this
tax audit did not matenially impact the amount of tax attributes Vivendi's US tax group was also under audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 This tax audit has now been completed and ts final outcome did nat matenally impact the amount of
tax attnbutes In June 2014, the US tax authorities began a tax audit for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, and in December 2014, stated that they
undertook a tax audit for fiscal year 2013 As of December 31, 2014, the audit with respect to these fiscal years was ongoing Vivend
Management believes that it has soiid legal grounds to defend 1ts positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under
audit

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31
2014 2013
Basic Diluted Basic Dituted

Earnings {in millions of euros)

Earnings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners {290) {290) 43 43
Earnings from discontinued operations attnbutable to Vivends SA shareowners 5034 5,034 1924 1,921
Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 4744 4,744 1,967 1964
Number of shares (in millions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (a) 1,3458 13458 13306 1,3306
Potenual dilutve effects related to share-based compensation (b) 55 - 47
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13458 13513 13306 13353
Earmings per share (in euros)

Earnings from continuing operations attributable ta Vivend: SA shareowners per share 022 {022 003 003
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 374 313 145 144
Earnings attributable to Yavend: SA shareowners per share 352 n 148 147

a  Netof treasury shares {please refer to Note 17)

b Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, which could be potentially dilutive The balance of common
shares i connection with Vivendi SA's share-based compensation plans 1s presented in Note 20 2 1
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Note 8 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{n millions of euras) Note

Actuarial gans/{losses) related to employee defined benefit plans 19
ltems not reclassified to profit or loss

Forsign currency translation adjustments (a}

Unrealized gams/{losses}
Change in fair value (b)
Transferred to profit o loss of the perrod fc)
Other (d)
Assets avallable forsale 14

Cash flow hedge instruments
Change in fair value
Transferred to profit ar loss of the period
Netinvestment hedge instruments
Change in fair value
Transferred to profit or foss of the perod
Hedging instruments 22

Other impacts
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{m mullans of euros) Note

Actuarial gains/{losses) related to employee defined benefit plans 19
items not reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments {e}

Unrealized gains/losses)
Change in fair value
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Assets avallable for sale 14

Cash flow hedge instruments
Change n fair valug
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Net investment hedge instruments
Change i fair value
Transferred te profit or loss of the period
Hedging instruments 22

Other impacts
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Friday February 27 2015

Year ended December 31 2014

Gross Tax Net

{93) 25 {68]
(93} 25 (68}
78 778
907 29 936
220 {5 15
{95} 36 {58}
123 - 123
948 i 979
15 m 14

g {1} 5

3 g
(56) - {56)
{56} {56)
(4] m (42)
{94} - {94)
1,591 29 1,620
1,498 54 1,552

Year ended December 31, 2013
Gross Tax Net

(22} {1} {23)
22) {1 {23)
(1,429) (t,429)
99 (41} 58
120 {42) 78

1 i

121 (42} 79

2 1 3

16 16
f14) 1 {13
(24) (24}

5 15
{39 {39)
22} 1 21}

16 {1) 15
(1,314 {a2) {1,396}
{1,336} {43) {1,379}

a  Mainly relates to foreign currency translation adjustments due to fluctuations in exchange rates at UMG (€730 million)

b Prnmanly includes unrealized capital gains related to 97 4 mill:on shares in Numericable - SFR from November 27 to December 31, 2014
for €743 mullion (please refer to Note 3 1) and 41 5 milkon shares in Actvision Blizzard in 2014 for €150 million (please refer 1o Note
34) In accordance with IAS 39, these available-for-sale secunities were valued on stock market price at each reporting date, refevant
unrealized gains and losses were directly recognized in equity and will be reclassified to profit or loss upon their sale, if any

¢ Relates to the reclassification to profit or loss of the gain realized on the sale of the interest in Beats by UMG in August 2014

d  Relates to the unrealized gain generated from October 11 to December 31, 2013 with respect to 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares
held by Vivend as of December 31, 2014 following their reclassification from assets held for sale to available-for-sale securities as
Vivendi Management has decided not to sell this interest in the immediate future As of December 31, 2014, this interest amounted to
$836 milhan (€683 million) and the unrealized capital gain with respect to this interest amounted to €273 million

e Includes the changes in foreign currency translation adjustments relating to discontinued operations for €685 million and the
reckassification i earnings for €555 million as part of the sale of 88% of the interest in Activision Blizzard
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Note 9 Goodwill
(in milhons of euros) December 31 2014 December 31, 2013
Goodwall, gross 22622 31,639
{mpairment losses {13 293) {14,392}
Geodwill 9329 12,147
Changes in goodwill

December 31 Destitures in progress Changes in foreign December 31

Impairment losses Business combinations currency translation
2013 or completed dustments and ath 2014

fin millons of euros} adiustments ang other
Canal+ Group 4464 - 110 (a) {1 4573
Universal Music Group 4100 - B BE0 {b) 4 556
Vivendt Village 185 81} ic) - 6 100
GVT 1678 - - (1 676) -
SFR 6722 - 77 16799) -
Total 17,347 n} 193 {8,475) 555 9429

December 31 Divestitures in progress Changes in fareign fecember 31

Impaimment losses Business comtunations prog curency translation ecembs
w1z or completed adjustments and other w3

{in milbons of euros) :
Canal+ Graup 4513 {46} 3 4484
Universal Music Group 4138 {5} B4 {d) 5 (102} 4100
Vivend: Village 184 2 - {1 185
GVT 2006 - 1330) 1678
SFR 9153 2431) B - 6,722
Maroc Telecom Group 2407 - (2392 s
Actvision Blizzard 2255 - (2208) 147
Totsl 24,656 {2435) F] (8,595) {499) 17,047

a Notably includes goodwill attnbutable to Mediaserv and Thema acquired by Canal+ Overseas on February 13, 2014 and October 28,

2014, respectively

b Includes €549 mullion related to foreign currency transiation (EUR/USD)

c Relates to full mpairment losses on the goodwlt of Digitick and Wengo {€43 million and €48 million, respectivety)

d Manly relates to a €57 mihon adjustment to goodwill attributable to EMI Recorded Music, recorded within the 12-maonth peniod for
the purchase price allocation as required by IFRS 3 The final goodwill of EMI Recorded Music amounts to €358 mullion
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Goodwill impairment test

in 2014, Vivend) tested the value of goodwill allocated to its cash-generating units (CGUs} or groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previous years Vivend: ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded their carrying value
{including goodwill} The recoverable amount (s determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows (discounted cash flow method (DCF)} and the fair value {less costs to sell}, determined on the hasis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, companison with the value attnbuted to simiar assets or compamnes in recent transactions) For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, please referto Note 1357

Presentstion of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Pay-TV in Mainiznd France Pay-TV aad free-to-air TV in
Canalt Overseas a) France Africa and Vietnam (b)
Canak Group Free-to-air TV
nc+ {Poland) ne+
Studiocanal Studiocanal

Universal Music Group

Recorded mustc

Artst services and merchandising

Music publishing

Universal Music Group

See Tickets See Tickets
Vivendi Village Digrtick Digitick
Wenge Wengo

a  Relates to pay-TV Iin France overseas, Africa and Vietnam

b The process of integrating free-to-air TV operations (D8/D17 channels acquired on September 27, 2012) with pay-TV operations in
mainland France, as well as the development of pay-TV n Vietnam reflects the further convergence of pay-TV and free-to-arr TV
operations in French-speaking countries in which Canal+ Group operates As a result, as of December 31, 2014, Vivendi performed a
goodwill impairment test related to pay-TV and free-to-air TV operations in France, Africa and Vietnam by aggregating the CGU of pay-
TV in Mainland France, Canal+ Overseas and free-to-ar TV, which comresponds to the level of monitoring the return on such
Investments

Duning the fourth quarter of 2014, Vivend: performed a goodwill impairment test on each cash generating unit (CGU) or groups of CGU, on
the basis of valuations of recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers, for pay-TV and free-te-air TV 1n
France, Afnica and Vietnam as well as Universal Music Group and internal valuations for nc+ in Poland, Studiocanal See Tickets, Digitick
and Wengo As a result, Vivendi Management concluded that, as of December 31, 2014, except for the cases of Digitick and Wengo {see
above), the recoverable amaunt for each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2013, Vivend: examined the value of goodwill of pay-TV in Mainland France and Canal+ Overseas
{previousty Canal+ France), using the usual valuation methods and concluded that its recoverable amount, based upon the DCF method, using
the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group, exceeded its carrying value at that date Since November 5,
2013, Vivend: holds a 100% interest in pay-TV operations of Canal+ 1n France and Africa pursuant to the acquisition of Lagardére Group's
20% interest in Canal+ France for £4,020 milhon, m cash in accordance with IFRS 10, this transaction was recognized as the acquisition of a
non-controlling interest and the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying value of the acquired non-controlling interest
was recorded as a deduction from equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

As a reminder, n respect of SFR as of December 31, 2013, Vivend! examined the value of SFR's goodwill SFR's recoverable amount was
determined upon the basis of the usual valuation methods, in particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash
flow forecasts, and financial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated to take into account the
strong impact on revenues of the new pricing policies decided by SFR i a campetitive environment, partially offset by cost savings which
were consistent with expectations under SFR's transformation plan, while mantaining high capital expenditures, notably due to SFR's
acceleration of very-high speed mobile network investments As a result, Vivendi's Management concluded that SFR's recoverable amount
was below Its carrying value as of December 31, 2013 and decided to record a goodwili impairment loss of €2,431 mullion
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The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU ts determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2015 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment, on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate and
EBITA as defined in Note 1 2 3, capital expenditures, the compstitive and regulatory environments, technological devefopments and lgve! of
commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on its value in use in accordance with
the matn key assumptions set aut below

Valvation Method Dizcount Rate (a) Paipetual Growth Rate

Ogperating segments CGU or groups of CGU tastad 2014 2M3 2014 2013 2004 2013
::: L\:;:r:adr;rea to-ar TV in Franca Africa OCF & comparables modsl ) o @ " o
Cana+ Group ncr 0CF gt 975% ig) 300% i)
d gk DCF 975% 900% 100% 0 00%
Universal Music Group Universal Music Group OCF & comp model | DCF & camgarables model B 30% 915% 1 00% 1 00%
Ses Tickets 0cF DCF 11 50% 1150% 260% 200%
Vivend: Villaga Diginck OCF DCF 11 50% 11 50% 200% 200%
Wengo OCF DCF 1320% 15 00% 200% {h)
GVT GVT {il DCF U] 11 74% [0] 400%
SFR SFR i DOCF & comparables modal ()] 730% i} 0 50%

BCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverahle amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Pay-TV n Mainland France and Canal+ Overseas DCF & comparables model
Free-to-air TV DCF

¢ Pay-TV-Mainland France 8 04%, France overseas 9 04%, Afnica 1004%, Vietnam 10 88%
Free-to-arr TV 95%

d  Pay-TV-Manland France 8 3%, France overseas 93%, Africa 10 3%
Freg-to-air TV 95%

e Pay-TV-Manland France 15%, France overseas 15%, Africa 3 14%, Vietnam 4 5%
Free-to-air TV 2%

f  Pay-TV-Maintand France 15%, France overseas 2 2%, Africa 317%
Free-to-air TV 2%

g Asof December 31, 2013, no goodwill impairment test in respect of ne+ {pay-TV in Paland) was undertaken grven that the completion date of
the goodwill of “n”, acguired on November 30, 2012 was close to the closing date, and considening that no triggenng event had occurred
between those dates

h  Asof December 31, 2013, the terminal value was determined by using an EBITDA multiple

¢ Considenng the current plan to sell GVT, and in accordance with IFRS 5, GVT has been classified as a discontinued operation since the third
quarter of 2014

| SFRwas sald on November 27, 2014 {please refer to Note 3 1)

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014 Vivend: /68




Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

Friday, February 27, 2015

December 31 2014

Discount rate

Perpetual growth rate

Discounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate

Decrease i the perpetual growth rate

Decrease n the discounted cash flows

Apphed wn order for the receverable amount Apphed I order for the recoverable amount wn oader for the recaverable amount
rate to be equat to the camng amount rate to ba equal 10 the carmying amount 10 be equal to the carrying amgunt
{in %) {in nurber of points) {in %) {in number of paints} fin %}
Canal+ Group
Pay TV and Free to-ar TV in France Africa
and Vietnam lah 028t () 039p1s 4%
ni+ 975% +# 31 pts 300% 1025 pis -49%
Studiocanal 375% +1 66 pt 100% 257 pts 18%
Universal Music Greup 950% +062 pt 100% 077 p %
December 31 2013
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
Increase in the discount rate Decreasa inthe perpetual growth rate Decrease in the d:scounted cash flows
Apphied in ordex for the recovesable amount Apphed 1n order for the recoverable amount wn geder for the recoverable amount
rae 10 be equal 1 the carmyng amount rate 10 be equal 10 the camying smount 1o be equal to the catrying amaunt
{in %) lin number of points) lin %) {in number of ponts} {in %)
Canal+ Group
Pay TV in Mawnland France and Canal+ « onm (d] o2 3%
Qverseas
Free-to-ar TV 950% +184pt 200% 274ps 21%
Studiocanal 300% +2 19 pts 000% 353 pis %
Universal Music Group 915% +2 25 pts 100% 298 pis 2%
GVT 1 24% +126pt 400% 257 s 20%
SFR 730% lel 050% el {8}
a  Pay-TV-Mamland France B 04%, France overseas 904%, Afnica 10 04%, Vietnam 10 88%
Free-to-ar TV 95%
b Pay-TV-Manland France 15%, France overseas 15%, Afnca 3 14%, Vietnam 4 5%
Free-to-ar TV 2%
Pay-TV - Mamland France B8 3%, France overseas 93% Afrca 103%
Free-to-ar TV 2%
Pay-TV - Mainland France 1 5%, France overseas 2 2%, Africa 317%
Free-to-ar TV 2%
SFR was sold on November 27, 2014 (please refer to Note 3 1}
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Note 10 Content assets and commitments

10.1 Content assets

{in rullions of euros)

Film and television costs

Sports rights

Music catalogs and publishing nights
Advances to artists and repertoire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Contant assets

Deduction of current content assets
Non-current content assets

{in millions of euros)

Film and tetevision costs

Sports nghts

Music catatogs and publishing nights
Advances to artists and repertoire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Content assets

Deduction of current content assets
Non-current comtent assets

Changes in main content assets

[ millrons of guros)
Opening balance

Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations
Amortization of content assets acquired through business comiinations

Increase

Decrease

Business combinaticns

Dwestitures in progress or completed

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustrments ang other

Closing balance

10.2 Contractual content commitments

Fridday February 27, 2015

December 31, 2014

Accumulated amortization

Content assets gross

and impairment losses

Content assets

6,003 {5244) 759
4an - M
7897 {6 031) 1,866
642 - 642
27 i20) 7
14,980 {11,295} 3,685
{1 195} 20 {1335)
13.825 {11,275) 2.550
December 31, 2013
Content assets gross Accumulated amortizatian Content assets
and impairment losses
5678 {4875 803
380 - 380
6992 {5,032} 1960
621 - 621
75 (17} 8
13,696 {9,924} 3772
{1 176) 27 {1149)
12,520 {9,897} 2,623

Year ended December 31

2014 2013
mn 43N
{14) 81
(334) 344)
233 2,495
2,352) {2332
77 3
- (347)
247 7
3,685 377

Comnmutments given recorded in the Statement of Financiai Position content habilities

Content habilities are mainly part of “Trade accounts payable and gther” or part of “Other non-current liabilities” whether they are current or

non-current, as applicable (please refer to Note 15}

{n milhons of ewros)

Fiim and television nghts {a)

Sports rights

Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners

Creatwve talent employment agreements and others

Content liabihties

Minimum future payments as of December 31 Z(14

Total minsmum future
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Total Due in payments as of

2015 2016 2019 After 2019 Decernber 31, 2013

193 193 - 208

40 400 402

1721 1699 22 1614

119 42 75 2 111

2433 23 i 2 235,
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Off balance sheet commitments given/{receved)

Fnday, February 27, 2015

Minimum future payments as of December 31 2014

Totat mirmmum future

Totat Due payments as of

{in mullons of eures) M5 2016 2012 After 2019 Dacember 31, 2013
Film and television nghts [al 2443 a8z 1416 45 7383
Sports nghts (o) 34087 635 2452 1350
Creative salent employment agreements and others (c) 807 357 401 39 754
Given commitments 6337 1,984 4,269 B4 4,487
Film and telewision nghts {a) [1499) {85) 189) (25) (179)
Sports nghts {3 {3 (10}
Creative talest employment agreements and others (c) not available

Recewved commitments {202) {28} (89) 25) {189)
Total net 6,135 1,896 4,180 59 4.238

Mainly includes contracts valid aver several years for the broadcast of film and TV productions (mainly exclusivity contracts with major
US studios, as well as the license agreement entered into on March 29, 2013 in respect of the entire HBO new senies, for 5 years, as
of May 2013) and pre-purchase contracts relating to the French mowie industry, Studiocanal film production and co-production
commitments {given and received) and broadcasting rights of Canalsat and nc+ muftichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as
content assets when the broadcast 1s available for initial release or after the imtial significant payment As of December 31, 2014,
provisions recorded relating to these commitments amounted to €73 million, compared to €71 mullion as of December 31, 2013

In addition, this amount does not include commitments in relation to channel nght contracts, ISP {Internet Service Provider) royaities
and non-exclusive distrbution of channels, under which Canal+ Group has not granted or received mimmum guarantees The vanable
amount of these commitments cannot be rehiably determined and 1s not reported 1n the Statement of Financial Positian or i
commitments and 15 instead recorded as an expense for the period n which it was incurred Based on the estimation of the future
subscriber number at Canal+ Group, commitments in relation to channel night contracts would have mcreased by a net amount of
€342 million as of December 31, 2014, compared to €354 mitlion as of December 31, 2013

Mareover, according to the agreement entered into with organizations of cinema professionals on December 18, 2009, Société
d'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP) 1s required to invest, every year for a five-year peniod {2010-2014), 12 5% of (ts annual revenues in the
financing of Eurapean films With respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements entered into with producers and authors'
organizations, Canal+ Group ts required to invest, in France, a percentage of its revenues 1n the financing of hantage work every year
Agreements with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ organizatiens are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estimate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined

Notably includes broadcasting nghts of Canal+ Group for the following sport events

- the French professional Soccer League 1, for the 2015/2016 seasen {427 million) and the four seasons (2016/2017 to 2019/2020)
awarded on April 4, 2014 for the two premium lots {€2,160 million}, compared to €854 million as of December 31, 2013 with
respect to the two seasons 2014/2015 and 2015/2016,
the Soccer Champions League for three seasons (2015/2016 to 2017/2018) awarded on Apnl 11, 2014 for ane lot,

- the Saccer English Premier League for the 2015/2015 season, renewed n January 2013 for three seasons, and

- the Formula 1 World Champienship awarded in February 2013

These commitments will be recognized in the Statement of Financial Pesition erther upon the start of every season or upon a
significant mtial payment

Moreover, on January 19, 2015, fellowing to a call for tenders carried out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive rights related to all of the National French ARugby Championship's "TOP 14" matches These nghts, which include all seven
garnes on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show cover the seasons 2015/2016 to 201872019

Primanly relates to UMG which routinely commits to pay agreed amounts to artists and other parties upen delivery of content or other
products {"Creative talent and employment agreements”) Untd the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
1$ obligated to deliver a content or other product to UMG {these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be
religbly determined and, thus, 1s not reported in received commitments
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Note 11

{iIn milhons of euros)

Software
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

(in mitlions of euros}

Software
Telecom licenses
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

Changes in other intangible assets

(in milhions of euros)

Opening balance
Degrectation
Acguisitions

tncrease related to internal developments

Divestitures/Decrease
Bustness combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Other intangible assets

Fnday February 27 2015

December 31, 2014

Other intangible assets,

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

ross and impairment losses
242 {204} 38
230 (178} 52
44 (25) 19
337 217) 120
853 {624) 229

December 31, 2013

Other intangible assats,

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

qross and impairment |osses
5,158 {3.906) 1252
2,505 (620) 1,885
956 811} 145
167 (51) 116
1,825 {917) 908
10,611 (6.305) 4,306

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other

Closing balance

Year ended December 31

2014 2013

4,306 5,190
(278) (924 {a)

275 a7

169 264

(1) {4

€0 33

(4310 (678}

18 [52)

229 4.306

a Relates to the depreciation of other intangible assets as published in the 2013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted to take
Into account the impact of the application of IFAS 5 to Maroc Telecom group

Depreciation of other intangible assets related to continuing operatons {primanly Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of
revenues and in sefling, general and administrative expenses (-E61 million in 2014 and -€60 million i 2013)

Depreciation of other intangible assets related to discontinued businesses was recognized In the line “Earnings from ciscontinued
operations” for -€207 million in 2014 and -€853 mullion in 2013 {of which -€729 mitlion related to SFR}
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Note 12

{in millions of euros)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Set top bexes
Construction-in progress
Other

{rn malhions of euros)

Land

Builldings

Equipment and machinery
Set top boxes
Construction-in-grogress
Dther

Changes in property, plant and equipment

{in miilions of euras)

Opening balance

Depreciation

Acquisitions/Increase
Divestitures/Decrease

Business combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Property, plant and equipment

Frday, February 27 2015

December 31 2014

Property plant and
equipment gross

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment

4 - 4

133 {101) 32
438 {402 BS
978 (584} 362
36 - 36
597 {430} 167
2234 {1,517} n?

December 31 2013

Property plant and
equipment gross

Accumulated
depreciatton and
jmpairment losses

Property plant and equipment

82 (2) 80
3052 {1718} 1334
8768 {4 704} 4,064
2197 {1224) 973

353 - 353
2109 {1372) 737
16,561 9,020} 7,541

Changes In foreign currency translation adjustments and other

Closing balance

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013
1541 9,926
(643) (1,851) (a)
1404 2,448
(42) {115)
25 {40)
(7,542} {2,381)
{26} {446)
n? .50

a Relates to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as published in the 2013 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted
for the impact on the Consol:dated Income Statement of the apphcation of IFRS 5 to Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as

well as SFR and GVT (please see below}

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to continuing operations (primarily Canal+ Group and UMG) was recognized as cost of
revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses for -€232 million in 2014 and -€228 million in 2013 It mainly consists of set top
boxes (-€129 mullion in 2014, compared to -€125 milhion in 2013}

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment related to discontinued operations was recognized as earnings fram discontinued operations
It amounted to -€411 mullion 1n 2014 and -€1,624 million tn 2013 and primanly pertains to SFR and GVT for €212 million and -€139 milhion,
respectively in 2014 {compared to -€932 milhon and -€281 million, respectively, in 2013)
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Note 13  Investments in equity affiliates

Voting interest Value of equity affiliates
{in millzans of euros) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
N Vision (a) 49% 49% 213 215
VEVD 48% 7% I 58
Numergy - 47% 95
Other na na 22 78
306 46

na not applicable
a  As of December 31, 2014, N-Vision, which indirectly owns a 51% interest in TVN [FTA broadcaster in Poland), was held by Canal+

Group (49% mterest} and {T) (51% interest) On October 16, 2014 Canal+ Group and IT) announced that they were jomntly considering
strategic options (n respect of their interest In TVN

Note 14  Financial assets

{1 millons of guros) December 31, 2014 December 31 2013

Available-for-sale securities (a) 4,881 380
Other loans and recevables 1,160 {b} 206
Dervative financral instruments 139 126
Cash deposits backing borrowings - 2
Other financial assets 13 5
Financial assets 6183 699
Deduction of current financral assets {49) {45)
Non-current financial assets 6,144 654

a Asof December 31, 2014, avarlable-for-sale securities notably included

- 97,387,845 Numericable - SFR shares valued at stock market pnice on the closing date, or €40 94/share, for an aggregate value of
€3,987 million (please refer to Note 3 1), and

- 41,499,688 Activision Blizzard shares valued at stock market price on the closing date, or USD$20 15/share, for an aggregate value
of $836 mitlion (E683 mullion) {please refer to Note 3 4)

As of December 31, 2013, available-for-sale secunities included securities held by UMG n Beats for €161 million On August 1, 2014,
these securities were sold for a net amount of €250 milion resulting in a €179 million net gain on sale

Available-for-sale secunties did not mclude any other publicly quoted securities as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and
were not subject to any impairment with respect to fiscal years 2014 and 2013

Relates to the cash deposits of €975 million as part of the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment and €45 rmillion {$55 mullign} as
part of the securities class action in the United States Please refer to Note 26
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Note 15

Changes in net working capital

fin milliors of eurash

Irventenes

Trade accounts receivable and other
Worlang capital assets

Trade accounts payable and other (c}
Other non-currant habilites
Worlang capital lsabilties

Net working capial

(n millions ¢f suros)

Inventones

Trade accounts receivable and other
Working capital assets

Trade accounis payable and other (c}
GOther non-current habilities
Working capial liabilries

Net working capital

Net working capital

Frday February 27, 2015

Changas in
December 31 Ch::gii::“ Business Dwrest:tura:rm fareign currency Gther th) Dacembar 31
2013 operang M cambinatians prograss translagon o 2014
capital (a) completed

adwstments
330 16 19 {257) ] 134
4899 135 107 (3 218) 42 19 1983
5228 151 126 {3 475} 8 19 2,097
10416 20 138 5422) 156 2) 5 306
757 8 {8) {576) 13 73 121
1173 n 130 (5,998} 169 {75} 5.427
15,945) 123 {a) 2523 {121} 94 {3330}

Changes in

December 31 Changes in Businass Dwesttures in foreign currancy Decembar 31
operating working prograss of Other (b
202 combinations translauon 2013
capital (a) complsted
adustments

738 (20 (3) (376) [ic)] . 330
6587 1] (162} {1 419) {79} S 4088
1385 (28) {155} {1795) {88} 9 5228
14196 1252} 18} {3 506} {231} 197 10 416
1002 (84) 17 (2 {23} {143} 757
15,198 (336) 9 13518 (239) 54 111
7873 308 (204} 178 126 145) {5 845)

a  Excludes content investments made by Canal+ Group and UMG In 2013, related to amounts as published in the 2013 Annual Report,
does not include the adjustments from the impact of the apphication of IFRS 5 to Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group as well
as GVT and SFR on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

b Mainly includes the change in net working capital relat:ng to content investments, capital expenditures, and other invastments

c tncludes trade accounts payable for £2,215 million {(€5,454 million as of December 31, 2013) as well as music royalties to artists and
repertoire owners of UMG whose matunty 1s lesser than one year for €1,699 mithon as of December 31, 2014 (€1,598 million as of
December 31, 2013} Please refer to Note 10 2

Note 16

{in millions of euros)

Cash
Cash equivalents
of wiweh UCITS

Term deposits and interest-bearmg current accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31,2014

December 31, 2013

240 925
5,600 518
4,754 48
1,851 470
6.845 1,081

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding cash and cash equivalents of Vivendi amounted to €6,845 mithion, of which €6,524 million 1s held by

Vivendi SA and nvested in the following financial institutions with at least an A2/A rating

*  £4.754 million in ten UCTIS menetary funds, managed by five management companies, and

s £€1,770 million in tenm deposits and interest-bearing current accounts within eight banks Term deposits with initial maturibies
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any ime and present an insignificant nsk of changing in value
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Note17  Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

CGommon shares outstanding {nominal value €55 per sharo} 1,351,601 1,339,610
Treasury shares {50) {51}
Voting rights 1,351,551 1,339,559

As of December 31, 2014, Vivend: helfd 50 thousand treasury shares, representing a non-significant portion of ts share capital These shares
are backed to the part:al hedging of performance share plans As of December, 31, 2014, the market value of the portfolic amounted to
approximately €1 million

In addition, as of December 31, 2014, approximately 42 7 million stock options were outstanding, representing a potential maximum nomnal
share capital increase of €235 million (1 e, 3 16%}

Non-controlling interests

{in millions of ewros) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Canal+ Group 369 368
Maroc Telecom Group (a) - 1,176
Other 13 2
Total 382 1513

a On May 14, 2014, Vivendi sold its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group (please refer to Note 3 3)

Distributions to shareowners of Vivend: SA

On June 30, 2014, Vivendi SA paid an ordinary €1 per share to s shareholders fram additional paid-in capital for an aggregate amount of
€1.348 mi!lion, considered as a return of capital distribution to shareholders

On February 11, 2015, the date of Vivendi's Management Board's meeting which approved the Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2014 and the appropriation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, Vivendi's Management Board decided to propose to
shareholders an ordinary dividend of €1 per share, comprising €0 20 relative to the Group’s business performance and a &0 80 retum to
shareholders as a result of the disposals of assets Based on Vivend('s share capital outstanding shares as of December 31, 2014, this
dvidend would represent a total distnibution estimated at approximately €1 4 billion, to be paid in cash on Apni 23, 2015, following the
coupon detachment on Aprii 21, 2015 This proposal was presented to, and approved by, Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on
February 27, 2015

Share repurchase program

In addition to this distribution, a share repurchase program will be submutted to shareholders' approval, within the tegal imit of 10% of the
share capital, for approxrmately €2 7 billion in accordance with the market reguiations on share repurchases The program will run over a
period of 18 months
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Note 18  Provisions

Divestitures changes in

December 31 Businass faregn currency December 31
Note 013 Addrbon Utihzation Reversal combinabions translation adjustments 2014

{1 mulhons of euros) and other
Employee benefits {a) 674 % 53 1) 4 54 654
Restructuring costs (b) 156 bl {121} {42} 7]
Litigations (c) 26 1379 276 {116} {45) 3 1231) 1 206
Losses on onarous contracts 128 40 {43} m 124
Contingent liabilitres due to disposal (d) 24 7 1 {13} 17
Cost of dismanthng and restonng sites 7% {1 {4}

Qther (e} 1087 110 {52 {53) L] 14 1105
Provisions 31523 538 {3a7) {163} [ {341} XY
p—— —

Deduction of curient provisions {1619} (325) 165 B6 (4} 427 {290)
Non cument provisions 2,904 213 {2z} 197) [ 86 2.883

Dwestituras changes in
Dacember 31 Business fortign curency December 31
Nota 2012 Addrien Uniization Reversal combinations translation adjusments 2013

{in mulhions of guras) and other

Empleyee beaafits {a) 115 23 {58} {i6) 10 {24 812
Rastructuring costs {b) 258 199 {256) 1] 15) {39) 156
Litigations (c) 26 1357 143 {58! (a1 13 {35) 13719
Losses on engrous contracts 143 13 {62 {1) 35 128
Contingent habilies due to disposal (d] 24 3 . {3) 2
Cost of dismantling and restenag sites <] (4} 4] 75
Other (e) 1383 93 {111} 1245) Ll {79} 1087
Provistons 3 969 480 (547) {307) a7 {159) 3523

= el

Deduction of current provisions (711} 277) 237 130 17 9 618}
Non cutrent provisions 3,258 Ei {310} [LFE] 80 (150} 2,904

a Includes deferred employee compensation as weli as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€608 mithon as of December
31, 2014 and €619 milkon as of December 31, 2013, please refer to Nate 19 2), but excludes employee termination reserves recorded

undey restructuring costs

b Asof December 31, 2014, mainly relates to provisions for restructuning at UMG (€38 million} As of Decernber 31, 2013, mainly relates
to provisions for restructuring at SFR (€85 million} and UMG (€67 million)

c Naotably tncludes the reserve accrual i relation to the Liberty Media Corporation fitigation and secunties class action i the United
States for €345 milhon and €100 mill:on, respectively

d Certain commitments given In relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions Thase provisions are not significant and the

amaount is not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend)

e Notably includes litigation provisions for which the amount 1s not detailed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend
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Note 19 Employee benefits

19.1 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The table below provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financtal component The tota! cost of defined
benefit plans is set forth in Note 19 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,

{in milltons of euros} Note 2014 013

Employee defined contribution plans 20 16
Employee defined benefit plans 1922 (10 1
Employee benefit plans 10 17

19.2 Employee defined benefit plans

1921 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made n complance with the accounting policies presented in
Note 138 and have been apphed consistently for several years Demographic assumptions (including notably the rate of compensation
Increase) are company specific Fnancial assumptions [notably the discount rate) are determined by independent actuanes and other
independent advisors and reviewed by Vivendi's Finance Department The discount rate 1s therefore determined for each country by
reference to yields on notes 1ssued by mvestment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunities identical to that of the valued
plang, generally based on relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivendi's Finance Department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit paymants

In accordance with amended 1AS 19, the expected return on plan assets is estimated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year

In weighted sverage

Pensicn benefits Post-retirement benefits

04 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate {a) 29% 316% 38% 45%
Rate of compensation increase 20% 20% 30% 29%
Duration of the benefit obligation {in years) 147 142 108 100

a A 50 basis point increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) to the 2014 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 million 1n pre-tax expense (or an increase of €1 million, respectively) and woutd have led 1o a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benehts of €66 mithon (or an increase of €73 millon, respectively)

Assumptrons used mn accounting for penston benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 014 2013
Discount rate 3175% 4 50% 375% 450% 200% 300% 200% 300%
Rate of compensation increase {weighted average) na na 500% 500% 200% 200% 343% 336%

na not apphcable

Assumptions used in accounting for post+etirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 375% 450% 375% 450%
Rate of compensation increase 350% 350% na na

na not applicable
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31 2014 {a)

December 31 2013 (a)

Equity secunities 3% 4%
Debt secenties 5% 48%
Diversified funds 36% N%
Insurance contracts 4% 5%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Friday, February 27 2015

a Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a limited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by Vivendi nor shares or debt instruments of Vivends

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measurning post-retirement benefits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth i the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down fram 6 7% for the under 65 years of age and 65 years of age and older categories in 2014, to 4 5% n 2022 for
these categories In 2014, a one-percentage-point Increase tn the assumed cost evolutton rates would have increased post-retirement
benefit obligations by €11 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost
evolution rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €3 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million

1922  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid
Pension benefits Post-retrement benefits Total

{in rlbions of euras) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Current service cost 14 12 - 14 12
Past service cost {a} {25} {5} - {25) {5}
(Gains)/lesses on settlements - ti} - 7}
Other 1 1 - 1 1
Impact on selling, admimistrative and general expenses {10 1 - - (10) i
Interest cost 25 25 6 6 3 k|
Expected return on plan assets 12 13) - - 12} 03
impact on other financial chargas and income 13 12 5 6 19 18
Net benefit cost recogmized in profit and loss 3 13 6 6 9 19

a  The recorded past service cost relates to the change of part of the group’s management team since June 2012

In 2014, benefits paid amounted to {1} €45 million {compared to €35 million in 2013) with respect to pensions, of which €18 million {compared
to €9 mifhon v 2013) was paid by pension funds, and {u} €9 mullion {compared to €10 million in 2013) was paid with respect to past-

retuement benefits
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1923 Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Changes in vatue of benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

{in rnllions of euros)

Opening balance
Current service cost
Past service cost
(Gans)/losses on settlernents
Other
Impact on seiling, admimistrative and genersl expenses
Interest cost
Expected return or plan assets
Impact on other financial charges and income
Net benofit cost recogmzed n profit and loss
Experience gams/(losses) {a)
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to thanges i financial assumptions
Adjustment related to asset ceiling
Actuanal gains/{losses} recognized in other comprahensive income
Contributions by plan parbcipants
Contributiens by employers
Benefits paid by the fund
Benefits paid by the employer
Business combinaticns
Dwestitures of businesses (b}
Transfers
Other {of which foreign currency translation adjustments)
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Closing balance
aof which wholly or partly funded benefits
wholly unfunded benefits {c}
of which assets refated to employee benefit plans
provisions for empioyee bengfit plans (d}

Note

Friday, February 27 2015

Employee defined benefit plans

Year ended Decernber 31,2014

Benefit obligation  Fair value of plan Net
assets [provision)/asset
recerded in the
statement of
financsal position
{A) (B] {BHA}
966 356 610
20 (20)
{26) %
M m
5
33 (33)
12 12
(21}
(16)
24 2
4l 7
122 Nz
91)
1 ] -
43 43
18 (18} -
{36) {36} -
1 {1
{102) 102
51 23 (78)
1006 [} {601
=0
447
7
{608)
Vivendi /100

Financal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2014




Friday February 27 2015

Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31 2013

Benefit obligation  Farr value of plan Net
assets {provisionyasset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position
{in millions of evsos) Note {A) {8) {BHA)
Opeming balance 1020 367 {653}
Current service cost 2 121}
Past service tost (g) 18} 18
(Gans)/losses on settlements 128} (22) 7
Other 1 {1}
impact on selfing, admimistrative and gensral expenses 3
Interest cost 35 {39}
Expected return on plan assets 13 13
impact on othar financrai charges and mcome (22}
Net beneht cost recogmized in profit and Joss {19)
Expenience gains/{losses) (a) i2 {1} (13)
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in deraographic assumplions 2 2
Actuanal gans/llosses) related to changes in financiat assumptions 5 {5}
Adjustment related to asset ceiling -
Actuarial gmins/{losses) recognized i1n other comprehensive income {20)
Contributions by ptan participants 1 1 -
Contributions by employers 46 45
Benefits paid by the fund 19) {9) -
Benefits paid by the employer (36} (36) -
Business combinations {f) 12 9 13)
Divestitures of businesses - - -
Transfers - - -
Other (of which foreign currency translation adjustments) {20} +2) B
Reclassification to assets held for sale (g} 31) - 3
Clasing balance %; 356 {610)
of which wholly or partly funded benefits 487
wholly unfunded benefits f¢) 479
of which assats related to emplayee benefit plans g
provisions for emplayee benefit plans (o} 18 613)

Includes the impact on the benefit obligation resutting from the difference between actuanal assumptions at the previous year-end
and effective benefits duning the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the
actual return on plan assets during the year

Relates to the tmpact of the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014

In accordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets As of December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, such plans principally compnse supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans n Germany and post-
retirement benefit plans in the United States

Includes a current hability of €48 milion as of December 31, 2014 {compared to €55 million as of December 31, 2013}

In 2013, past service costs mainly related to the effect of decreases related to restructuring at SFR, as well as the renewal of some
members of the group’s management team since the end of June 2012

Relates to the adjustment in 2013 to account for the tmpact of the acquisition on September 28, 2012 of EMI Recorded Music on the
value of the obligations, plan assets, and underfunded abligation

Relates to the impact of the reclassification of Maroc Telecom group as a discontinued operation, in accardance with IFRS 5
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Benefit ohligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

{in millions of euros}

Benefit ohhigation
US companies

UK companies
German companies
French companies
Other

Fair value of plan assets
US companies

UK companies

German companies

French companies

Orther

Underfunded obligation
IS companies

UK comparies

German companies

French companies

Cther

Friday February 27, 2015

Pansicn benafits (a) Post retirement benetits {b) Total
December 31 Oecember 31 December 31
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
125 107 136 120 261 27
% 233 1 1 297 234
9 190 209 190
157 233 157 &)
65 67 16 15 81 82
as52 30 153 136 1,005 966
57 48 57 48
252 201 252 01
3 3 3 3
54 85 - 54 65
M 39 k[:] kL)
4 356 404 356
{68} {591 {136) 1 {204} (178}
W) (32) ] n {45) {33}
{206) (187} - - (206) (187)
{103) (168} - (103) {188)
127) {28) {16} {13) 143) {43)
(448) {474) (153} 135) {601) {610)

a No employee defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligations and of the underfunded

obligation of these plans

b Pnmanly relates to medical coverage {hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and hfe insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the United States In accordance with the current regulation in relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan is not funded The main nisks for the group relate to changes in discount ratas as wel! as the
increase in the cost of benefits (please refer to the sensitivity analysis described in Note 192 1)

1924 Benehts estmation and future payments

For 2015, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivend: to retirees are estimated to be €40 million in regpect of pensions, of
which €22 million relates to pension funds and €8 million relates to post-retirement benefits

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficianies by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi (in nominal value for the following

10 years} are as follows

{n rulhigns of eurps)

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024

Pension benefits

Post-retirement

henefits

43
K74
32
29
29

162

ﬁm(ﬂtﬂ(ﬂ(ﬂ
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Note 20 Share-based compensation plans

201 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{in milirans of euros) Year ended December 31
Charge/lincome) Note 2014 2013
Stock options performance sharas and bonus shares g 15
Employes stock purchase plans - 8
Stock Appreciation Rights (SAF) - !
Vivend stock nstruments 202 9 24
UMG equity unit plan 203 {17 S
Charge/(Income} related to share-based compensation plans {8) %
Equity-settled mstruments 9 23
Cash settled instruments {17} &

202 Plans granted by Vivendi

Vivend: grants several share-based compensation plans each year based on Vivend shares to officers and employees of the group stock
option plans fwithout discount), performance share plans, as well as a capital increase reserved for employees and retirees (classic and
leveraged plans)

In 2013, the Supervisory Board decided, upon the recommendation of the Management Board and after the advice of the Human Resources
Committee, to stop granting stock option plans In addition, i 2013, Vivend) put into place a capital increase reserved for employees and
retirees (employee stock purchase and leveraged plans)

In 2014, due to the changes in the scope already completed or in progress, Vivend: did not grant any annuat plan to its employees and only
granted 380,000 performance shares to a member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidianes

The accounting methods apphed to value and recognize these granted plans are described 1n Nate 1310 More specifically, the risk-free
interest rate apphed is the rate of French fungible treasury bonds or "Obligations Assimilables du Tiésor” {QAT) with a maturity
correspanding to the expected term of the nstrument at the valuation date, and the expected dwidend vield at grant date 1s based on
Vivendi's dividend distrsbution policy

20.21 Equity-settled instruments

Transactiens on eutstandiny instruments, winch have occurred since January 1, 2013

Stock options Performance shares
MNumber of outstanding Waighted average sirike Number of outstanding
price of outstanding stock
stock options performance shares
options
(in thousands) {in euras} {in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 53,406 205 3884
Granted - na 2782
Exercised (3362) (a) 133 {1 409
Forferted (354} 129 na
Cancelled (194) 159 [199)
Adjusted {b) 3339 194 286
Balance as of December 31, 2013 52,835 197 534
Granted na 360
Exercised {11 264} [a) 175 {1 600}
Forfeited n7 175 na
Cancelled (¢} {571) 137 {440)
Adjusted (b} 2433 191 183
Balance as of December 31, 2014 2122 {d) 193 3867 [e)
Exercigable as of Decemhber 31, 2014 40,269 98 B
Acquired as of December 31, 2014 40,413 198 845

na not applicable

a  As of the dates of exercise of the stock options, the weighted average share price for Vivend: shares was €19 68 {compared to £16 21
for stock options exercised in 2013)
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b Inaccordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares
were adjusted to take into account the impact for the beneficiaries of the following distributions {please refer to Note 17}
e onMay17, 2013 adwdend distribution of €1 per share from reserves with respect to fiscal year 2012, and
« onJune 30, 2014 an ordinary distribution of €1 per share from additional paid-in capital
These adjustments have no impact on share-based compensation expenses related to the relevant stock option and performance share
plans

¢ Atits meeting on February 21, 2014, after review by the Human Resources Committee, the Supervisory Board approved the level of
sausfaction of objectives for the cumulative fiscal years 2012 and 2013 for the performance share plans and the last stock option plan
granted in 2012 It confirmed that not alf the criteria that had been set were satisfied for fiscal year 2013 The final grant of the 2012
performance share and stock option plans represents 88% of the ongmal grant Consequently, among the instruments cancelled in
2014 were 335,784 stock options and 238,207 performance shares granted in 2012

d  The total :ntrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €98 million

e  The weighted-average remaining penod before delivering performance shares was 0 8 year

Please refer to Note 17 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock options, the performance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock options as of December 31, 2014

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock aptions
Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average
Range of sirike prices Number remaining Number
strike price strike price
contractual hfe
{in thousands) {in euros) (in years) {in thousands} {in euros)
Under €15 2 454 119 73 145 18
€15-€17 10980 159 4B 10,980 i59
€17-€19 9,286 185 20 9786 i85
€19-€21 7,012 202 33 7012 202
eN-€23 6413 229 13 5,413 229
€23-€25 6577 247 23 6,577 247
€25 and more - - - - -
42,122 193 a2 40,413 198
Performance share plans

In 2014, due to the changes In the scope already completed or in progress, Vivend: did not grant any annual plan to its employees and only
granted 380,000 performance shares to a member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidiaries

On February 22, 2013, 2,573 thousand performance shares were granted The share price was €14 91

After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 8 3% of the share price on February 22, 2013 and an expected dividend yield of
6 71%, the fair value of each granted performance share was €11 79, corresponding to an aggregate fair vatue of €30 million This value 1s
estimated and 1s set at grant date

These nights vest at the end of a two-year penod, the compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a straight-ine basis over the vesting
period Granted performance shares are then available at the end of a two-year penod However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares
of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders are entitled to the dwidends and
voting nghts attached to these shares from the end of the two-year vesting period The recognized compensation cost corresponds to the
value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the difference between the fair value of the shares to be receved
and the discounted value of dividends that were not receved over the vesting penod

The defimitive grant of performance shares is subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions Such performance conditions include an
extenal indicator, therefore following the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code The objectives relating to the performance
condtions are determined by the Supervisory Board upon proposal by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Committee

The objectives relating to the performance conditions are assessed on a two-year period (three-year peniod for plans granted since June 24,
2014} The definitive grant 15 effective upon the satisfaction of the following performance conditrons
« internal indicators {fwith a weighting of 70%) for corporate head office, the group’s EBITA margin and for each subsichary, its
EBITA margin, as a function of the cumulative income from fiscal years 2013 and 2014, and
+ extenal indicators (with a weighting of 30%} performance of Vivend)'s share price over two consecutive trading years,
compared to a basket of tndices, the STOXX® Europe 600 Media and the STOXX® Europe 600 Telecommunications
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At the meeting held on February 27, 2015, after review by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Committee, the Supervisory
Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives for the cumulative fiscal years 2013 and 2014 for the performance share plans granted
in 2013 It confirmed that not all the criteria that had been set were satisfied for fiscal year 2014 The final grant of the 2613 performance
share plans represents, depending on the subsidianies of the group, between 62% and 80% of the onginal grant Consegquently, a portion of
performance shares granted in 2013 will be cancelled

50 bonus share plan

On July 16, 2012, Vivend: granted a 50 bonus share per employee plan for all the group's french subsidianies 727 thousand shares were
1ssued on July 17, 2014 at the end of a two-year vesting pered The compensation cost Is therefore recognized op a strasght-line basis over
the vesting perod These shares will only be available at the end of another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary
shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivend: SA, employee shareholders have been entitled to the
dividend and voting nghts relating to these shares since July, 17, 2014

2022 Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

In 2014, no capital increase, reserved for employees of participating group companies that have joined an employee stock puschase and
leveraged plans, was put into place by Vivendi

In 2013, Vivendi made a capital increase reserved for employees {stock purchase and leveraged plans) that allowed substantially all of its
employees and retirees to subscribe for Vivend: shares These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restrictions, may be
subscribed by employees for a maximum discount of 20% on the average opeming market price for Vivendi shares during the 20 trading days
preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase by the Management Board and the subscnption price of new shares to 1ssue
The difference between the subscnption price of the shares and the share price on that date represents the benefit granted to the
beneficiares Furthermare, Vivend applied a discount for non-transferabitity in respect of the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the
shares during a five-year period, which ts deducted from the benefit granted to the employees The value of the subscribed shares is
estimated and fixed at the date of the subscnption price for new shares to 1ssue

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2013, the applied valuation assumptions were as follows

2013
Grant date June 28
Subscription price (in euros) 1210
Data at grant date
Share price (in euros) 14 85
Discount to face vatue 16 82%
Expected dvidend yield 687%
Risk-free interest rate 119%
5 year «nterest rate in fine 608%
Repa rate 036%

Under the emptoyee stock purchase plans 2,055 thousand shares were subsenbed in 2013 at £12 10 per share After taking into account
a 152% discount to the share price on the grant date for non-transferability, the fair value per subscribed share was €024 on June 28,
2013

Under the leveraged plans, 9,758 thousand shares were subscribed in 2013 After taking into account a discount for non-transferability
measured after the leveraged impact, the fair value per subscribed share on June 28, 2013 was £2 23

The leveraged plans entitles virtually all employees and retirees of Vivendi and 1ts French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivendi
shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining a discounted subscription price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain
{calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the plan} corresponding to 10 shares for one subscnbed share A financial institution
mandated by Vivend: hedges this transaction

In 2013, the charge recognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €8 million

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resuited in a capital increase (including 'ssue premium} with an aggregate value of €149 million on July
25,2013
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2023 Cash-settled instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vivend granted specific instruments to its US resident managers and employess, with economic features similar to those
granted to non-US resident managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settfed in cash only The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted 1s iniually estimated as of the grant date and 15 then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment date
and the expense Is adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested nights at each such reporting date All of the rights for these plans were
definitively vested as of Apnl 2010

Stock appreciation right plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficiaries thereof to receve the appreciation m the value of the Vivend: share price, they are known as
"stock appreciation rights” {SAR) which are the sconomic equivalent of stock options Under a SAR plan, the benef:cianies will receive a
cash payment upon exercise of their nghts based on the Vivend: share price equal te the difference between the Vivend: share price upon
exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year penod

As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding SAR was 4,427 thousand (compared to 2,980 thousand as of December 31, 2013) Alt nghts
related to SAR were vested and their aggregate intrninsic valug amounted to $6 million As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amount
accrued for these instruments was non-significant

203 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective from January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are
awarded phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciation rights whose value 15 intended to reflect the value of UMG These units are
simply account units and do not represent an actual ownership interest in either UMG ar Vivend: The equity units are notional grants of
equity that witl be payable in cash upon settlement no later than 2015 or earlier under cerntain circumstances The stock appreciation nghts
are essent:ally options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the term

Payouts under the plan generalty coincide with terms of employment, but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upon third party valuations While the participants’ nghts vest at the end of a fixed vesting penod,
compensation expense 15 recognized aver the vesting period as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense I1s recognized based
on the portion of the vesting period that has elapsed and the fair value of the units calculated using an appropriate grant date model in
accordance with IFRS 2

During the third quarter of 2014, one executive, who benefited from the plan, ended his employment contract The phantom equity units and
phantom stock appreciation nights that were awarded to him were therefore cancelled Consequently, the amount previously accrued for
these rights was reversed (€19 mull:on}

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining amount accrued under these arrangements was €12 million {€26 milfion as of December 31,
2013} No payments have been made to date
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Note 21  Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Note December 31 2014 December 31 2013

{in millions of euros) Total Long-term Shart-term Total Long-term Short-term

Bends 211 1950 1950 7.827 6,633 1194

Bank credit faciities (drawn canfirmed} 212 - 2,075 204 81

Commercial paper 1ssued - - - 1,906 - 1,906

Bank overdrafts 168 - 168 143 - 143

Accrued interest to be paid 27 - 27 186 - 186

Other 54 5 49 73 53 20
Nomunal value of barrowings 2199 1955 244 12,210 8700 3510

Cumulative effect of amortized cost and ceevaluation due to

hedge accounting 28 8 8 8

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 87 79 8 22 22 -

Dervative financial instruments 22 33 12 21 26 7 19
Borrowings and other financiel habilities 2,347 2074 FLK] 12,266 9.737 3529

211 Bonds
Interest rate {%) Decembar Matunng during the following periods December
Matunity o, After 3,

fin millons of euros) fominal ~ affectve 2014 W5 26 M7 2008 200 2009 7013
€750 millien (March 2610 4000% 415% Mar-17 750 . - 0 - 750
€700 milier: {December 208) 4875% 495% Dec-13 700 - - 700 - 700
€500 million {December 2009) 4750% 439% Dec 16 500 - 500 - - 500
€300 million  SFR {Juty 2009} 5000% 505% Jul 14 - - 300
£1 120 million (January 2003) 7790%  769% Jan-14 la} - - 854
Bonds without make-whole option 1,950 - 500 750 - 100 - AL
€750 million {July 2013) 2375% 251% Jan 19 - . - - - 750
£700 rulhien [December 2012) 2900%  265% Jan 20 - - - - 700
$650 million {April 2012) 3450%  356% Jan 18 - - - 69
$800 million (Apnil 2012) 4750% 491% Apr 22 - - 189
£1 250 miltion {January 2012) 4125%  431% Jul 17 . . - - - 1,250
£500 million (November 2011) 4875%  500% Nov 18 - - - - 500
€1 050 mlhion HJuly 2011} A790%  467% Jul 21 - - - - - 1050
$700 million (Aprit 2008} 6 629% 685% Apr 18 - - 175
Bonds with make whote option (b} - . - . B - . 4,683
Nominal valus of bonds 1,950 500 a0 700 - 7821

a  Redemption at matunty in January 2014 of the 7 75% bond issued in January 2009 for €894 miflion

b Vivend allocated a portion of the SFR sale proceeds to the early redemption of all eight tranches of its euro and US dollar
denominated bonds with a make-whole option, representing an aggregate principal amount of €4,250 million and $595 million
(€420 million) This transaction, completed in December 2014, resulted in @ premium payment of €642 million {net of gains on interest
rate nsk hedging) in addition to the principal amount of 4,670 smulfion

The bonds denominated in euros are histed on the Luxembourg Stack Exchange

Bonds 1ssued by the group contain custormary provisiens related to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment (pari-passu
ranking] in addition, bonds issued by Vivendi SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change in control tnigger if, as a result of
any such event, the long-term rating of Vivendi SA ;s downgraded below investment grade status (Baa3/BBB-)

21.2 Bank credit facilities

On November 27, 2014, following the receipt of cash proceeds from the sale of SFR, Vivend: cancelled all of its existing bank credit facil:ties
for €7 1 illion and set up a new €2 billion bank credit facility, matunng n five years (2019) and with two one-year renewal options As of
December 31, 2014, this credit facility was undrawn

The €2 hillion bank credit facility containg customary prowisions relating to events of default and covenants relating to negative pledge,
divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivend: SA 1s required to comply with a Proportionate Financial
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Net Debt? to EBITDA? financial covenant over a 12 manth rolling penod not exceeding 3 for the duration of the oan Noen-compliance with
this covenant could result in the early redemption of the facility If it were drawn, or its cancellation As of December 31, 2014, Vivend SA
was in compliance with its financial covenant

The renewal of Vivendi SA's confirmed bank credit facihity when 1t 1s drawn is contingent upon the issuer reiterating certain representations
regarding its ability to comply with its financial abligations with respect to loan contracts

In addition, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 million, maturing in March 2016, was 1ssued in connsction with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment {please refer to Note 26} This letter of credit 1s guaranteed by a syndicate of 15 mntemational banks with
which Vivend signed a Reimbursement Agreement that includes an undertaking by Vivend: to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out
under the letter of credit On July 16, 2014, Vivend: strengthened the guarantees given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement
Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €375 million in an escrow account This cash deposit could be used n prionty against a claim made
aganst Vivendi, if any, and «f the banks were called with respect to the letter of credit This deposit, which significantly reduced the letter of
credit’s financing cost, resulted w a €975 milhion decrease In the group’s Net Cash Positton Prior to this deposit being placed, the letter of
credit was recorded as an off-balance sheet financial commitment, with no impact on Vivendi's Financial Net Debt

21.3 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by maturity
{(in mi¥hons of euros) December 31 2014 December 31 2013
Maturity
<1 year {a) 44 11% 3,510 25%
Between 1 and 2 years 505 23% 588 5%
Between 2 and 3 years 750 34% 1,562 3%
Between 3 and 4 years - 2085 7%
Between 4 and 5 years 700 32% 1,005 8%
> 5 years - 3480 28%
Nominal value of horrowings 2,199 100% 12,210 100%
e ——

a  Asof December 31, 2014, short-term borrowings [with a matunty of less than one year) pnmanly included bank averdrafts for €168 milion As
of December 31, 2013, they mainly included commercial paper 1ssued for €1,906 million (with a 17-day average remaining penod), Vivendi SA’s
€894 million bord, maturing in January 2014, SFR's €300 million bond, maturing in July 2014, and bank overdrafts for €143 mithon

As of December 31, 2014, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts on available medium
term credit lines may be used to redesm group borrowings with the shortest term was 4 9 years (compared to 4 2 years at year-end 2013)

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in millions of euros) Note December 31 2014 December 31 2013
Fixed interest rate 1995 1% 7,830 64%
Ftoating interest rate 204 9% 4380 5%

Nominal value of borrowings hefore hedging 2198 100% 12210 100%

"}

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450

Pay-floating mlerest rate swaps {1,450} {2 600)

Net position at fixed interest rate 222 {1,000} {2,150}

Fuxed interest rate 995 45% 5680 47%
Floating mterest sate 1,204 55% 6530 53%
Nominal value of horrowings after hedging 2199 100% 12210 100%

? Relates 1o Financial Net Debt as defined by Vivend:
4 Relates to EBITDA as defined by Vivenar plus dividends received from unconsolidated companies
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Breakdown by currency
{in millions of euros} Note Decerber 31 2014 December 3t 2013
Eurp - EUR 2,162 98% 11 396 9%
US dollar - USD - - 433 4%
Other {of which BRL and PLN} 37 2% 38t 3%
Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 2199 100% 12210 100%
——————— ]
Currency swaps USD 748 1 468
Other currency swaps {52) {193
Not tots] of hedging mstruments 2117 636 1,269
Eurg - EUR 2858 130% 12 665 104%
US dollar - USD {748) 34% {1035} -9%
Other {of which BRLand PLN) 89 4% 580 5%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 2199 100% 12210 100%

214 Credit ratings

As of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2014, Vivendi's credit ratings were as follows

Ratng agency Type of debt Ratings Qutlook
Standard & Poor's Long term corporate debt BBB
Short term corporate debt A-2 Posttive
Senior unsecured debt BBB
Moody's Long-term semior unsecured debt Baa? Stable
Fitch Ratings Long-term senior unsecured debt BBB Stable
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Note 22 Financial instruments and management of financial risks

22.1 Fair value of financial instruments

Fimancial instruments, as assets under Vivendi's Statement of Financial Posttion, include financial assets measured at fair value and at
historical cost, trade accounts receivable and other, as well as cash and cash equivalents As habihties, they include bonds and bank credit
faciities, other financial liabilities {including commitments te purchase non-controlling interests), as wel! as trade accounts payable and
other non-current habidities In addition, financial instruments include derivative instruments {assets or liabilities)

Accounting category and fair value of financial instruments

December 31, 2014 December 31 2013
Carryin Carryin
(in millions of euros) Note varIYJeg Fairvalue varl\llleg Fair value
Assets
Avarlabla-for-sala secunties 4861 4681 360 360
Dervative financial instruments 139 139 126 126
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 13 5 5
financial assets at amortized cost 1180 1160 208 208
Financial assets 14 6193 6,193 699 699
Trade accounts recesvable and other, at amortized tost 15 1,983 1,983 4898 4 898
Cash 240 na 525 na
Term deposits and interest-bearing current accounts 1,651 na 470 na
UCITS 4754 4,754 46 45
Cash and cash equivalents 16 B 845 4754 1,041 46
Liabilities
Borrowings, at amortized cost 2227 24863 12218 12721
Denvative financial instruments 33 33 26 26
Commutments to purchase non-controling interests 87 a7 22 22
Borrowings and other financial habilites 21 2347 2603 12,266 12,769
Other non-current liabilities, at amortized cost 2 121 757 757
Trade accounts payable and other, at amortized cost 15 5306 51306 10418 10,416

na not applicable

Valuation method for financial instruments at fair value

The following tables show the fair value method of financial instruments accerding to the three following levels
- Level 1 fair value measurement based on quoted prices 1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
- Llevel 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data (other than quoted prices included within Level 1), and
- level 3 fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financial instruments at amortized cost are not included m the following tables

December 31 2014

{in mullions of euros) Note Total Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Available-for-sale securities (a} 14 4881 4676 162 43
Denvative financial instruments 222 139 - 139 -
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 5 - 8
UCITS 16 4,754 4754

Liabihities

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 87 - - 87
Denvative financial instruments 222 33 - 33 -
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December 31 2013

{in mlliens of eurcs) Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Available-for-sale secunties 14 350 - 304 56
Dervative financial instruments 22 126 - 126

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 5 -

ucITs 16 4B 45 -

Liabilities

Commitments to purchase non-controtling interests 22 - - 22
Dervative financial instruments 222 26 - 26

a Asof December 31, 2014, available-for-sale securities primarily included securities held by Vivendi, valued on stock market pnce at that
date an interest in SFR - Numericable for €3,987 million and an interest in Activision Blizzard for €689 million

In 2014 and 2013, there was no transfer of financial nstruments measured at fair value between level 1 and fevel 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, financial instruments measured at level 3 fair value did nat include any significant amount

222 Management of financial risks

As part of its busmess, Vivendi s exposed to several types of financial nisks market nsks, credit risks, counterparty nsks, as well as iquidity
nsks Market nsks notably include interest rate risks, foreign currency risks and equity market value risks Vivends's Financing and Treasury
Department centrally manages financial nisks for the group and its subsidiaries, reporting directly to Vivend’'s Chief Financial Officer The
Department has the necessary expertise, resources {natably technical resources), and :nformation systems for this purpose The Treasury
Committee monitars, on a bi-menthly basis, the liquidity positions in all business units ang the exposure to main financial risks, in particular
counterparty risk, equity market value risks as well as foreign currency nisks and interest rate nsks Finally, short- and long-term financing
activities are performed at the group’s headquarters and are subject to the prior approval of the Management Beard and Supervisory Board,
in accordance with the provisions of their Intemal Regulations

As of December 31, 2014, the financial position of Vivend may be summed up as follows

- due to the sale of B8% of Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard in October 2013, the sale of Maroc Telecom in May 2014 and
mainly the sale of SFR (n November 2014, Vivend: has a Net Cash Pasttion of £4 6 billion, of which €6 8 billion n cash and cash
equivalents and €2 2 billion n gross financial debt, primaniy i bonds far €2 0 billion Vivendi has a bank credit facility available
for €2 0 billien, undrawn as of December 31, 2014,

- Vivend: held a portfolio of quoted and unquoted minonty interests, notably Numericable — SFR, Activiston Blizzard and TVN in
Poland, as well as at UMG (Spotify, Vevo, Deezer), which represented an aggregate market value of approximately €51 billign
|before taxes) as of December 31, 2014, and

- as part of the current appeals i connection with Liberty Media Corporation and secunt:es class action htigations in the United
States, Vivend: put into place cash guarantee deposits for an aggregate amount of approximately €1 billion

In addition and as a reminder, once the sale of GVT has been completed {expected duning the secand quarter of 2015}, Vivend's portfolio of
secunities will increase with the minonty interests 1t will receive in Telefonica Brasil (YIVO/GVT) and Telecom Italia, which represented an
aggregate market value of approximately €2 § billion (before taxes} as of August 28, 2014 (starting date of the exclusive negotiations with
Telefonica)

Denvative financial instrumant values on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2014 December 31, 2013

{in milltons of euros) Note  Asseis Lighilihies Assets Liabilities
Interest rate nsk management 2223 15 {12} 88 {7

FPay-fixed mterest ratg swaps - {12) - 7

FPay-floating mterest rate swaps 75 - 88 -
Foreign currency nsk management 2224 43 {21 17 [19)
Other 4l - 21 -
Denvative financial instruments 139 (33} 126 {26)
Deduction of current dervative financial instruments {40} 2 (17} 19
Non-current denvative financial instruments 93 {12} 109 {7}
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2221 Investment nsk and counterparty nisk management

Vivend:'s policy for investments maily aims to minimize its exposure to counterparty nsk Consequently, Vivendi 1s mainly committed within
highly rated mutual funds and commercial banks, and allocates investments among selected banks and hmits the amount of each such
investment

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding cash and cash equivatents of Vivendi amounted to €6,845 million, of which €6,524 million s held by
Vivendt SA and mvested in the following financial institutions with at least an A2/A rating
o £4,754 million in ten UCTIS monetary funds, managed by five management companies, and
e £1,770 mihon i term deposits and interest-beartng current accounts within eight banks Term deposits with initial maturities
greater than three months contain an option to terminate at any time and present an msignificant risk of changing 1n value

As of December 31, 2014, the average interest rate on Vivend's investments was 0 49%

In addttion, Vivendi does not consider there to be a significant risk of non-recovery of trade accounts recevable for its business operations
the large individual customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of 1ts business
operations (mainly Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group) enable to minimize the nisk of credit concentration related to trade accounts
recevable

2222 Equity market value nsk management

Vivendi's cash investment policy prohibits equity investments However, following divestiture or acquisiion, Vivendi may hold non-
consolidated mnterests as part of an opportunist strategy :n more or less long term As of December 31, 2014, Vivend! held shares in the
following listed companies, recognized as “Avallable-for-sale secunties® in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, for an
aggregate amount of €4,676 million

+ 97 4 mithon Numericable - SFR shares, 1 e, a 20% nterest held following the sale of SFR to Numericable Group on November 27,
2014, valued at €3,987 million as of December 31, 2014 These shares are notably subject to a lock-up provision please refer to
Note 3 1, and

+ 415 milbon Activision Blizzard shares valued at €689 million as of December 31, 2014 Thess shares were subject 10 a lock-up
provision, which matured on January 7, 2015 please refer to Note 3 4

Vivend: 1s thus exposed to the nsk of fluctuation in the value of these shares As of December 31, 2014, the unrealized gain with respect to
these shares amounted to €1,015 mithon, directly recognized in equity An unfavorable and uniforn change of 10% n all of these shares
would have a negative impact of €468 milhon on Vivendi's equity

In addition, Canal+ Group holds 95 mullion shares in TVN (free-to-arr TV in Poland) indirectly held by N-Vision and consoldated under the
equity method by Canal+ Group On Octeber 16, 2014, Canal+ Group and IT! Group announced they were jaintly considering strategic options
in respect of thew interest in TVN (please refer to Note 13}

Finally, as part of the plan to sell GVT, which 15 expected to be completed during the second quarter of 2015 (please refer to Note 3 2),
Vivend: should receive Telefomca Brasil (VIVO/GVT) and Telecom Italia shares, valued at £1,830 milion and €960 mitlon, respectively, based
on the stock market price and currency exchange rate on August 28, 2014 (starting date of the exclusive negotiations with Telefonica),
representing an aggregate amount of €2 8 billion

2223 Interest rate nsk management

Vivend:'s interest rate nsk management seeks to reduce Its net exposure to interest rate increases Therefore, Vivend: uses pay-floating and
pay-fixed interest rate swaps These mstruments enable thus the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows related to
interest payments on borrowings

In December 2014, concomitantly with the redemption of the bands with make-whole eption, Vivend: early settled pay-floating interest rate
swaps with a notional amount of €750 million and €400 million As of December 31, 2014, the portfolio of Vivend’s interest rate hedging
mstruments included the following swaps

e pay-fixed interest rate swaps with a notional amount of €450 mitlian, matunng m 2017, set up in 2012,
»  pay-floating interest rate swaps with a notional amount of £450 mullion, maturing n 2017, set up n 2010, and
e pay-floating interest rate swaps with a notional amount of €1,000 rmuthion, maturing in 2016, set up 1n 2011
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December 31, 2014

Notignal amounts Fair value
After

n mullions of euros} Total 2015 2016 207 2018 2mg 2019 Assets Liabilities
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450 - {12)
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1 450) {1 000 {4501 75 -
Net positron at fixed interest rate {1,000) (1,|:|1£I - {a) hi] {12)
Breakdewn by accounting gategory of rate hedqing instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - -

Fair Value Hedge (1,000) {1 000) 35 .

Economic Hedging [b) - (a) 40 (12)

December 31 2013
Notional amounts Far value
After
{in millions of euros) Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 Assets Liabelities
Pay fed interest rate swaps 450 450 - {7
Pay ftoating intesest rate swaps {2 600} {1400} {450) (750} s
Net posttion at fixed interest rate {2,150} {1,300} - (a) (750; 88 {7}
o=

Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedqing instrument

Cash Flow Hedge -

Fair Value Hedge {2,150} {1400} {750} 45

Economic Hedging (b} - - [a 42 {7}

8 Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notianal amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed interest rate swaps for a notional
amount of €450 million, matuning in 2017, qualified as economic hedges

b The econemic hedging instruments relate to derivative financial instruments which are not eligibte for hedge accounting pursuant to
145 39

2224 Foreign currency risk management

Excluding GVT, the group's foreign currency nsk management 1s centralized by Vivendi SA's Financing and Treasury Department and
primarily seeks to hedge budget exposures (at an 80% level) resulting from monetary flows generated by activities performed in currencies
other than the euro as well as frem external firm commitments (at a 100% level}, primanly relating to the acquisition of edrtonal content
{including sperts, audiovisual and film rights) and certain capital expenditures {e g , set-top boxes), realized in currencies other than the euro
Most of the hedging instruments are fore:gn currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunty of less than ona year Considering the
foreign currency hedging instruments established, an unfaverable and uniform guro change of 1% agamnst all foreign currencies in position
as of December 31, 2014, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings (below €1 mition) In addition, the group may
hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financial assets and habilites Moreover, due to their non-
significant nature, net exposures related to subsiianes’ net working capital (internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are
generally not hedged The relevant nisks are settied at the end of each month by translating the amounts into the functional currency of the
relevant operating entities

The principal currencies hedged by the group are US dollars {USD) and British pounds (GBP) In 2014 and 2013, to hedge against a possible
depreciation of its net mvestment in certain subsidianes in the United Kingdom due to an unfavorable change in GBP, Vivend) set up a hedge
using forward contracts for a notionat amount of £832 million, or €1,046 millon From an accounting perspective, these hedge instruments
were considered as net investment hedges
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The following tables present the foreign currency nsk management istruments used by the group, the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be receved, the negatve amounts relate to currencies to be delvered

Decembar 31 2014

Notional amounis Fair value
{in rillions of euras) Total UsD PLN GBP (Other Assets Liabilities
Sales aganst the euro {1.233) 52} {56) {1062) 163} 2 {19)
Purchases against the euro 1908 nr7 51 1620 120 40 {2)
Other 59 - 1 {60} 1 -
675 724 (5 (41} (3} 43 {21)
Breakdown ting cat f forgign currency hedaging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sates agast the euro (67) 9 45) {2 (1} 2 n
Purchases against the euro 3 kel - 2z -
Other - - - -
(34) - {45) [Fi} {1} 4 ]
Fair Velue Hadge
Sales against the eurg (68) {43) n 14) - 1}
Purchases against the ewro 275 275 - 14
Other - 3 1 () -
207 235 ) 13} 1)) 14 1]}
Net Investment Hedge
Sales against the et (1045} {1046) {a) - - i
Purchases against the euro - - - - -
Other - - -
{1,046} - - (1,046} - - [1})]
Economic Hedging (b)
Sales against the euro (52) - - |52} -
Purchases aganst the euro 1600 409 5 1020 120 24 12}
Other - 55 - {56) 1
1,548 465 5 1.020 12 25 2)
December 31 2013
Notonal Fair value
{in millions of euros) Total UsSD PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {1 060) {49) (105) (834} (72} 2 {10)
Purchases against the eury 2329 1330 21 888 90 il {7
Other 187 {81) (4 102) 4 {2}
1,268 1,368 {165) 50 184) 1 119
Breakd rrency hedaing nstrumi
Cash Flow Hadge
Sales aganst the eurp (1] {11 {42) K] 13 -
Purchases against the euro 85 89 - 1 {n
Other 1 {75) - (93) 4 t2)
12 242 {1 n {106) [3 {3}
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro 193) {38) (51) (L] 1 (2)
Purchases aganst the euro 450 432 18 [13]]
Other - 8 {6} {4 2 - -
357 4 (57} 10 F4 1 8)
Net Investment Hedge
Sales aganst the euro {823) - (823) (a) 8)
Purchases agamnst the eurg - - -
Other - - - -
(823} - . (823) . - {8)
Economic Hedging {b}
Sales aganst the euro i (12 - {59) 1 -
Purchases against the eura 1,794 83 21 B70 %0 10 -
Qther - 1t - - {11) - -
17123 (1] 9 870 20 n -

a Retates to the hedge of the net investment in certain subsidiares tn the United Kingdom for a notional amount of £832 million as of
December 31, 2014 (£692 million as of December 31, 2013)

b The economic hedging instruments relate to denvative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39
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2225 Liqudrty nnisk management
Vivend) SA centralizes daily cash surpluses (cash pooling) of all controlled entities (a} that are not subject to local regulations restricting the

transfer of financial assets or (b) that are not subject to other contractual agreements

As of December 31, 2014, the future undiscontnued cash flows related to borrowings and other financial habilties amounted to
£2,623 million {compared to a carrying value of €2,347 milion) and are presented in Note 251 within the group’s contractual mimmum
future payments

As of February 11, 2015, Vivendi considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its cash and cash equivalents, as well as
the amounts avatlable through sts current bank credit facility wifl be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital expenditures,
service 1ts debt, pay its ncome taxes, dividends and shase repurchases, if any, as well as to fund its investment projects, If any, for the next
12 months

Note23 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

231 Adjustments

Year ended December 31,

{zn millions of euros) Note 2014 2013
ltems related to operating activities with no cash impact
Amortization and depreciation of ntangible and tangible assets 4 743 666
Change i provision net {125) 72)
COther non-cash items from EBIT n {2}
Other
Other income from EBIT 4 {203} (88}
(ther charges from EBIT 4 0 50
Proceeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets 7 3 3
Adjustments 451 557

232 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of s interest in SFR to Numericable and received £13 165 billion in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the new combined entity Numericable - SFR, which represents a 20% interest and vating nights This 20% interest in
Numericable - SFR was valued at the stock market's price on Noverther 27, 2014 (£33 315 per share), or £3,244 million  As of December 31,
2014, the value of this interest 1n Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Financial Pesition amounted to €3,987 million (please refer to Note
31

In 2014, there was no significant financing activity with no cash impact

In 2013, there was no significant investing or financing activity with no cash impact
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Note24 Transactions with related parties

241 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 24, 2014, Vivendi's General Sharehelders” Mesting notably appointed three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgon and Mr Philippe Bénacin

Vivendr’s Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, apponted
Mr Vincent Bolioré as Chairman The Board also appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, who had
chaired the group s:ince 2002, as Honorary Chairman The Board appointed Mr Dariel Camus as Chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr
Philippe Bénacin as Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration Committee

On June 24, 2014, the Supervisory Board alse appointed the members to the Management Board, which s compnised of Messrs Amaud de
Puyfontaine, who serves as Chairman, Hervé Philippe, and Stéphane Roussel

The Supervisory Board 1s currently compnised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative

Compensatian of corporate officers

s The current members of the Management Board received, in respect of their position as Corporate officers in 2014, a fixed
compensation of €1 6 millien and, except for its Chairman, extraordinary compensation of €06 million linked to the proper
implementat:on of the divestiture of SFR, previously granted in respect of thew position as Corporate officers and paid 1n respect of
their current position The vanable compensation with respect to 2014 will be paid in 2015 for an aggregate amount of
€2 2 mithon, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 27, 2015

The Chairman of the Management Beard, Mr Amaud de Puyfontaine, renounced his employment contract At the General
Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on Apnil 17, 2015, a proposa! will be made to grant him a contractual severance package in the
event of forced departure and subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions

In addition, with respect to 2014, the members of the Management Board in office until June 24, 2014 receved a fixed and
variable compensation ¢ 2014 for an aggregate amount of €2 1 mitlion, and the vanable compensation of €1 0 millson with respect
to 2013, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 21, 2014

In 2013, the members of the Management Board in office received a fixed and vanabte compensation with respect to 2012 for an
aggregate amount of €2 3 million In addition, the members of the Management Board in office until June 28, 2012 recewved in
2013 the prorated variable compensation component with respect to 2012, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 22,
2013, for an aggregate amount of €4 & million {excluding any severance payments)

s The aggregate charge recorded by the group with respect to equity-settled share-based compensation plans (performance shares,
stock options, and employee stock purchase plan) granted to the members of the Management Board, in office on the grant date,
amounted to €2 mition in 2014 {compared to £2 million in 2013}

e The amount of net pension obligations toward the current members of the Management Board amounted to €5 2 million as of
December 31, 2014 On June 24, 2014, the former Chairman of the Management Board exercised right pension benefits after
23 years of service within the group and a debnt on plan assets was recorded for €9 4 miltion

e The amount of the current Chawrman of the Supervisory Board's compensation i1s €400,000 per vyear, subject to the same
performance conditions as the members of the Management Board On February 27, 2015, the Supervisory Board approved the
level of satisfaction of objectives and decided to set the compensation of the current Chairman of the Supervisory Board at
€207,778 tor the period from June 24 to December 31, 2014

= The fixed compensation paid to the Chaiman of the Supervisory Board in office untit June 24, 2014 amounted to €338,333 in pro-
rata temports (compared to £700,600 paid in 2013)

o The aggregate amount of directors’ fees paid to the members of the Superisory Board with respect to 2014 was €1 1 million
{€1 2 miflion wath respect to 2013} In addition, at its meeting held on Apnl 4 and 5, 2014, the Superwvisory Board decided to award
addit:onal compensation of £130,000 to members of the ad hoc Commuittes, owing to the workload due to its mandate and the high
quality of the work they had contnbuted

Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detailed description of the compensation policy and the compensation and benefits of corporate
officers of Vivend SA, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code, as amended in June 2013
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242 Other related parties

Excluding corporate officers, Vivendi's main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive or joint
control, and companies over which Vivends exercises a sigruficant influence (please refer to Note 27 for a hst of its main subsidiaries, fully
consolidated or accounted for under the equity methoed), and nan-controlhing interests that exercise significant influence as of December 31,
2014 on group affihates 1 e, TVN, which owns 32% of nc+ {a subsidiary of Canal+ Group) as well as corporate officers of the group and its
related subsidiaries, 1 particular Havas Group and Bolloré Group

Excluding the following transactions with related parties, there are no transactions between Vivend:, Havas Group and Boltoré Group and
their corporate officers

{in mi/hons of evros) 2014 2013
Assets
Trade accounts recervable and other 32 35
Of which Havas it 15
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable and other 12 2
Of which Havas 5 1
Statement of eamings
Operating income 100 88
Of which Havas 2z 7
Operating expenses 72} {70)
Of wihich Havas {24) {24)
Bollgré {g) 7
Contractual obhgations, net off balance sheet 66 63
Advertising transactions
Of which Advertistng safes realized via Havas' agencies 89 88
Media costs realized via Havas' agencies 62} {62)

Some subsidianies of Havas Group render operating services to Vivend: and its subsidiaries under arm's length terms
Regarding Canal+ Group
- as part of advertising campaigns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions through media space with Canal+
Group for an aggregate amount of €89 million in 2014 (€88 milhen in 2013},
- asparn of advertising campaigns developed for Canal+, Canalsat, and Canalplay, Canal+ Group entered into transactions with
mam meadia comparies through Havas Group and its media spaces for €62 mulion 1n 2014 (€62 million in 2013},
- transactions excluding media, production, broadcast nights and fees were completed by Havas Group and its subsidianies for
€3 millon 1in 2014, and
- Havas Group and 1ts subsidianies developed and designed advertising campaigns in favor of Canal+ Group for €13 milhon in
2014

In addition, Havas and Universal Music Group {UMG) announced the following agreements
on September 29, 2014 digital brand integrations in select UMG music videos by using Mirnad’s Academy Award-winning video
technology, and
- onJanuary 5, 20156 formation of Global Music Data Alliance {GMDA) related to consumer's data
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Note25 Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivend:'s maternal contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

» contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments (please refer to Note 10 2),
contractual obhigations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Pasition, including finance leases, off-
balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts
and purchase or investment commitments,

= commitments related to the group’s consohdation scope contracted through acquisitions or divestitueres such as share purchase or
sale commitments, contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or
acquisition of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over
Vivendi's assets,

» commitments refated to the group's financing undrawn confirmed bank credit factiities as well as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and hiquidity nsks (please refer to Notes 21 and 22}, and

e contingent assets and labilities related to hitigation in which Vivendi and/or its subsidianes are erther plaintiff or defendant {please
refer to Note 26)

251 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments
Mimmum future payments as of Decambar 31 2014 Totgl mintmum future
Total Payments dua in payments as of

tin millions of suros) Note 2015 2016-2018 After 219 Dacamber 31, 2013
Barrowings and other financial habiitias 2623 363 2228 3 13967
Content ligbiibes 102 2433 2334 97 2 233
Consolidated statement of financial pesition rtems 5,056 2697 23% k<] 16.302
Contractual content commitments 102 6135 1896 4180 59 4798
Commercial commitments a1 1160 325 588 247 229
Operating leases and subleases K12 640 81 289 270 2,700
ltems not recordad in the consolidated statement of financial pasition 7,835 2,302 5,057 576 9,207
Contractual obligations and commercial commitments 12991 4,99 7383 609 75,509

2511 Off balance sheet commercial commitments

Minymurm future payments as of December 31, 2014

Total minimum future

Total Due in payments as of

{in milhons of euros) 2015 2006 2018 After 2019 Decemnber 31 2013

Satallne ransponders 752 118 399 235 686
Investment commitments 85 55 30 1078
Other 510 23h 259 16 732
Given commitments 1347 408 688 %1 2,996
Satellste transponders 1187} {83) {100} (4 {153}
Other - - - {128}
Received commrtments {187} {83) {100} {4} (287}
Net total {a} 1,160 f rad) 588 247 2=,2é3;

a  The decrease in off balance sheet commercial commitments was mainly related to SFR sold on November 27, 2014, and GVT, whose
sale by Vivend is underway (€939 m:llion and €127 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2013)
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2512 Off balance sheet eperating leases and subleases

Minimusm future leases as of December 3t 2014 Total - mmimum future
Total Due in leases as of December
{in millions of euros) 2015 2016 - 2019 After 2019 31,2013
Buldings 652 84 298 270 2695
(Other [} 3 3 - 221
Leases 658 87 E e} 29156
Buildings 118) {6) 12 - {216)
Subleases (18) {6} {12) - {216}
Net total (a) 640 fn 289 270 2,700

a  The decrease in the amount of off balance sheet aperating leases and subleases was mainly refated to SFR sold on November 27,
2014, and GVT, whose sale by Vivend: 1s underway {1,790 mullion and €451 milhon, respectively, as of December 31, 2013)

252 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Ref |Context Characteristics {nature and 1) Expiry
L Given conmitments I © L e Tk Y o = ; T T I

Individual nghts to tratneng for French employees Approximately 0 4 mithon hours {1 6 million hours as of December 31 2013) -
Obligations 1n connection with pension plans and post-retirement benefits|Please refer to Nots 18

{a) |Other guarantees given Curnulated armount of €33 millien {compared to €156 millien as of December 31 2013)
Recewved commitments 3 e aaan L v F -~ .

thi |Agreements on the digital dstnbution of music nights Minimum guarantaes -
QOther guarantees received Noimpact as of December 31 2014 {compared to €1 million as of December 31 2013) -

a  Vivend grants guarantees in various forms to financial institutions on behalf of its subsidiaries in the course of their operations
b Manly relates to commitments received by UMG from third parties in connection with agreements subject to minimum guarantees on
the digital distnbution of music nghts

253 Share purchase and sale commitments
In cornection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivend) has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
securities

¢ (n September 18, 2014, pursuant to an agreement entered into with Telefonica, Vivendi commutted to sell GVT {ptease refer to Note
32,

» the hquidity nghts related to Vivendi's interest in Numericable - SFR are described in Note 3 1, and

« the hiquidity nights in respect of the strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, IT1, and TVN are detailed in Note 255 below

Vivend) and i1ts subsidiaries have granted or received purchase or sate options related to shares m equity affihiates and unconsolidated
Investments
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254 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the

divestiture or acquisition of shares

Ref |Context Characteristics (nature and ) Explry
“{Contingent tiabilities . | e ) ]
(a} JAcguisition of Bollord Group's channels [September 2012) Cormitments undertaken 1n connection with the authorizanon of tha acquisiion with

{h)

{c}

L1

(e}

(g}
(h}

the French Competition Authority and

tha French Broadcasting Authanty

Merger of Cyfra+ and "n" platforms {Ncvember 2012) Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TYN

- PLN 1 billien n the event of a bieach of any reprasentation of warranty or covenants and
PLN 300 mullion in the avent cf 2 braach of specific represantation or warranty

Canal+ Group 5 pay TV actwities in France {January 2007 July 2017) New approval of the scquisition of TPS and CanalSatellite subject 1o compliance with inunctions ordered by
the French Competiton Authonty

Divestitura of Canal+ Nordic [Qctober 2003} Drstribution guararteas expired as of December 31, 2014 given in favar of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast
Holding by a formar subsidiary

Divestiture of NC Numenicabla {March 2005} Specific guarantaes capped at €241 milon (including tax and soaiat nsks) expired as of Dacembar 31 2014
Dwvestiture of PSG {Juna 2006) Unlinited speaific guarantees

Divestiture of MG manufactunng and distsbution operations {May 2005} |Various commigmen:s for manufactuning and distnbution senaces

NBC Unversal transaction {May 2004) and subsequent amendments (2005 | Breaches of tax representations

00) Cbligation to cover the Most Favored Nation prowsicns and
Claims related to ramedisl actiens on May 31 2014 at the Jatest
Divestture of Sithe (Desambar 2000) Speaific guarantees cappad at $480 million
Sala of seal estate assets (Juna 2002) Autenomaous first emand guarantess capped at €150 million in total (tax and decennal guarantses)

Drvestiture of PTC shares (December 2010) Comimitments undanaken w ordet to end higation over the share ownershup of PTC in Poland

Sale of Actrviston Blizzard (October 2013) unlimited general guarantees and
tax quaranteas capped at $200 million under certain circumstances

Sale of Maroc Telacom group (May 2014) Commitments undertaken in connection with the sala (please refer to Nota 3 3)

2017
205

2018

2017

2014

2014

2048
08

2014

2017

(a}

(d}

[{1]

Sale of SFA {Novembai 2014) Commitments undertaken in connection with tha sale (please refer ta Nota 3 1)
Other contingent liabxhties Cumulated amount of €7 million {unchanged compared to December 31 2013)
[CONUMEntfas3ELS

Acouisition of Bolloré Group s channels {September 2012) Guarantees capped &t €120 mifion

Acguisition of 40% of N Vision (Novembser 2012) Guarantees made by ITI capped at appraximatety
€28 milion for ganeral guarantees expired on May 30 2014 and
€277 million for specific guarantees (including tax matters fres anc full ownershup of shares sald
autharizations / approvals for the exarcise af tha actrvity}
Merger of Cyfra+ and n platform (November 2012) Reciprocal guarantags in tavor of TVN
PN 1 bilhon in the gvent of a breach of any representation or wartanty of covenants
PLN 300 million in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty and
- PLN 145 million related to Neovision s uhutilizad tax losses carned forward
Acquisttion of Kinowalt [Apri! 2008) Specific guarantess notably on film nghts were granted by tha satlars
Divestiture of NC Numernicable {March 2005) €151 million counter-guarantees by Orangs expirad as of Decamber 31 2014

Acquisition of EMiI Recorded Music (Septembar 2012} Commitments relating to full pension obligations n tha United Kingdom assumed by Citr and

- Guarantaes retating to losses stemming from taxes and ingation claims i parucular thoss related to penston
cbligations in the Urited Kingdom

Divestiture of Xfera {2003) Guarantees amount to 871 miliion

Other contingent assets Cumulated amount of €86 million {compared to 270 miliion as of Deceinber 31 2013}

The accompanying notes are an mntegral part of the cantingent assets and labilities described above

a

As part of the French Competition Authonity's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and
D17, respectively) on July 23, 2012, Vivend: and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments These commitments provide for restrictions
on the acquisition of nghts for Amencan movies and television series from certain American studios and for French movies, the
separate negotiatron of certain rights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and tefevision senes, limitations on the acquisition by D8 and
D17 of French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of rights to broadcast major sparts events on free-to-air channels
through a competitve bidding process These commitments are made for a five-year period and are renewable once if the French
Competition Authority, after having performed a competition analysis, deems it necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authonty (Consed Supéreur de I'Audiowisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nights, and the retention by Canai+ Group of the D8 shares for
a minimum period of two and a half years

On December 23, 2013, the french Council of State annulled, with a delayed effect as from July 1, 2014, the French Competition
Authority’s approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and D17, respect:vely), which had been
approved on July 23, 2012 On January 15, 2014, Vivend: and Canal+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition
Authority On April 2, 2014, the French Competition Authority reapproved the transaction, subject to compliance with commitments
given by Vivendi and Canat+ Group These commitments are similar to the ones contained in the previous 2012 autharization except
for an additional commitment relating to the acquisition of broadcasting nghts covenng secand and third exhibition windows for
French fitms All commutments are binding for a period of five years starting July 23, 2012 In 2017, the French Competition Authority
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will have the opportunity to request a renewal of these commitments for the same duration, if deemed necessary, after a new
competitive analysts

b On August 30, 2006, the merger between TPS and the Canal+ Group was authonzed, in accordance with the merger control
regulations, pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and Canal+ Group
complying with certain undertakings for a maximum penod of six-years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the
availabilsty of channels and VOD, which could not exceed five-years

On October 28, 2008, the French Competitien Authonity opened an enquiry n respect of the implementation of certain undertakings
given by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the french Council of State rejected Vivendi and Canal + Group’s filed mations reguesting the annulment of
the French Competition Authority’s decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 million fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 million Under the second motion, the transaction was once again cleared, subject to
compliance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, some since July 23, 2012 and others since Octaber 23, 2012 The
injunctions mainly focus on
* Acquisition of movie rights
- by hmiting the duration of gutput deals to three years, requinng separate agreements for different types of rights (first pay-TV
window, second pay-TV window, series, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- by the Canal+ Group divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Senies — OCS SNC or by adopting measures hm:ting 1ts influence
over Orange Cinema Seres — 0CS SNC On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with
inunction 2(b) ordered by the French Competition Authonty on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Seres - 0CS
SNC’ Board of Direttors resigned from thewr positions As a result, Multithématiques appointed by letter with an effective
date of February 4 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to Multithématiques to the Board of Directors of
(Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC
¢ Distribution of pay-TV channels
- by the distnibution of a minimum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premum rights, and
by drafting a model distnbution deal relating to independent channels included in the Canalsat offer,
by the cbligation to promote, in a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channets on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscribers, and
- by making all its own movie channels distributed by Canal+ Group {Ciné+ channels) available to third-party distributors
{unbundhing}
* Video-on-demand (VOD) and subscription video-on-demand {SV0D)
- by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD rights on a nen-exclusive basis, and not combining
them with rights purchased for linear distribution on pay-TV,
- byoffering Studiocanal's VOD and SVOD rights to any interested operator, and
- by forhidding exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group’s VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service Providers
platforms
These Injunctions are imposed for a period of five-years and are renswable once At the end of the five-year perod, the French
Competitzon Authonity will review the competition situation to determine whether the mjunctions should be kept in place If market
conditions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be Iifted or partially or totally
revised An independent trustes, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authonity on September 25, 2012,
will be responsible for monitoring the implementation of the injunctions

¢ In connection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nordic in October 2003, Canal+ Group had retained distribution guarantees given in favor
of Canal Dignal and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary These guarantees, which were covered by a counter-guarantes
given by the buyers, expired on December 31, 2014

d  As part of the divestiture of NC Numencable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 million
cap (including tax and social nsks) Specific risks relating to cable networks used by NC Numericable were included in this maximum
amount and were counter-guaranteed by Orange for up to €151 million As of December 31, 2014, all of these guarantees were
expired

e  As part of the NBC Universal transaction which occurred in May 2004, Vivendi and General Electric (GE} gave certa:n reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transaction, and Vivendi retained certain habilities relating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivendi and GE undertook to indemnify each other against losses resulting from, amaong other things, any breach of therr respective
representations, warranties and covenants
Neither party wilt have any indemnification obligations for losses ansing as a result of any breach of representat:ons and warranties
{1} for any individual item where the loss 1s less than $10 mullion and {11) in respect of each indrvidual item where the loss 1s equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of all losses exceeds $325 million In that event, the liable party will be

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Vivendi /121




Frnday, February 27, 2015

required ta pay the amount of losses which exceeds $325 million, but in no event will the aggregate mdemnification payable exceed
$2,088 million

In addition, Vivendi will have indemnification obligations for 50% of every US dollar of loss up to $50 million and for all losses in
excess of $50 million relating to hiabilities arising out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth i certain contracts As part of
the unwinding of 1ACI's interest in VUE on June 7, 2005, Vivendi's commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivendi's liability 1s now subject to a de mimimis exception of $10 million and a payment basket of $325 million

The representations and warranties given as part of the NBC Unwersal transaction other than those in respect of authonzation,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remediation had to
be brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of imitations

The sale of Vivend:’s interest in NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

f In connection with the sale of its 49 9% interest n Sithe to Exelon in December 2000, Vivend: granted customary representations and
warranties Claims, other than those made In relation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 million In addstion,
claims must exceed $15 million, except if they relate to foreign subsidiaries or the divestiture of certain electrical stations to Reliant in
February 2000 Some of these warranties expired on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments stll exist and any
potential habihties related to contamination nisks witl survive for an indefinite period of time

g In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivendi granted two autonomous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 million and one for €110 mitlion, to several subsidianes of Nexity (Nexim 1 to 6} The guarantees are effective until June
30, 2017

h Gn December 14, 2010, Vivend:, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak {Elektnim’s main shareholder) and Elektnm's crediors, including
the Polish State and Elektnm's bondholders, entered into vanious agreements to put an end to the hitigation surrounding the share
capital ownerstup of Polska Telefon:a Cyfrowa {PTC), a mobile telecommunication operator With respect to these agreements, Vivend)
notably entered into the following commitments

* Vivend: granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that was capped at €600 million, which expired in August
2013,

* Vivend: committed to compensate the Law Debenture Trust Company {LDTC) against any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LDTC in connection with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first £125 million,
46% between €125 million and €288 million, and 50% thereafter, and

+ Vivend comm:tted to compensate Elektnm’s adminsstrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against 1t, in connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

| As part of the sale of 88% of Vivendi’s interest in Actvision Blizzard, winich was completed on Octaber 11, 2013 {the “Closing Date”),
Vivend, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certan reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction
(representations, warranties and covenants] Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard undertook to indemnify each other against
any losses stemming from any breach of their respective commitments Such indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount

In addition, Vivendi has agreed to indemmiy Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other Liabilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary
Co ("Amber”), the Vivend subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relating to pernods preceding the Closing Date Such
indemnification 1s unhmrted as to time and amount Tax attributes (maly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by
Activision Bhzzard were estimated at more than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately
$245 millon Vivend: agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certamn circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject
to a cap of $200 million hmited to taxable years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

On May 22, 2014, n accordance with the agreements entered into an July 25, 2013, Vivendi sold a first tranche of 41 5 miliion
Activision Blizzard shares, representing 5 8% interest in this company Following this sale, Vivend: owns a residual interest of
41 5million Actvision Blizzard shares, which 1s subject to a lock-up restriction that expired on January 7, 2015 Since this date,
Vivend 1s free to sell 1ts remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction

Activision Blizzard agreed to file a registration statement prior to each sale window to enable Vivend to sell the Activision Blizzard
shares n a public offering

Prior to any sale of Activision Blizzard shares by Vivendr in a market offering that occurs prior to the second anniversary of the Clasing
Date {October 11, 2015}, Vivend: must notify Actrvision Blizzard of its intention to sell the shares and Actwision Blizzard may, at its
election, offer to purchase some or all of the shares that Vivend! intends to self in such market offering Vivend: may accept or decline
such offer at 1ts sole discretion

ASAC 1l LP was also subject to a lock-up provision which expired on Apnl 9, 2014

| Vivend recewved guarantees in respect of the repayment of amounts paid in July 2007 (€71 mullion), in the avent of a favourable
decision of the Spanish Courts concerning Xfera's tax litigation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees include a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 million
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Several guarantees gwven i 2014 and duning prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time
periods or statute of hmitations of certain guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabilities, i
consideration of share ownership, or given in connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are still in effect To the
best of Vivendi's knowledge, no material claims for indemnification aganst such habilities have been made to date

In addition, Vivend: regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and lingations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical in such transactions

255 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or nvestors’ agreements (pnmanly thase relating to nc+), Vivendi holds centain nights {such as pre-emptive
rights and prionity nghts) that give 1t control over the capital structure of consolidated companies that are partially owned by minarity
shareholders Conversely, Vivend: has granted similar nghts to these other shareholders n the event that it sells its interests to third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affiliates or uncanselidated interests, Vivend:
and its subsidianies have given or received certain rights (pre-emptive and ather nghts) entitling them to maintain their nghts as shareholder

20% interest in Numencable - SFR

The main terms of the shareholders’ agreement between Altice and Vivend resufting from Vivend:’s interest in Numericable - SFR are
described in Note 3 1

Strateqic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN

The key hiquidity rights provided under the strategic partnershrp formed m November 2012 in relation to television services in Poland are as
follows

- At the level of N-Vision

s Canal+ Group has a call opticn to acquire ITl's remaining N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time during the two three-
month periods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,

+ conversely, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option on ITI's interest in N-Vision, ITI has a call option
to acquire Canal+ Group's interest 1n N-Vision, exercisable at any time duning the two three-month periods beginning May
30, 2016 and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June
30, 2018, at the then-prevailing market value, and

=  Canal+ Group and ITi each has the hiquidity nght, following the above call option periods, to sell its entire nterest in N-
Vision

- Atthe level of nc+
«  Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TYN's 32% :nterest in nc+ at market value, which 1s exercisable during the two
threg-month periods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016,
= f Canal+ Group exercises its call option Canal+ Group will be required to acquire ITI's remaining interest in N-Viston, and
e n the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has liquidity nghts n the form of an Imitial Public
Offering of its interest in nc+

In addition, v complhiance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, 1t 15 stated that some nights and obligations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders” agreements {nc+) may be amended or terminated in the event of a change in control of Vivend: or a tender offer
for Vivend: being made These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisions

256 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2014, no asset In Vivendr's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mortgage for the benefit of third
parties

In addition, the amount of assets of GVT, a discontinued operation, which were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of third parties,
amounted to €183 million as of December 31, 2014 {compared to €128 million as of December 31, 2013) This amount related to assets
piedged with respect to judicial guarantees for various htigations

As of Oecember 31, 2013, the amount of assets of SFR, sold on November 27, 2014, which were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of
third parties amounted to €84 million
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Note 26  Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi is subject to varnous lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceedings (collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”}

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the ameunt of the prowision represents Vivendi’s best estimate of the
risk, provided that Vivend may. at any time, reassess such risk If events accur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2014, provisions
recorded by Vivend: for all claims and litigations amounted to €1,206 million, compared to €1,379 million as of December 31, 2013 (please
refer to Note 18)

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Procesdings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company's knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve manths a significant
impact on the company’s and on s group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herain

The status of procesdings disclosed hereunder is described as of February 11, 2015, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivend:'s Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014

Vivend: itigation

Secunties Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivend:, Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of California On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to consolidate these claims under 1ts junsdiction into a single action entitled In re Vivendr Universal SA Securities
Litigation

The plaintiffs allege that, between Octeber 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants wialated certamn provisions of the US Securities
Act of 1933 and US Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, particularky with regard to financial communications On Jaruary 7, 2003, the plantiffs
filed a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided. concerning the procedure for certification of the potentiat claimants as a class (“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amenican Depositary
Receipts {ADRs) of Vivend: (formerly Vivendi Universal SA) between October 30 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be mcluded in the class

Followang the class certification dectsion of March 22, 2007, a number of indwidual cases were filed against Vivendr on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the individuat actions with the securities class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsol:dating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned its verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivend: betwesn October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were materally false or misleading and were made in violation of Section 10{b} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged * liquidity nsk” which
reached its peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Marie Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
hable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the pnce of Vivendi’s shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action
The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivendi share price fell to zeso in the three weeks following the September 11, 2601,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Paris or New York markets (12 days) duning the class penod

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very clear statement, ruled, in the Mernson v National Australia Bank cass, that American
securities law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a secunty listed on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other security in the United States "

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the "Morrison™ dectsion, confirmed Vivend's
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ordinary shares on the Paris stock exchange and limited the case to claims of
French, Amencan, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivendr's post-tnat
motions chalienging the jury's verdict The Court alse declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual sharehelder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition befora the Second Circurt Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired thetr shares on the Pans stock exchange
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In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1 2012, the Court, in applying the Mornson decision, also disrmissed the claims
of the indiwdual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Parns stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the pla:ntiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2612, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had until Awgust 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of therr claim These
claims are currently being processed and venfied by an independent ¢laims administrator and by the parties Vivend will then have the night
to challenge the ments of these claims On Novernber 10, 2014 at Vivend!'s initiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upon proposed
arder requesting the Court to enter a partial final judgment on the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covering a substantial portion of the claims
Certain large claims were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivend: continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of
those claims On December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partal judgment

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed its Notice of Appeal with the Second Circuit Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivend!'s appeal  the Liberty Media case

Vivend! believes that 1t has solid grounds for an appeal Vivend intends to challenge, among other 1ssugs, the plaintffs’ theones of
causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the tnial Several aspects of the
verdict wall also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies speciahizing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles descnbed i Notes 13 1 (Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 {Frowsions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 mullion 1n respect of the damages that Vivend) might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class action itigation in the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Sowthern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June Z4, 2010 in the Morrison case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 millon as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, if any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the Un:ted
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recagnized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend: considers that this provision and the assumptions on which 1t 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plantiffs could differ from the current estimate As 1s
permitied by current accounting Standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate (s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend

Complant of Liberty Media Corporatron

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Medra Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivend: and Jean-Mane Mess:er and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims anising out of the agreement entered into by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivendi Uriversal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consotidated with the secunties class action for pre-tnal purposes but was subseguently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media's request that they be pernuitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action jury with
respect to Vivendi's liability {theary of “collateral estoppel”)

The Liberty Media jury retumed its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend: liable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties” agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivend: fited certain past-trial motions challenging the jury’s verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury’s verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tnal

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded Liberty Medta pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment mn the total amount of £945 milion, including pre-judgment interest, but staved its execution while 1t considered
two pending post-tnal motians, which were dented on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court @ Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it believes it has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend filed @ motion i the Second Circust Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment is entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously On April 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals issued an Order granting Vivendi's motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivend: filed 1ts
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012 and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivend: maintained as of December
31, 2014, the provision In the amount of €345 million recorded as of December 31, 2012
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Tnal of Vivendi's Former Officers in Paris

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office {Parquet de Pans) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscat years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend: joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, befare the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance (Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Pans), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered 1ts judgment, in which it confirmed the previous recognition of Vivend as a civil party Messrs Jean-Marie Messier,
Guidlaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys receved susperded sentences and fines Messrs Jean Manie Massier and
Guiffaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend:
Officers as well as some cwvil parties appealed the dectsion The appeal proceadings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Pans Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended pnison sentence and a fine of £150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marnie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and a fing of
€5 million for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 19, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal rendered 1ts iudgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissemination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the critena for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets
and he recewved a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions against Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for insider trading and they received fines tn the amount of €850,000 {of which €425,000 I1s suspended) and €5 mullion {of which
€7 5 million is suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set aside the lower court’s order for the payment of damages (€10 per shara) to
certain shareholders and former shareholders of Vivendi {the "cvil action”) With regard to Vivends, the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a cvil party to the proceedings, exonerated it from any responsibility and voided the demand for damages brought agamst it by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court {Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
defendants and some civil parties

LBBW and al against Vivend)

On March 4, 2011, 26 wshtutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgum and Austnia filed a
complaint agamst Vivend: with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to abtain damages for fosses they allegedly incurred as a resuit of four
financial communications 1ssued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002 Subsequently, on April 5 and
Apnl 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first one by a US penston fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of ldaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the Brntish Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivendi on the same basis On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans
appointed a “third party” responsible for checking the standing of the clamants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their alieged holding of the secunities

California State Teachers Retirement System and al against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Mess:er

On April 27, 2012, 67 nsututional ferergn investors filed a complaint against Vivend: and Jean-Mane Messier before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a resuht of the financial communications made by Vivend: and its former CEQ,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined these proceedings In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plantiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appointed a "third party"
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence their alleged holding
of the securities

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc, its Board of Directors, and Vivend)

In August 2013, a denvative action was intiated in the Los Angeles Superior Court by an indwidual shareholder against Activision Blizzard,
Inc ("Activision Blizzard” or the “Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and against Vivendi The plantiff alleges that
Actwision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend:'s share ownership
in the Company The plaintiff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
waould also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Katick and Brian Kelly, the Company’s Civef Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiductary duty were aided and abetted by Vivendi

Gn September 11, 2013, a second derivative action based on essentially the same allegations was tnitiated in the Delaware Coun of
Chancery by another mingnity shareholder of Activision Blezzard, Anthony Pacchia

Cn the same day, another minonty shareholder, Douglas Hayes, initiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard's shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
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Court of Chancery granted the motion enjotning the closing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overturned this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will praceed on the merits

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consol:dated the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled In Ae
Actwvision Bhizzard Inc Securities Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a similar new action was Initiated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minonty shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated into the In Be Actvision Blizzard Inc Secunties Litigation proceeding currently underway

In November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a global settlement which would put an end to this dispute On December 19, 2014,
the settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal approval and then the sharehalder notification
pracess commenced The Court 1s expected to approve the settlement agreement at an upcoming hearing

Calling of the guarantee 1ssued hy Anjou Patrimoine to Unihail

Unibail has called its mdemmification guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patrimone {a former subsidiary of Vivend:) m connection with the sale of
the CNIT offices in 1893 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre ordered Anjou Patnmoine to indemmfy Unibail for a tax liability ansing
from the creation of offices and rejected all other clams On October 31, 2008, the Versailles Court of Appeal reversed the High Court's
ruling, denied all of Unibail's clayms and ordered 1t to reimburse Anjou Patrimoine for all sums paid under the first ruling On November 27,
2008, Unibail appealed against this decision Gn September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the October 31, 2008 ruling of the
Versailles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Paris Court of Appea! The hearing will take place on April 2, 2015

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi} against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 28, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which overrufed a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On Apnil 23, 2009, the Regional Berl:n Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that deciston On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regiona! Berlin Court in April 2009, which decided 0
CGISBIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reascning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This decision 15 now final In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for additional damagss m the
Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of €3 9 million together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision

Telefonica against Vivend: in Brazit

On May 2, 2011, TELESP (now Taelefonica Brazil), filed a claim against Vivend: before the Cwvil Court of S30 Paulo (3° Vara Civel do foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S50 Paule) The company 1s seeking damages for having been hlocked from acquinng control of
GVT and damages 1n the amount of 15 mllion Brazilian reals {currently approximately €4 9 mitlion} corresponding ta the expenses mncurred
by Teleforuca Brazil in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September 2011, Vivend: filed an gbjection to junisdiction,
challenging the junisdictson of the courts of Sdo Paulo to hear a case involving parties from Curitiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Apnl 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Aprit 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica's claim for fack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendi's responsibility for
Teleforuea’s failing to acquire GYT The Court notably highlighted the inherently nisky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivends's counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carried out against 1t by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court’s decision to the 5th
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sdo Paulo

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered mnto between Vivend) and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute without payment to either side Pending the conclusion of this settlement transaction (which 1s to be
signed on the day of the closing of the sale of GVT}, the case has been suspended

Dynamo agawmnst Vivend

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivend before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
(S&o Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majanity of its stake i the company before
Navember 13, 2009 (the date on which Vivend: took contiol of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold is crossed {the “poison pill provision”) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend:
Vivend), noting that this poison pill prowision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend)
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamg’s allegations The arbitral tribunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
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Chamber should be scheduled shortly In parallel, on February 8, 2013, Dynamo filed an application with the 21st Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janeiro to compel CYM and Bovespa to prowide the arbitral tribunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivendi This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tribunal could make such an
apphcation On December 17, 2014, the Rio de Janeiro Court of Appeal overtumed the lower court’s decision and authonzed the provision of
the above-mentioned mformation solely to the arbitral tnbunal, denying Dynamo access to the information

Hedging-Gnffo against Vivend

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gniffe funds filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa (S&o Paulo
Stock Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due o the conditions under which Vivend: completed the
acquisition of GVT in 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tnbunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their initial briefs The
Hedging-Griffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivendi in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the "poison pill” provision in GVT's
bylaws Vivend: believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Gnffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivend: against Telefonica was their own decision made In the context of their management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivend: 1t also denies any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as 1t was waived by a GVT General
Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend) or Telefonica

Litigation involving Vivendi subsidianes

Parabole Réunion

in July 2007, the Group Parabole Réunon filed a legal action before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distnibute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a rubing dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal parually reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunton was unsuccessful in its claims conceming the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réumon appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the Franch
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réumon In the context of this dispute, vanous junsdictions have taken the
opportunity to apply the fact that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a
channe! of similar attractiveness Noncompliance with this arder would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a
cfaim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of
Nanterre (Tnibunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enfarcement having been previously
rejected by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Paris Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November B, 2012,
Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On April 9, 2013, the enforcement
magistrate dismissed n part Parabole Réunton’s claim and declared the rest madmissible  He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no
legal obligation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion Parabole
Réunion filed an appeal against this judgment On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of Appeal declared the appeal filed by Parabole
Réunion inadmissible Parabole Réunton filed an appeal on points of law and filed a second appeal against the Apnit 9, 2013 decision

In parallel, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Panis Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunat order Canal+ Group to make avatlable a channet with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages

On Aprd 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complant against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Panis Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réurion and their commitments to the Mimistry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated into a single action On Apnl 29, 2014, the Pans Tribunal of First Instance recognized the
contractual liability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the quality of channets made available to Parabole Réunion The Tribunal
ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réuruon, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter On November 14,
2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance

BelN Sports against the National Rugby League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports lodged a complaint with the French Competition authority aganst Canal+ Group and the National Rugby
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting nghts to the “TOP 14" for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons
On July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authority imposed intenm measures suspending Canal+ Group's agreement with the National
Rugby League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new call for tenders process be organized Canal+ Group and the National
Rugby League appealed this decision before the Paris Court of Appea!
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On October 9, 2014, the Parts Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nights to the “TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2019 On October 30, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision

Action brought by the French Cempetition Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authonty sent Vivend: and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It atleges that Canal+ Group has abused rts domenant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend: and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and MB, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivendi and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Autharity rendered a decision in which 1t dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distnbution nights on channels broadcast by the Group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On October 30,
2013, the French Competition Authority took aver the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, end France Telévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Téléwision groups In the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption rights nto co-production
contracts, 1n such a way as to discourage competition  The French Competition Authority 1s examining the case

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Regie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Compstition Authonty against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie n the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the 08 channe! during 1ts launch The French Competition Authonty 1s examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a claim was filed with Court of First Instance of Nanterre {Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre} by Copie France
who 15 seeking compensation in respect of external hard drives used i connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the
external drive used by Canal+ s "dedicated” to the set-top boxes and therefore 1t should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France
believes that the applicable amount of the compensation 1s €45 per hard drive as opposed to €8 7

Aston France agamst Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authonty about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its satellite
subscription called “cards only™ {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canafsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satellite decoders,
manufactured and distnbuted by third parties, including Aston) In paraltel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Pans, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satellite subscriptions called “cards only™ On October 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court 1ssued an order denying Aston’s requests  On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Pans
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted its request and suspended the decision of Canal + Group to stop selling its “cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authonty renders 1ts decision on the merits of the case

Complaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and Cal:fornia against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices :n the context of sales of COs and Intemsat music downloads These compfaints have
been consclidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process Is underway

Complaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complamts have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royafties for on Iine sales of music downloads and master nngtones UMG contests the
mernts of these actions
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Capitol Records and EMI Music Pubhshing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Records and EM! Music Publishing filed a jomt complaint against MP3Tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copyright infingement on the sidefoad com and mp3tunes com websites The trnal was held in March 2014, and, on March
18, 2014, the jury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records It found the defendants liable for knowingly allowing the
unauthorized content on the websites Gn March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages n the amount of $41 million On October 30, 2014 the
Court confimed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of $12 2 million The defendants have appealed against the
Judgment

Mireille Porte against Interscope Records, Inc, Stefani Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Mireille Porte (AKA “Orlan”) filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc , Stefani Germanotta {AKA "Lady
Gaga”} and Universal Music France with the Pans Tribunal of First Instance (Tnbunal de Grande Instance de Paris) for the alleged copynght
infringement of several of Orlan’s artistic works

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clair filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Pans Tribunal of First instance (Tnbunal de Grande Instance de Paris} for the alleged infringement of his wark

Litigation invelving GVT {discontinued operation)

Actions Related to the ICMS Tax

GVT, like all other telecommunications operators, 1s party in several Brazilian States to various proceedings concerning the application of the
“ICMS” tax (imposto Sober Circufagdo de Mercadorias e Prestagdo de Servigos), which 1s a tax on operations relating to the circulation of
goods and the supply of transport, communication and electrcity services

GVT s notably a party to litigation :n various Brazilian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the 21 proceedings inmtiated by GVT, all have resulted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no longer subject to appeal

Actions Related to the FUST and FUNTTEL Taxes in Brazi!

The Brazilian tax authorities argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST” (Fundo da Unwversalizagdo dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagdes), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services througheut the whole Brazihian terntory, including in
areas that are not economically wiable, and "FUNTTEL" (Funde para Desenvolvimento Tecnolégioco das Telecomumcagdes), a federal tax to
finance technological investments in Brazihan telecommunications services, should be based on the company's gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authonty from the
federal judge

Proceedings Brought aganst Telecommunications Operators in Brazil Regarding the Application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were initiated against all the telecommunications operators in Braz)l, including GVT, sesking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as "PIS” {Programa de Integragde Social and “COFINS” {Contribuigdo para Financiamento da Sequridads
Social), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments 1n
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the histone operators as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible hicense that allows it to
set its own tanffs
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Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity
method

As of December 31, 2014, approximately 540 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method (compared to
approximately 630 entities as of December 31, 2013)

Vivend) 5 A
Groupe Canal+ § A
Société d Editiory de Canal Plus (a)
Mutuzhématiques SA S
Canal+ Dvarsgas SAS
08
Studiocanal S A
[Tl Neowision
VN
VSTV bl
Uniwversal Music Group Inc
Universat Music Group Holdings Inc
UMG Recordings Inc
Vevo
SIG104
Unrversal Intemational Music BY
Unwersal Music Entertainment GmbH
Unnversal Musig LLC
Universal Music France SA S
Univessal Music Holdings Limited
EMI Group Worldwade Holding Ltd
Vivend: Village
See Tickets
Digitick
Wengo
Watchever Group S A
Watchever GmbH
Elektnm Telekomumkagja
Discontinued businesses
Global Village Telecem S A (c)
SFR(d)
Maroc Telecom S A {e)

Note

W oW W W

C Consolidated, E Eguity, na, not applicable

December 31 2014

December 31 2013

Coumry Actounting Voung Ownership Actaunting Voung Ownership
Method Interest Interest Mothod Interest Interest

France Parent company Parent company
France [ 100% 180% [+ 100% 100%
Frarce c 43% 49% c 49% 49%
Frarce c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Poland C 51% 51% c 81% 5%
Peland E 43% 26% E 49% 25%
Vietnam c 43% 49% [ 49% 49%
United States c 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
United States c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
United States c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
United States E 8% 48% E 47% 47%
France c 100% 100% € 100% 100%
Netherlands C 100% 100% [w 00% 100%
Gesmany C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Japan C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Unized Kingdom o 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United Kingdom o 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
France c 100% 190% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 0% [ 100% 95%
France C 100% 100% £ 100% 100%
Germay C 100% 100% 100% 100%
Poland C 100% 100% [» 100% 100%
Branl C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France na g 100% 100%
Morocco na c 5% 53%

a  Vwend consolidated Société d'Edition de Canal Plus since {1} Vivend: has majority contral over the board of directors, {11} no other
shareholder or shareholder group 1s In a position to exercise substantive participating nghts that would allow them to veto or block
decisions taken by Vivend and (1) Vivendr assumes the majonity of risks and benefits pursuant to an agreement with this company
through Canal+ Distnbution SA'S Canal+ Distrbution S A'S, wholly-owned by Vivend:, guarantees this company’s results in returm
for exclusive commercial nights to its subscriber base

b V3TV {Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s held 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a subsidiary of VTV (the
Vietnamese public television company) This company has been consolidated by Vivendi given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial controt over it pursuant to a general delegation that was granted by the majority shareholder and pursuant to the

company’s bylaws

¢ On September 18, 2014, Vivend entered Into a definitive agreement with Telefonica for the sale of GVT

d On November 27, 2014, Vivendi completed the sale of SFR to Numericable Group

e  OnMay 14, 2014, Vivend: completed the sale of its 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group
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Note 28  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivend: SA 1n 2014 and 2013 to its statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms {including fees related to
discontinued operations (n 2014 and 2013 at prorate tempors, |f any) were as follows

KPMG S A Ernst & Young et Autres

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Total
{n milions of euros) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2004 2013 2014 2013
Statutory audit, certification consolidated and
individual financial statements audit
Issuer 06 07 10% 10% 07 09 10% 13% 13 16
Fulty consohdated subsidianes 41 42 73% 60% 55 56 75% 0% 96 98
Other work and services directly related to the
statutory audit
Issuer 05 04 9% 6% 03 - 4% - 08 0a
Fully consolidated substdianies 01 07 2% 10% 0% 01 7% 1% 06 08
Subtotal 53 6.0 94% 86% 70 66 9% 94% 123 126
Other services provided by the network to fully
consolidated subsidianes
Legal taxand soctal matters 02 07 3% 10% 02 03 3% 5% G4 10
Other 02 03 3% 4% 01 01 1% 1% 03 04
Subtotal 04 1.0 6% 14% 03 04 4% % 07 14
Total 57 1.0 100% 100% 13 10 100% 100°% 130 140
e ————
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Note 23  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivendi S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidiaries, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, 1n order for them ta claim exemptions from audit, with respect to fiscal year 2014, under section 4794 of the UK Companies Act

2006
Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2350972
CENTENARY UK LIMITED 03478918
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 03506757
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 19329
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
EGW USD 8107589
£MI OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED 403200
EMI(IP) LIMITED 3984464
EMI CATALOGUE INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038313
EMI GROUP AMERICA FINANCE LIMITED 2415597
EMI GROUP DANISH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 2421891
EMI GROUP ELECTRONICS LIMITED 461611
EMI GROUP FINANCE DENMARK LIMITED 2422007
EMI GROUP HOLDINGS (UK} 3158108
EMI GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1407770
EMI GROUP WORLDWIDE 3158106
EMI INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038307
EMI LIMITED 53317
EM! RECORDED MUSIC (CHILE) LIMITED 07934340
EM! RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (ITALY) LIMITED 5420969
EM? RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED 6407212
EMJ RECORDS GEAMANY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420927
EMIRECORDS ITALY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420934
EMI RECORDS UX HOLDCO LIMITED 6386809
EMIG 4 LIMITED 3038275
FLUMMANAGEMENT LIMITED 07308238
G RICORDI & CO {LONDON; LIMITED 228233
GLOBE PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 05489643
JAYDONE LIMITED 4631083
LOUDCLOTHING COM LIMITED 06854812
MAWLAW 388 LIMITED 3590255
RELENTLESS 2006 LIMITED 3967906
UMGI {ATW} LIMITED 05103127
UNIVERSAL MUSIC (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383881
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 859087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS {UX) LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 02037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGB LIMITED 02200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 05092413
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 3711282
UNIVERSAL SRG {UB40} LIMITED 09158521
UNIVERSAL SRG {W A B ) LIMITED 05221402
UNIVERSAL SRG ARTIST SERVICES LIMITEE 01890289
UNIVERSAL SRG GROUP LIMITED 00284340
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING COPYRIGHTS LIMITED 2873472
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED 02898402
UNIVERSAL SRG STUDIOS LIMITED 03050388
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 01862328
UN/VERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698804
UNIVERSAL/ISLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC 2 LIMITED 2850484
UNWERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC UMITED 1946456
V2 MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 03205625
VIRGIN MUSIC GROUP 2259349
VIRGIN RECORDS OVERSEAS LIMITED 335444
VRL 1 LIMITED 3967882
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Note30 Subsequent events

The significant events that cccurred between December 31, 2014 and February 11, 2015 {the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivend's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014) were as follows

e On January 19, 2015, following a call for tenders process carried out by the National Rugby League, Canal+ Group secured
exclusive nights related to all of the Natonal French Rugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches These rights, which mclude all
seven games an each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, cover the seasons 2015-2016 to 2018-2018,
and

« In February 2015, Vivendi announced the creation of Vivend) Contents, managed by Mr Rodolphe Belmer, Chief Executive Officer
of Canal+ Group Vivendi Contents will be in charge of the design, leadership and development of new content support for music
and visual image, and will manage related investments

Note 31 Adjustment of comparative information

In comphance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom, and Activision
Blizzard have been reported in Vivend’s Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued eperations in accordance with the following
terms

* Ongoing sales as of December 31, 2014. On September 18, 2014, Vivendi and Telefonica entered into an agreement for the sale of
GVT As a result, GVT has been reported in the Consohdated Statement of Eammngs and Statement of Cash Flows as a discontinued
operation, as from the third quarter of 2014 Its contribution to each fine of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, as of
December 31, 2014, has been grouped under the lmes "Assets of discontinued businesses” and “"Liabilities associated with assets of
discontinued businesses”

s  Completed sales as of December 31, 2014 Vivend: deconsolidated SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Actviston Blizzard as from
Navember 27, 2014, May 14, 2014, and October 11, 2013, respectively All three businesses have been reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Eamings and Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations

As a result, the previcusly published Financial Statements were adjusted

31.1 Adjustments made to the main aggregates of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The adjustments to data pubhshed for the first quarter and the first half of 2014 are reported below and only relate to GVT

2014
Three months Three months  Six months ended
{in millions of eurps) ended March 3t ended June 30 June 30
Eamings before interest end income taxes (EBIT) (as praviously published) 176 260 436
Reclassifications related to the applhcation of [FRS 5 for GVT 76 -81 -157
Eamings before interest and mcome taxes (EBIT) (restatad) 100 179 m

The adjustments to data published in the 2013 Annual Report are reported below and only relate to GVT and SFR

2013
Three months Threamonths  Stx months ended
{1n mitlions of euros) ended March 3t ended June 30 June 30
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT} (a3 published (a}} 4712 668 11480
Reclassifications related to the apphication of IFRS 5 for GVT -85 -84 - 169
Reclassifications related to the apphcation of IFAS 5 for SFR -3 - 360 -6
Earmings before interest and mcome taxes (EBIT) {restated) 16 224 300
2013
Three months Ning months Three months Year ended
ended September  ended September  ended December Becember 31
{in millions of euros} 30, 30 31 '
Eermings before interast end mcoma taxes (EBIT) (as published (a)} 610 1,750 (2,185) {435)
Reclassificatrons related to the application of IFRS 5 for GVT -90 259 -96 - 155
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for SFR 3t7 - 988 +2415 + 1427
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT} (restated) 203 503 134 637

a  Aspublished in the 2013 Financial Report
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312 Adjustments made for the Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2013

Reclassifications
related to
{in mil§ions of ewros} Published IFRS 5 (a} Restated
Operating activities
E8IT (435} +1072 637
Adjustments 491 - 4,354 547
Content investments, net (148] {148)
Gross cash provided by oparating activitias before incoms tax paid 4328 -3.282 1.045
Other changes in net working capital {308) +344 36
Nat cash provided by operating activities before mcomae tax paid 4020 -24938 1,082
Income tax paid, net 1197 +402 205
Ngt cash provided by operating activitias of continuing operatians 3823 -2 536 1.287
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operatigns 1417 +2536 3,953
. Net cazh provided by operating activities 5240 - 5230
Investing activities
Capital expenditures (2,674 +239% {278}
Purchases of consohdated companies, after acquired cash 43 +1 {42)
Investments i equity affiliates (2) +2 -
Increase in financiat assets {106) +41 {65)
investments (2.825) + 2440 (385)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 50 -17 3
Proceads from sales of consolidated companies after divested cash 2748 -9 2,139
Disposal of equity affiliates 8 - 8
Decrease in financial assets 727 -3 724
Divestituras 3533 25 3508
Dividends received from equity afiliates 3 - 3
Dividends received from unconsolidated companies 54 - 54
Nat cash provided by/{used for) investmg sctivitias of continuing operations 765 +2411 3176
Net cash prowided by/{used for) investing activities of discontinued operations {1952} -241 {4,363}
Net cash provided by/(used for) investing ectivitias {1.187) - (1,187
Finsncing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share based
compensation plans 195 - 195
\ Sales/ipurchases) of Vivend) SA's treasury shares - - -
. Dividends pard by Vivend: SA to its shareowners (1,325} - 11,325)
Other transactions with shareowners (1 046} - (1,046}
Dwvidends paid by consolidated companies to their nan-gantrolting interests {37} +4 (33}
Transachons with shareowners {2213) +4 (Z.ZET
Setting up of long tesm borrowings and increase in other long term financial liabulities 2491 -BG 2,405
Prncipal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease in ather long-term financial liabilimes (1,923 +13 {1,910}
Principal payment on short-term borawings (5.211) +50 15,161}
{ther changes In short-term borrowangs and other financial liabilities kil +5 36
. Interest paid, net {529) 4262 (266)
Other cash riems related to financial actwities (349) +19 {330}
Transactions on barrowings and other financial liabiities {5.489) + 263 (5.226)
Net cash provided by/lused for) financing activities of continuing operations {7.762) +267 (7,435
Net cash provided by/{used for} inancing actwvities of discontinued operations 1284 - 267 1,017
Net cash provided byf{used for} financing activities (6,418) - (6418}
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations {48) +28 {20}
Foreign currency transiation adjustments of discontinued operations {44 -28 {72)
Change in cash and cash equivolents (2,957 - {2,457)
Reclassification of cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations 396) - (396)
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginming of the period 3.39; - 3894
Atend of the period 100 - 1,041

a Relates to GVT and SFR {please refer to Note 3}
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